. 01%a0184

T Caneruaty ARTIST
SERUCEs LiMITED

Cubw puivivbizae s

ABTUT §EM1cdS
LimtTED)

Annual Financial Report

and Audited Consolidated

Financial Statements

for the Year Ended
December 31, 2012

| WIRTIA0N

A23 25
COMPA

!

#4

vivendi !




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

VIVENDI
Société anonyme with a Management Board and a Supervisory Board with a share capital of £7,281,793,288
Head Office 42 avenue de Friedland - 75380 PARIS CEDEX 08 - FRANCE

IMPORTANT NOTICE: READERS ARE STRONGLY ADVISED TO READ THE IMPORTANT DISCLAIMERS AT THE END OF THIS
FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend /2




SELECTED KEY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA... e

i1~ 2012 FINANCIAL REPORT ...... - e e “ e .

1 MAJOR EVENTS ... ... e e s .

11 MaJOR EVENTS IN 2012

12 MAJOR EVENTS SINCE DECEMBER 31, 2012

2 EARNINGS ANALYSIS...... ... v e emessse seeme ween
21 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
22 EARNINGS REVIEW

3 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS ANALYSIS . ... ..o e e
4 BUSINESS SEGMENT PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS.. ...

41 REVENUES, EBITA, AND CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

42 COMMENTS ON THF OPERATING PERFORMANGE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS

5 TREASURY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES. ..... ... e v e

51 SUMMARY OF VIVENDI'S EXPOSURE TO CREDIT AND LIGUIDITY RISKS

52 FINANCIAL NET DEBT CHANGES

53 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL MET DEBT CHANGES

54 NEW FINANCINGS

55 FINANCING OF SUBSIDIARIES

& OUTLOOK ..... cer e e e e e

7 FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. .... ... ...

] OTHER DISCLAIMERS ... ... . . .. e -

1
2
3

ADJUSTED NET INCOME
RECONCILIATION OF ACTIVISION BLIZZARD'S REVENUES AND EBITA

REVENUES AND EBITA BY BUSINESS SEGMENT - 2012 AND 2011 QUARTERLY DATA

--------

--------

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Tuesday, February 28, 2013

.......

S s s

12
13

...... 16
..... 18

18
19

32
34
35
36
37

..... 38

i

41
42
44

Vivends /3



il - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED INANCIAL STATEMENTS . ...
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS . ... e e ame e s e wn e e .

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ... et
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION. .. ...
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS... ... . .. o« -
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY .. .. ca e
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ....

NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND VALUATION METHODS

NOTE 2 MAJOR CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

NOTE 3 SEGMENT DATA

NOTE4 EBIT

NOTE 5 FINANCIAL CHARGES AND INCOME

NOTE 6 INCOME TAXES

NOTE7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

NOTE 8 CHARGES AND INCOME DIRECTLY RECOGNIZED IN EQUITY

NOTE9 GOODWILL

NOTE 10 CONTENT ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS

NOTE 11 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTE12  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE13  INTANGIBLE AND TANGIBLE ASSETS OF TELECOM QOPERATIONS

NOTE 14 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY AFFILIATES

NOTE1S  FINANCIAL ASSETS

NOTE16  NET WORKING CAPITAL

NOTE 17  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTE18  EQUITY

NOTE19  PROVISIONS

NOTE20  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

NOTE 21 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

NOTE22  BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

NOTE23  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS
WNOTEZ4  CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTE25  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

NOTE26  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

NOTE27  LITIGATION

NOTE28  MAJOR CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES OR ENTITIES ACCOUNTED UNDER EQUITY METHOD
NOTE29  STATUTORY AUDITORS FEES

NOTE30  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

NOTE31  AUDIT EXEMPTIONS FOR UMG SUBSIDIARIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended Decerber 31, 2012

w50
.51

. 46
w46
48

49

.52
.54
54
n
75
79
81
82
86
87
88
9z
94
95
96
97
98
98
100
100
102
102
108
14
17
125
125
127
133
140
14
142
143

Vivendi /4




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Selected key consolidated financial data

Year ended December 31
m2 201 2010 2009 2008

Consolidated data
Revenues ta} 28 994 28813 28,878 VIREYS 25392
EBITA (a) (b) 5,283 5.860 5726 5390 4953
Earnings atinbutable to Vivend SA sharegwners 164 2681 2198 830 2603
Adjusted net income (b} 2,550 2952 2698 2585 2,735
Financial Net Debt (b} (c) 13419 12027 8,073 9566 8,343
Total equity {d) 21 436 22,070 28,173 25988 26,626

of which Vivend: SA shareowners' equity (d} 18,465 19 447 24058 2017 22515
Cash flow fromoperations before capital expenditures, net (CFFO before capex net} 7,872 8034 8569 7,799 7056
Capital expenditures, net {capex net (e} {4 490) {3340) {3.357} {2 562} {2,001}
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) (b} 3382 4,694 5.212 5237 5,055
Financial investments [1795) {636} {1397) {3.050) (3947}
Financial dvestments 239 4,701 1,982 97 352
Diidends paid wath respect to previous fiscal year 1,245 17N 171 1,639 (f) 1515
Par share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (g} 1,2989 1,2814 12738 12447 1,208 6
Ad)usted net income per shara (g) 19 2.30 212 208 226
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the penod (exciuding treasury shares} (g} 13225 12874 12787 12703 12116
Equity per share, attnbutable 1o Vivendi SA shareowners g} 131% 1511 18 81 17133 1858
Dividends per share paid with respect to previous fiscal year 100 140 140 140 130

In milhons of euros, number of shares 1n millions, data per share in euros

a

An analysis of revenues and EBITA by operating segment 1s presented in Section 4 1 of this Financial Report and in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Vivend: considers that the non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Financial Net Debt, and Cash flow from operations
(CFFO} are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial perfarmance Each of these indicators 1s defined 1n the appropnate
section of this Financial Report or in its Appendix These indicators should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and finantial performance as disclosed n the Consohdated Financial Statements and the related
notes, or as described 1n this Financial Report It should be noted that other companies may define and calculate these indicators
differently from Vivend thereby affecting comparability

As af December 31, 2009, Vivend: revised uts defintion of Financial Net Debt to include certain cash management financial assets
whose features do not strictly comply with the definition of cash equivalents as defined by 1AS7 and the AMF's position n®2011-13 {(in
particular, these financial assets may have a matunty of up to 12 months} Considering that no investment in such assets was made
prior to 2009, the retroactive application of this change m presentation would have no impact on Financial Net Debt for the relevant
perods and the information presentad in respect of the 2008 fiscal year 1s therefore consistent

With effect from January 1, 2009, Vivend! voluntanly opted for early application of the revised IFRS 3 {Business Combinations) and
IAS 27 (Consoldated and Separate Financial Statements) As a result, certam reclassifications have been made to the 2008
consolidated statement of changes in equity to conform to the 2008 financial statements presentation, as prescribed by revised IAS 27

Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2008 totaled €1,639 million, of which €904 million was patd in Vivend: shares
{fwhich had no impact on cash) and €735 milion was paid In cash

The number of shares, adjusted net income per share, and the equity per share, attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners have been
adjusted for alt penods previously published in order to reflect the dilution arising from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012 of
one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with IAS 33 - Eamings Per Share
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Nota.

In accordance with European Commussion Regulation {EC) 809/2004 {Article 28} which sets out the disclosure obligations for 1ssuers of securities
Iisted on a regulated market within the European Union implementing Oirective 2003/71/EC, the "Prospectus Regulation”), the following items are
incorporated by reference

» 2011 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financral Statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 130 to 266 of the “Document de Référence” No D 12-0175, filed on March 19, 2012 with the
French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF), and in pages 128 to 264 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”, and

e 2010 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 126 to 270 of the “Document de Référence” No D 11-0155, filed on March 21, 2011 with the
French Autanté des Marchés Financiers {(AMF}, and in pages 126 to 270 of the English translation of this "Document de Référence”
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| - 2012 Financial Report

Preliminary comments:

On February 18, 2013, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 Having considered the Audit Committee's
recommendation given at its meeting held on February 15, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at 1ts meeting hefd on February 22, 2013, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended December 31, 2012, as approved by the
Management Board on February 18, 2013

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors with
no quahfied opinion The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 1s included in the preamble to the Financial
Statements

1 Major events

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012, Vivendi's Management Board and its Supervisory Board have engaged
in a review of the group’s strategic development marked by a desire to strengthen its positions in media and content Given the stage of
completion of this strategic review and considering the uncertainty of the timing of potential d'spesals of certain telecom businesses, none
of the group’s business segments met the criteria of IFRS 5 standard neither as of December 31, 2012, nor as of February 18, 2013, the date
of Vivendi’s Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Vivendi's Management Board remains committed to focusing on shareholder value creation, adjusted net income per share and maintaining
a long-term credit rating of BBB (Standard & Poor's / Fitch) / BaaZ (Moody's)

1.1 Major events in 2012

1.1.1  Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG}

in accordance with the agreement entered into with Tingroup inc {Cit)) on Novernber 11, 2011, and following receipt of the regulatory approvals
from the European Commission and the Federal Trade Commission in the United States on September 21, 2012, Vivendi and UMG completed the
acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group Global Limited (EMI Recorded Mustc) on September 28, 2012 EMI Recorded
Music has been fully consolidated since that date The transaction was also unconditionally cleared in New-Zealand (June 21, 2012), Japan
{July 9, 2012), and Canada {August 20, 2012)

The purchase price, in enterprise value, amountted to £1,130 million {approximately £1,404 miilion) and included €1,363 mullion paid in cash
of which £9%1 millign (approximately £1,230 milhian] was pard in early September 2012, when conditions te payment were satisfied As part of
this transaction, Citi agreed to assume the full pension obligations in the United Kingdom, and UMG receved commitments customary for
this type of transaction In addition, Citi undertook to indemnify UMG against losses stemming from taxes and litigation claims, in particular
those related to pension obhigations in the United Kingdom

The approval by the European Commission was conditional upon the divestment of EMI's Parlophone label and certain other music assets
waorldwide, such as EMI France, EMI's classical music labels, Chrysalis, Mute and several other local EMI entities In accordance with IFRS
5, Vivend: reclassified these assets as assets held for sale at market value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2012

The sale of Parlophone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 millian (approximately €600 mdlion after taking into account the
EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge 1n place) to be paid n cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additicnal, less significant divestments
were also sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed £530 million, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

With these sales, Vivend! nears the finalization of its regulatory commitments following the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, while
reinforcing UMG's position as a worldwide leader in music The combination of UMG's and EMI's Recorded Music businesses 1s expected to
generate annual synergies of more than £100 midbon as previously stated As a result of the sale of Parlophone Label Group, the acquisition
of EMI Recorded Music acquisition will be at less than 5xEBITDA multiple, iIncluding disposals, restructuring charges and synergies

for a detalled description of this transaction and of its impact on Vivendy's financial statements, please refer to Note 2 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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1.1.2 Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels by Vivendi and Canal+ Group

On December 2, 2011, Bolloré Group and Canal+ Group announced the entry into a definitive agreement regarding the acquisition by Canal+
Group of Bolloré Group’s free-to-air channels, Direct 8 and Direct Star In February 2012, Canal+ Group exercised its option to acquire, inone
transaction, a 100% interest in Bolloré Group’s television business, in exchange for the issuance of Vivend: shares

On September 27, 2012, Vivend: carried out a share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid n consideration for the
contribution made by Bolloré Media, representing an enterprise value of €336 million After taking into account a €16 mulion price
adjustment related to debt and changes in warking capital, the fair value of the transferred counterparty amounted to £320 milion Bolloré
Group committed to retain the Vivend: shares recewved in connection with the completion of this transaction for a minimum periad of six
months after September 27, 2012 Since that date, Vivend: and Canal+ Group have been granted guarantees capped at €120 million These
guaranties expire 3 months after the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations for tax or social matters, and 18 months after
September 27, 2012 for all cther matters D8 and D17 have been fully consolidated since September 27, 2012 and were renamed D8 and
D17, 1n connection with their launch on Octeber 7, 2012

As part of the French Competition Authonty's approval of the transaction on July 23, 2012, Vivend: and Canal+ Group undertook certain
commitments These commitments provide for restrictions on the acquisition of rights for Amencan movies and television series from certain
American studios and for French movies, the separate negatiation of certain rights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television seres,
limitations on the acquisition by D& and D17 of French cataleg movies from StudioCanal, and the transfer of nights to broadcast major sports
events on free-to-air channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a S-year period, renewable once 1f
the French Competition Authority, after having performed a competitve analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012,
the French Broadcasting Authority {Conseil Supéreur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer rights, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for a
minimum periad of two and a half years

Following the closing of this transaction, Bolloré Group reported having increased s interest in Vivend: SA to 4 41% Subsequently, on
October 16, 2012, 1t announced that it had crossed the 5% threshold in Vivend: SA's share capital

On December 13, 2012, Vivend!'s Supervisory Board co-opted Vincent Bolloré, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bolloré Group, as
a member of the Supervisory Board This cooptation will be submitted for ratification at the General Shareholders Meeting to be held on
Apnl 30,2013

For a detailed description of this transaction and ts impact on Vivendi's financial statements, please refer to Nete 2 2 to the Consolidated
financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2012

11.3 Strategic partnership among the Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN in Poland

In accordance with the agreement announced on December 19, 2011, and following the receipt an September 14, 2012 of unconditional
approval from the Polish Competition and Consumer Protection Authority, on November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, IT!, and TVN finalized the
combination of their Polish Pay-TV platforms, which remain controlled by Canal+ Group, and the acquisition by Canal+ Group of a 40%
interest in N-Vision, which has been accounted for under the equity method since that date

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy (Canal+ Group’s Cyfra+ platform) with ITi Neowision {TVN's “n” platform), which created a new
satellite TV platform mn Poland, with a base of 25 million customers, Canal+ Group owns a 51% interest in the new structure “nc+”
{compared to a previous 75% nterest in Canal+ Cyfrowy), TVN and UPC own a 32% and 17% interest, respectively As Canal+ Group has the
majority on the Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “ac+”, the latter has been fully
consolidated by Canal+ Group since November 30, 2012

For a detailed description of this transaction and its impact on Vivend:'s financial statements, please refer to Note 2 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.4 Liberty Media Corporation Complaint

On June 25, 2012, a verdict was returned by the jury against Vivendi i a lawsuit filed by Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its
subsidiaries before the US District Court for the Southern District of New York The jury awarded damages to Liberty Media Corporation in
the amount of €765 million

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16, 2001, using the
average rate of return on one-year US Treasury bills, or €180 million On January 17, 2013, the Court entered a final judgment in the total
amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while it considered two pending post-trial motions, which were
dened on February 12, 2013 On February 15, 2013, Vivend) filed with the Court a Netice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it
believes 1t has strong arguments
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On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and following the entry of the final judgment by the Court, as of December 31, 2012,
Vivend acorued a reserve in the amount of €345 milhon Please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012

1.15 Newfinancings

For a detailed description of the new financings set up in 2012, please refer to Section 54 For a detailed description of the matunities of the bonds
and bank credit facihties as of December 31, 2012, ptease refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31,2012

1.1.6 Acquisition of 4G spectrum by SFR

In danuary 2012, follewing calls for bids of the tender offer for 4G mobile spectrum {very-high-speed Internet - LTE} carried out 1n 2011 and in
accardance with the announcement mads by the “Autonte de Régulation des Communications Electroniques et des Postes” or “Arcep” {the French
telecommunications regulatory body), SFR acquired two 5 MHz duplex spectrum in the 800 MHz band for €1,065 million As & reminder, in
October 2011, SFR acquired another 4G spectrum {the 2 6 GHz band} for a total amount of €150 million

1.1.7  Corporate officers

At a meeting held on June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Léwy's term of office as Chairman of the Management
Board On June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board afso terminated the terms of office of the following Management Board members Mr Abdeslam
Ahizoune, Mr Ames Gemsh, Mr Lucian Gramnge, and Mr Bertrand Méheut It also appointed Mr Jean-Frangeis Dubos as Chairman of the
Management Board

The Management Board 1s currently composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos and Mr Philippe Capron

As a reminder, on March 26, 2012, Mr Frank Esser resigned from his offices as a member of Vivendi's Management Board and as Chairman
and Chisf Executive Officer {CED) of SFR

For a detailed descniption of the situation and compensation of the corporate officers, please refer to Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.8 Other events in 2012

Activision Blizzard

License agreements in Ching
On March 20, 2012, Blizzard Entertainment, a subsidiary of Activision Blizzard, announced that they renewed their license with NetEase for
World of Warcraft in mainland China, adding an additional three years to the current license agreement

On July 3, 2012, Activision Blizzard and Tencent Holdings Limited, a leading Internet services provider announced a strategic relationship to
bring the Calf of Duty franchise 10 Chunese game players Under the multi-year agreement with Activision Publishing, Tencent holds the
exclusive license to operate Activision's new Call of Duty game in mainland China

Stock repurchase programs

In 2012, Activision Blizzard repurchased its own common shares for €241 million (§315 milhon), including €42 million {$54 milkon} pursuant
to the stock repurchase program of up to $1 billion authonzed by Activision Blizzard’s Board of Dwectors on February 2, 2012 and
€199 mdlion ($261 mullion} pursuant to the previous stack repurchase program As of December 31, 2012, Vivend: held a 61 5% non-diluted
interest in Activision Blizzard {compared to an approximate 60% interest as of December 31, 2011)

Dividends

On May 16, 2012, Actvision Blizzard paid to :ts shareholders a cash dividend of $0 18 per common share, with respect to fiscal year 2011,
representing $123 milhon (E34 million) for Vivendi Due to its strong earnings and it cash and short term investments amounting to
approximately $4 4 brllion at year-end 2012, Activision Blizzard declared on February 7, 2013, 2 dividend of $0 19 per common share, to be
paid in cash on May 15, 2013

In addition, as part of its earnings release announced on February 7, 2013, the Board of Activision Blizzard 1s considering, or may consider
dunng 2013, substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactions These potential
transactions could be financed by debt
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Canal+ Group

Inquiry into comphance with certamn undertakings given in connection with the merger of CanalSatelirte and TPS
The French Competition Authonity opened an mquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given by Vivend! and Canal+ Group in
conngction with the merger of TPS and CanalSatellite

On September 20, 2011, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which 1t established that Canal+ Group had not complied
with certain undertakings — some 1t considered essential — on which depended the decision authonizing, in 2008, the acquisition of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivendi and Canal+ Group As a consequence, the French Competitton Authority withdrew the merger authorization,
requiring Vivendi and Canal+ Group to re-notify the transaction to the French Competttion Authonity within one month Furthermore, the
Authonity ordered Canai+ Group to pay a €30 million fine

On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected the Canal+ Group and Vivendi motions requesting the annulment of the
decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012, and decreased the fine imposed on Canal+ Group from £30 mithon to €27 million
Pursuant to the July 23, 2012 decision, the merger was again authorized, subject to compliance with 33 injunctions

Please refer to Note 26 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Acquisition of a non-controlling interest in Orange Cinema Series

On Apnl 12, 2012, Multithématiques, a subsidiary of Canal+ Group, and Orange Cinema Series entered nto a partnership via a joint
company, Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC, 1t which Multithématiques acquired an approximate 33% interest and to which Orange Cinema
Series contributed the publishing and broadcasting operations of 1ts pay cinema channels Since April 5, 2012, Canal+ Distribution has been
distributing the channels of the Orange Cinema Series” package through CanaiSat On July 23, 2012, as part of the decision authorizing the
merger of TPS group and CanalSatellite, the French Competition Authonity required that Canal+ Group sell rts non-controlling interest in
Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC or, upon failure to sell such interest, to relinquish certain of its rights contained 1n the shareholders’
agreement between Multithématiques and Qrange Cinema Senes (please refer to Note 27 to the Consalidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2012)

On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with the injunction 2(b) ordered by the French Competition Authonity
on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC' Board of Directors restgned from their positions As a result,
Multithématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with ng affiliation to
Muitithématiques within the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC

Acquisttion of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution
On July 17, 2012, StudioCanal announced the acquisition of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution, a company specializing mn the distnbution
of feature films in Austraha and New Zealand The company has been fully consolidated since that date

Creation of Numergy by SFR

On September 5, 2012, SFR, Bull, and Caisse des Dépbts et Consignations announced the creation of Numergy, a company offering cloud
computing services to all econormc players As of December 31, 2012, SFR held a 47% terest in Numergy and 15 accounted for under the
equity method As of December 31, 2012, SFR subscribed to the capital increase of this new company for £105 milhon, of which €26 millien
had been released

Distributions to shareholders of Vivendi SA and its subsidianes

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2011
On May 9. 2012, Vivend SA paid to its shareholders a cash dividend of €1 per share with respect to fiscal year 2011, representing a total
distribution of €1,245 mithen

Bonus shares granted to Vivend: SA shareholders

On May 9, 2012, Vivend: SA granted to each shareholders one bonus share for each 30 shares held This transaction, realized by a
£279 million withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, resulted in the issuance of 416 million new shares with a nominal value of
€55 each and entitlement as from January 1, 2012

Dividends distributed by Maroc Telecom group

On May 31, 2012, Maroc Telecom group paid to its shareholders a cash dividend of MAD 9 26 per common share with respect to fiscal year
2011, representing MAD 4 3 billion (€331 millron) for Vivendi The Supervisory Board of Maroc Telecom group will propose at the Annual
Shareholders' Meeting, to be held on April 24, 2013, the payment of an ordinary dividend of MAD 7 4 per share, which corresponds ta 100%
of distributable earnings with respect to fiscal year 2012 This dividend will be paidin cash on May 31, 2013
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1.2 Major events since December 31, 2012

The major events that have occurred since December 31, 2012 were as follows

January 9, 2013 US court ruling 1n the lawsuit between Vivendi and Liberty Media Corporation (please refer to Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012},

January 16, 2013 Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement (please refer to
Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012),

February 7, 2013 Vivend and Universal Music Group entered into a defmitive agreement to selt Parlophone Label Group, a unit of
EMI Recorded Music, to Warner Music Group for £487 million (approximately €600 million) to be pard 1n cash,

February 12, 2013 Lagerdere Holding TV, a 20% sharehotder of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivends, Canal+ Group and
Canal + France with the Panis Commercial Court Lagardére Group is seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the
entre cash surplus given over by Canal+ France {please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012), and

February 15, 2013 Vivendi and Universal Music Group signed a definitive agreement for the sale of Sanctuary Records to BMG for
£40 rrullign to be paud n cash
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2.1 Consolidated statement of earnings and adjusted statement of

earnings

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Margin from operations

Selling general and administrative expenses ex¢luding
amartization of intangible assets acquired through busingss
combinations

Resteucturing charges and other operating charges and
ncome

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through busmess
combinations

Impairment losses on ntangsble assets acquired through
busmess combinations

Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Meda Corporation
tigation i the United States

Qther incame

Other charges

EBIT

Income from equity affihates

Interest

Income from investments

Other financial mcome

Other financial charges

Earnings from continuing operations betore provision

for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Earnings from continuing operations

Earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings

Of which

Earmings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners
Non contralling mterests

Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - basic (in euros)

Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per
share - diluted {in euros)

in millions of euros, except per share amounts

Year ended December 31 YYear ended December 31
012 20m ZOE_ i
28,994 283 2899 28813
{14 364) {14 391) {14 364) {14 391)
14,630 14422 14,630 13,422
{8 995) {8401) {8°985) 8401)
(352} {161} (352} {161}
{487} {510)
(760) {397}
{945) -
22 1385
(235) {656}
2878 5,692 5283 5.360
138) {18) 138) 18)
(568) 1481) {568) (a81)
9 75 9 75
37 14
{210 {167)
2108 5105 4,686 5436
{1158} {1378) {1339} {1408}
949 ks
949 127 337 4029
164 2,601 2,550 2,952
785 1046 797 1076
[ RE) 209 196 230
D12 209 196 30

Revenues

Cast of revenues

Margin trom operations

Seling general and administrative expenses excluding
amontzation of ntangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Restructuning charges and other operating charges and
INCOMe

EBITA

Income from equity affiliates
Interest

Income from investments

Ad)usted samings from continuing operations befors
provision for income taxes
Prowision for mcome taxes

Adjusted net income before nen-controlling interests
OFf which

Adjusted netincome

Non controlling interests

Adjustad net income per share - basic {tn euros)

Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros}

Note: Earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share and adjusted net income per share |basic and diluted) for all periods
previously published have been adjusted in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one
bonus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with tAS 33 - Eamnings per share [please refer to Section 1 1 8 of this Financial Report}
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2.2 Earnings review

Adjusted net income amounted to €2,550 million {or €196 per share'} compared to €2,952 milhion {or €2 30 per share} in 2011 This
€402 million decrease (-13 6% in adjusted net income resulted primanly from

+  a €577 million decrease in EBITA to a total of €5,283 millien {compared to €5,860 m:llion in 2011} This change mainly reflected the
decline in the performances of SFR (-€678 million, including the €187 milhion restructunng charges), Maroc Telecom group
{-€102 million, including the €79 million restructunng charges), and Canal+ Group (-€38 million, including the -€51 mullion impact of
the acquisition of the D8 and D17 chaanels and the new activities in Poland, partially offset by the operating performances of
Activision Blizzard (+€138 million}, GVT (+€92 milhion), and Universal Music Group {(+£18 million} including -€98 mutlion in EMI
Recorded Music integration costs and restructuring charges,

e €87 million increase in interest expense, resulting fram the impact of the increase in the average outstanding Financial Net Debt
{-€127 million), partially offset by the decrease of the average interest rate on Financial Net Debt {(+840 million},

e 3 €66 millon decrease maimly attnbutable to the balance of the contractual dividend paid by GE to Vivend: in January 2011 as part
of the completion of the sale by Vivend of its interest in NBC Universal,

= €20 mdlion decrease resulting from income from equity affihiates,

o a €69 million decrease in Income tax expense This change notably reflected the impact of the decline 1n the group's business
segments taxable income (+€264 million), primanly related to SFR, partially offset by the €181 mullion decrease in current tax
savings related to Vivendi SA’s tax group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems This decrease notably included the impact
of the changes in French Tax Law in 2011 and 2012, mainly the capping of the deduction for tax losses carned forward at 50% of
taxable income (compared to 60% 1n 2011), and

e a3 €279 milion decrease in adjusted net income attnbutable to non-controlling interests, maily resulting from the acquisition 1n
June 2011 of Vodafone's non-controlling interest in SFR (€242 million)

Breakdown of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €28,994 million, compared to €28,813 million in 2011, a €181 million increase (+0 6%, or -0 7% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financral Report

Costs of revenues amounted to £14,364 million, compared to €14,391 mullion 1n 2011, 2 €27 million decrease (-0 2%)
Margwn from aperations increased by €208 mullion to €14 630 million, compared to €14.422 mullion 1n 2011 {+1 4%

Selling, general and admimistrative expenses, excluding the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €8,995 million, compared to €8,401 miflion in 2011, a €594 million increase {(+7 1%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
adminstrative expenses Depreciabion and amortization, exchiding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinatrons,
amounted to €2,682 million (compared to €2,534 millien in 2011}, an additional €148 million charge (+5 8%) This change primanly resulted from the
increase In the depreciation of telecommunication network assets at Maroc Telecom group and GVT

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €352 milion, compared to a net charge
of €161 mithon in 2011, a €191 mithon increase In 2012, they pnmanly included restructunng charges of SFR {E187 milhon) and Maroc
Telecom group (€79 million}, restructuring charges and integration costs at UMG (€98 mitlion), as well as transitzon costs incurred by Canal+
Group as part of the acquisition of the free-to-air channels D8 and D17 in France and the pay-TV platform “n“ i Poland (€11 million)
Mareover, in 2012, other operating charges included the €66 milion fine ordered aganst SFR by the French Competiton Authonty m
December 2012 In 2011, restructuring charges amounted to €100 milfion, of which €67 million at UMG and £19 million at Activision Bhzzard
In 2011, other operating charges included the €30 million fine ordered in September 2011 by the French Competition Authority on Canal+
Group, as part gf the audit related to the compliance with the commutments undertaken by Canal+ Group in connectian with the merger of
CanalSatelhte and TPS in January 2007

EBITA was £5,283 million, compared to €5,860 million in 2011, a £577 million decrease (-9 8%, or -107% at constant currency} For a
breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations was €487 million, compared to €510 million in 2011, a
€23 million decrease (-4 5%)

! For details of the adusted net ncome per share, please refer to Appendix 1 of this Financial Report
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Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations amounted to €760 million, compared to
£397 million (n 2011 1n 2012, they related to Canal+ France’s goodwill (€665 miflion] and certain goodwill and music catalogs of Universal
Music Group (€94 miilion) In 2011, they mainly related to Canal+ France's goodwill {6330 million)

As of December 31, 2012, based on the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012 regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the
United States, which was confirmed by the court in New York on January 9, 2013 and entered into record by the judge on January 17,
2013, Vivendi accrued a reserve for the full amount of the judgment (€345 mithon), representing, €765 miltion 1n damages and €180 million in
pre-judgment interest covering the penod from December 16, 2001 to January 17, 2013, at the rate of one-year US Treasury notes In
addition, the resesve regarding the Secunies Class Action in the United States was unchanged as of December 31, 2012, at €100 million
Please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Other income amounted to €22 mifiion, compared to €1,385 million 1n 2011 In 2011, 1t primanty included the impact related to the
settlement on January 14, 2011 of the litigation over the share ownership of PTC n Poland (61,255 million) and the sale n October 2011 of
UMG's interest in Beats Electronics (€89 milian)

Other charges amounted to €235 million, compared to €656 million in 2011 In 2012, they mainly included the €119 million impairment loss
on Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision in Poland and acquisition costs (EMI Recorded Music, and the strategic partnership in Poland} of
€63 millien In 2011, they mainly included the capital loss incurred in January 2011 on the sale of Vivendi's remaining 12 34% interest in
NBC Unwversal (€421 million, of which €477 million related to a foreign exchange loss atinibutable to the decline 1n value of the US dollar
since January 1, 2004} and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and vanous Brazihan States regarding the apphcation of ICMS
tax on Internet and Broadband services {€165 million)

EBIT was €2,878 million, compared to €5,682 million in 2011, a €2,804 million decrease {-493%) In addition to the dechne in EBITA
(-€577 million, of which -£678 million from SFR), this change mainly reflected the recognition in 2012 of the reserve accrual regarding the
Liberty Media Corporation hitigation {-€945 mulkion} and the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwiil (-€665 million} In 2011, the impact
related to the settlement of the litigation over the share ownership of PTC in Poland (€1,255 million), partialty offset by the capital loss
incurred from the sale of the remaining 12 34% wterest in NBC Universat (-€421 miflion), and the settlement of the past disputes between
GVT and various Brazihan States regarding the application of the ICMS tax (-€165 million)

Income from equity affiliates was a €38 million charge, compared to a €18 million charge in 2011

Interest was an expense of €568 million, compared to €481 milkon 1n 2011, a €87 million ncrease {(+18 1%}

In 2012, interest expense on borrowings amounted to €599 million, compared to €529 mrilion in 2011, a €70 million increase (+13 2%] This
change was mainly atiributable to the increase in the average outstanding borrowings to €17 1 bilhon 1n 2012 (compared to €13 7 billion 1n
2011}, pnmanly reflecting the smpact of the acquisitions of the 44% interest in SFR in June 2011 (E7 75 billian} and of EMI Recorded Music
in September 2012 (€1 4 billion), partially offset by the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 3 50% 'n 2012 (compared to
387% in 2011)

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €31 million in 2012, compared to €48 mitlion in 2011, a €17 million
decrease This change was attributable to the decrease in the average cash and cash equivalents to €3 4 billion in 2012 [compared to
€4 1 billion 1n 2011} and to the decrease In the average mcome rate to 0 91% 1n 2012 compared to 1 16% 0 2011)

Income from investments amounted to €9 millon, compared to €75 million in 2011 In 2011, 1t included €70 million attributable to the
balance of the contractual dividend paid by GE to Vivend on January 25, 2011 as part of the completion of the sale by Vivend) of its interest
in NBC Universal

Other financial income and charges amounted to a net charge of €173 million, compared to a net charge of €153 million n 2011, and
notably included foreign exchange losses on intercompany borrowings (-€105 million in 2012, compared to -€27 million in 2011) and fees
related to borrowings and dervative instruments (-615 milhonin 2012, compared to -€52 million in 2011) For more information, please refer
to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2012

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was 3 net charge of £1,339 million, compared to a net charge of €1,408 millian n 2011,
a €69 million decrease This change notably reflected the mpact of the decline in the group's business segments’ taxable income
(+£264 million), pnmanly related to SFR, partially offset by the decrease {-€181 million) 1n current tax sawings related to Vivend: SA's tax
group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems following the changes 1n French Tax Law in 2011 and 2012, manly the capping of the
deduction for tax losses carmed forward at 50% of taxable income {compared to 60% n 2011) The effective tax rate reported to adyusted net
income was 28 3% in 2012 {compared to 25 8% n 2011)

In addition, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €1,159 million, compared to a net charge of £€1,378 million 1n 2011, a
€219 million decrease In addition to the items that explained the increase in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this increase
reflected the change in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's tax group System, which was a €48 million charge (compared to a
€129 million charge 1n 2011}
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Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to £797 milion, compared to €1,076 million n 2011 The
€279 milhion decrease was primarily attributable to the impact of the acquisition of Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR (-€242 million), offset by
the operating performances of Actwiston Blizzard (+£34 million}

Earmings attributabie to non-controlling interests amounted to €785 mithon, compared to €1,046 million in 2011 The €261 midlion
decrease was mainly attributable to the impact of the acquisition of Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR {-€224 miilion), offset by the operating
performances of Activision Blizzard (+€41 million)

Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners amounted to £164 million {or €013 per share], compared to €2,681 million {or
€2 09 per share} wn 2011, a €2,517 million decrease In addition to the dechine in EBITA {-€577 million, of which -€678 million from SFRY, this
change mainly reflected the recognrtion in 2012 of the reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation {-€945 million) and
the imparrment of Canal+ France's goodwill {-€665 million), and in 2011, the impact related to the settlement of the litigation over the share
ownership of PTC in Poland (€1,255 million), partizlly offset by the capital loss incurred from the sale of the remaining 12 34% interest in
NBC Universal {-€421 milhon), and the settiement of the past disputes between GVT and vanious Brazihan States regarding the application of
the ICMS tax [-€165 million)

The reconciliation of earmings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners with adjusted net income |5 further descnbed in
Appendix 1 of this Financial Report In 2012, this reconcihation primarly included the reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Medra
Corporation litigation in the Urited States {-€945 million], the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwil! (-€665 mullion), and amortization and
other impairment losses on intangble assets acquired through business combinations (-€414 mullion, after taxes and non-controlling
interests) In 2011, this reconciliation pnimanly included the impact of the settlement of the litigation over the share ownershup of PTC in
Poland {+£1,255 million} and the sale in October 2011 of UMG's interest in Beats Elecironics (+£89 mullion), partiaily offset by the capital loss
incurred from the sale of Vivendi's remaining 12 34% interest in NBC Universal completed on January 25, 2011 {-€421 milhon, of which
-€477 million related to a foreign cumrency translation adjustment reclassified to earnings, which represented a foreign exchange loss
attnibutable to the decline in value of the US dollar since January 1, 2004} and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and various
Brazilian States regarding the apphcation of ICMS tax on internet and Broadband services (-€165 million} The reconciliation also included
the impairment of Canak+ France's goodwall (-€380 million} and the amortization and other impairment losses on intangible assets acquired
through business combinations {-€336 million, after taxes and non-controlling interests)
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3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comment. Vivend: cons:ders that the non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations [CFFO), cash flow from operations before
capital expenditures (CFFO before capex, net) and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes {CFAIT) are refevant indicators of the
group’s operating and financial performance These indicators should be considered in addition to, and not as substrtutes for, other GAAP
measures as reported in Vivend!'s cash flow statement, cantained in the group’s Consolidated Financial Statements

in 2012, cash flow from operations before capital expenditures {CFFQ before capex, net) generated by business segments amounted to
£7,872 million {compared to €8,034 million in 2011, a €162 million decrease {-20%) This change included the mcrease n EBITDA after
changes (n the group's net working capital (+€277 million}, notably thanks to the good performances of Actvision Blizzard (+£338 million),
Canal+ Group {+£108 million, and Maroc Telecom {+€94 million), despite the dechine in the performance of SFR (-€407 millign) Moreover, 1t
also reflected the Increase in content investments {(-6286 million), restructuring charges (-€75 million, primarily the impact of the voluntary
redundancy plan at Marac Telecom), as well as the impact of the dividend received in January 2011, as part of the completion of the sale of
Vivendi's interest in NBC Universal (-€70 mullion]

In 2012, capital expenditures, net amounted to €4,490 million {compared to €3,340 milion in 2011), a €1,150 million increase This change
included SFR's acquisition of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million in January 2012 and €150 millon in October 2011 Excluding the
acquisttion of mobile spectrum in 2012 and 2011, capital expenditures, net increased by €235 million {+7 4%), pnmanly attributable to the
geographical expansion of GVT's telecommurication network and to the development of its pay-TV business {+£242 million}

After capital expenditures, net, cash flow from operations (CFFO) generated by business segments amounted to €3,382 million (compared to
£4.694 million in 2041), a €1,312 million decrease Excluding the acquisition of mobile spectrum in 2012 and 2011, CFFO generated by
business segments amounted to €4,447 million (compared to €4,844 milhon in 2011), a €397 million decrease (-8 2%), primanly reflecting the
decline in SFR’s performance

In 2012, cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes paid (CFAIT} amounted to €1,854 million (compared to £2,884 milion n
2011), a €930 million decrease (-32 2%) The decrease in CFFO (-€1,312 million) and the increase in interest expense {-€87 million) were
partially offset by the €141 million decrease in cash payments of other items related to financial activities and by the €328 million decrease
In iIncome taxes paid, net The change in Income taxes paid, net mainly reflected the change from one fiscal year to another of the amount of
income tax installments for the current fiscal year and final settiements for the previous fiscal year paid by the group’s entities in the course
of the given year

Cash payments of other items related to financial activities notably included the net premium paid in connection with borrowings issued and
the early unwinding of interest rate hedging denvative instruments {-€74 millon} and the settlement of the past disputes hetween GVT and
various Brazilian States regarding the application of the ICMS tax on Internet and Broadband services (€7 million paid in 2012, compared to
£164 million paid in 2011) In addition, hedging currency risk transactions generated a net cash outflow of €52 million n 2012 {including a
€78 million foreign exchange loss attributable to the redemption in April 2012 of a $700 million bond), compared to an €8 million net cash
inflow 1n 2011
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{in mdlions of euros)
Revenues
Operating expenses excfuding depreciation and amortizatian
EBITDA
Restructuring charges paid
Content mvestments net
of which internally developed franchises and other games content assets at Activision Blizard
of which payments to artists and repertowre gwners net at UMG
Payments to arbsts and repertoire awners
Recoupment of advances and other movements

of which film and television nghts net at Canal+ Group
Acquisition of film and television nghts
Consummption of film and television rights

of which sparts nghts net at Canal+ Group
Acquisition of sports rights
Consumptian of sgorts nghts

Neutralizatien of change in provisions ingluded in EBITDA
Other cash operating items excluded from EBITDA
Qther changes in net working capitat
Net cash provided by opereting activitios before tncome tax pand
Drvidends receved from equity affiliates
of which balance of the contractual dividend paid by GE
Dwvidends recewved from unconsolidated companies
h flgw from ration: fore capital expanditures, net befar X, net
Capital expenditures net (capex net)
of which SFR{f}
Maroc Telecom Group
GVT
ash flgw from tions {CF
Interest paid net
Other cash 1tems related 1o financial actvities
of which  settlements with the Brazlian Authorsties regarding JCMS
foes and premium on borrawings issued/redeemned and eary unwinding of bedging
dervative mstruments
gans/fivsses) on currency transactions
Financial activities cash payments
Payment recerved from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivendi SA's French Tax Group
and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Dther taxes paid
Income tax (pard)received, net
flow fi erafl rintgrest and yncom ad (CFA

na* not applicable

a EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, (s descnbed in Section 4 2 of this Financial Report

tal

{b)
(e

(]
{d)

(e}
(e}

(b)
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Year ended December 31

012 2m € Change % Change

28994 28813 +181 -+ 5%
{20 641) [20 320 -321 16%
8353 84937 140 -16%
{189} (114} 15 -658%
{299) (13) 286 x230
{1081 {49) 59 x22
{647) 1569/ 58 98%
603 581 +27 +3 8%
44 {8) 36 x55
{760) {724) 36 50%
703 JG6 3 0 4%
57} (18t g9 x37
{654} {662) +8 +12%
672 695 23 -23%
18 32 -15 45 5%
(56) {100} +4 +44 0%
(31) 7 -24 x44

a0 {307) +397 na*
7.868 7952 -84 -1 1%
3 79 -76 96 2%

70 70 -100 0%

1 3 -2 -66 7%
1872 8,034 =162 -2.0%
{4 480) {3 340) 1150 34 4%
{2,736) {18039 527 512%
{457} (466} +9 +1 5%
{947) {705} 247 343%
3,382 4,694 -1,312 -28.0%
{568} {481) 87 181%
(98} {239) +141 +59 0%
{7} {164} +157 +857%

(3) 183} +74 +892%
(52} g £0 na"
1666) (720) +54 +7 5%
536 591 55 -93%

{1 298) {1681) +383 +22 i%
1762) {1,090) +328 +30 1%
1,954 2884 -930 -32.2%

b As presented in operating activities of Vivend's Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 5 3}

c Aspresented in investing activiies of Vivend:'s Statement of Cash Fiows {ptease refer to Section 5 3}

d Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as presented in

investing activities of Vivend)'s Statement of Cash Flows (please refer to Section 5 3)

e Aspresented in financing activities of Vivend!'s Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 5 3]

f  SFR's capital expendritures notably included a cash payment for 4G mobile spectrum of €1,065 million in 2012 and of €150 mullion in

201
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4 Business segment performance analysis

4.1 Revenues, EBITA, and cash flow from operations by business

segment
Year ended December 31
% Change at
{in milkons of euros) 2012 2011 % Change constant rate
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 1768 3482 +3 8% 42 3%
Universal Music Group 4544 4197 18 3% +31%
SFR 11288 12183 13% -13%
Maroc Telecom Group 2689 279 -18% -30%
GVT 1716 1,446 +187% +282%
Canal+ Group 5013 4657 +32% +32%
Non-core operations and others and elimination of intersegment
transactions (24} ) na* na*
Total Vivendi 28,994 28,813 + 6% -07%
EBITA
Activision Blizzard 1149 1,011 +136% +6 6%
Unversal Music Group 525 507 +3 6% +12%
SFR 1,600 2728 298% -298%
Maroc Telecom Group 987 1,088 94% -105%
GVT 4848 39 +23 2% +337%
Canal+ Group 663 0 54% 53%
Holding & Corporate {115) 100) -150% 130%
Non-core operations and others {14 {22} na* na"
Total Vivends 5,283 5,860 -9 8% -107%
Year ended December 31,
{in milhions of euros) 2012 2011 % Change
Cash flow from operatiens, before capnal expenditures, net {CFFQ before capex, net)
Activision Blizzard 1,161 979 +250%
Universal Music Group h28 495 +67%
SFR 3429 i -107%
Maroc Telecom Group 1,523 150 +15%
GVT 621 558 +11 3%
Canal+ Group 706 735 -39%
NBC Universal dwvidends - 70 -1000%
Holding & Corporate 183 t:¢)] -12 0%
Non-core operations and others {3) {12) na*
Total Vivendi 18712 8,0M -2 0%

Cash flow from opersations {CFFO}

Actrvision Blizzard 1,104 877 +259%
Unwversal Music Group 472 443 +6 5%
SFR 893 2032 -659%
Maroc Telecom Group 1,066 1035 +3 0%
GV (326) 147) x22
Canal+ Group 476 484 17%
NBC Universal dividends - 70 -100 0%
Ho!ding & Corporate (94} 184} 11 9%
Non-core operations and others 9 {16) na*
Total Vivendh 3382 4594 -28 0%

na* not applicable

Data presented above takes into account the consolidation of the following entities at the indicated dates
- atUnversal Music Group EMI Recorded Music {September 28, 2012), and
- atCanal+ Group D8and D17 {September 27, 2012), as well as "n” {November 30, 2012)
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4.2 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

Preliminary comments,

*  Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of Vivend:'s business segments and allocates the necessary resources to them based
on certain aperating performance indicators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA {Adjusted Eamings Before Interest and Income
Taxes) and EBITDA (Farmings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization)

s The dfference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acqured through business
combinations, the rmpairment of goodwill and other mtangibles acquired through business combinations and EBIT's “other
charges” and “other income” as defined in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December
31,2012

»  Asdefined by Vivends, EBITDA s calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Earnings, before depreciation
and amortization of tangible and intangible assets, restructuning charges, gains/llosses) on the sale of tangible and intangible
assets and other non-recurnng rtems (as presented tn the Consolidated Statement of Eamings by operating segment - Please
refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012}

Moreover, 1t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate EBITA and EBITDA differently from Vivendi, thereby
affecting comparability
+  The Vivend) group operates through six busmesses at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and interactive networks As of

December 31, 2012, Vivendi's ownership interest in each of these businesses was as follows

s Activision Blizzard 61 5%,

*  Universal Music Group [UMG) 100%.

» SFR 100%.

s  Maroc Telecom group 53%.

* GVT 100%, and

o Canal+ Group 100% {Canal+ Group holds an 80% interest in Canal+ France)
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Year ended December 31

9% Change at
{in milhons of euros, except for margins) 2012 2011 % Change constant rate
Activision 2370 2047 +158% +84%
Bhizard 1160 1082 +72% -12%
Distribution 238 303 -21 5% -26 7%
Total Revenues ' 3.768 3,432 +9 8% +2.3%
———
EBITDA 1315 1174 +120% + %%
Actvision 678 520 +304% +23 9%
Blizzard 463 483 -4 1% -119%
Distribution 8 3 - -13%
Total EBITA 1,149 1011 +13 6% +6 6%
EBITA margin rate {%/ 30 5% 295% +1pt
Cash flow from operatons (CFFO) 1104 877 +25.9%
Non-GAAP and US GAAP measures, as pubhished by Activision Blizzard’
Year ended December 31

(in millions of US dullars} 2012 2011 % Change
Activision 3072 2828 +86%
Blizzard 1609 1243 +294%
Distnbution 306 418 26 B%
Total non-GAAP nat ravenues 4,987 4,489 +111%

Enmination of non-GAAF adjustments {131) 266 na*
US GAAP nst revenues 4,856 4,755 +21%
Actvisian 970 851 +140%
Blizzard n? 496 +44 6%
Distribution 11 1
Total non-GAAP operating income 1,698 1,358 +25 0%
Non-GAAP aperating margin rate (%) 340% 303% +3 7 pts

Ehmmnation of non-GAAP adjustments (247) (30
US GAAP oparating income 1451 1328 +9.3%
Nst rev istrbution channel

Retail channels 3082 2512 +227%

Digital online channels {a) 1598 1559 +2 6%
Sub-total Actrvasion and Blizzard 4681 4071 +150%

Distribution 308 418 -76 8%
Total non-GAAP net revanues _ﬂ 4,489 +111%
Net revanues hy platform mix

Online subscriptions (b} 10M 1155 -73%

PC and ather (c} 1250 299 x42

Console 2201 2452 102%

Hand held 159 165 -3 6%
Sub-tatal Activistan and Bhzzard 4681 401 +150%

Dsstnbution 308 418 -26 8%
Total non-GAAP net revenues 4,987 4,489 +111%
Net revenues by geographic reqion
North Amenca 2514 2251 +117%
Europe 199 1 B85 +58%
Asia Pacific a77 152 +35 5%
Total non-GAAP net revenues Jﬁ. 5_& +111%

na* notapplicable

a  Includes revenues from subscriptions and memberships, licensing royalties, value-added services, downloadable content, digitally

distributed products and wireless devices

2 Tha recancifiation of US GAAP and non-GAAP data pubhshed by Actiiston Biizzard (net revenues and EBITA) to data relating to Activision Blizzard prepared by Yivend i
accordance with IFRS standards is described i Appendix 2 to this Financial fleport
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b Includes revenues from all World of Warcraft products, including subscriptions, boxed products, expansion packs, licensing royalties
and value-added services it also includes revenues from Calt of Duty Elite memberships

¢ Other revenues include standalone sales of toys and accessories products from Skylanders franchise, mohile sales and ather physical
merchandise and accessories

Revenues and EBITA

Higher than expected, Actision Blizzard's revenues were €3,768 million, up 98% (+2 3% at constant currency} compared to 2011, and
EBITA was £1,149 million, a 13 6% increase {+6 6% at constant currency} compared to 2011 These results take into account the accounting
principles requining that revenues and related cost of sales associated with games with an online component be deferred aver the estimated
customer service period The baiance of the deferred operating marg:n was up 10% to €1,000 millon as of December 31, 2012, compared to
€913 milion as of December 31, 2011

In North America and Europe combined, Activision Blizzard was the #1 console and handheld publisher for 2012 with the #1 and #3 best-
selling franchises®, Call of Duty and Skylanders In November 2012, Black Ops I became the first video game ever to cross the $1 billion mark
in 15-days* As of December 31, 2012, the Skyfanders franchise had generated, hfe-to-date, more than $1 bilhon i worldwide sales® In
January 2013, sell-through of Skylanders figures worldwide has exceeded 100 million®

In addition, Diablo I/f was the #1 best-sellng PC game, breaking PC-game sales records with more than 12 mill:on copies sold-through
worldwide twough December 31, 2012, and World of Wareraft® Mists of Pandana® was the #3 best selling PC game® As of December
31, 2012, World of Warcraft remains the #1 subscription-based MMORPG, with more than 9 6 million subscribers®

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Activision Blizzard's cash flow from operations amounted to €1,104 milhon, a €227 milhon increase compared to 2011 This performance
reflected the growth in EBITDA after changes in Activision Blizzard's net working capital (+£338 million), related to the success of the games
released n the fourth quarter of 2012

? Accoreing to The NPD Group, GfK Chart-Track and Activision Blizzard interna! estimates, icluding toys and accessones
4 Actording to Chart-Track retai! customer sell-through information intermal company estimates and screenrant com

5 According to Actvision Bhzzard imiemal estimates

8 At retail and accorching to The NPD Group GfK Chart-Track and Activision Blizzard imternal estmates
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422 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in mullions of euros except for margins} 012 2011 % Change constant rate
Physical sales 175 1789 18% 1%
Digital sales 1365 1105 +235% +16 8%
License and others 548 478 +146% +39%
Recorded music 3,669 {a) 3972 +88% +37%
Music pubtishing G661 638 +36% -10%
Merchandising and others 247 222 +113% +4 5%
Intercompany elimination {33) 135 na" na*
Total Revenues 4544 4,197 +1.3% +31%
EBITDA 674 (a) 623 +82% +5 0%
Recorded music 318 (a} KIiE] +# 6% +39%
Music publishing 186 183 +1 6% -24%
Merchandising and others 2 20 +50% -5 8%
Total EBITA 525 507 +3 6% +12%
EBITA margin rate (%) 116% 121% f5pt
Restructuring and integration costs (98) (67) -46 3%
EBITA exctuding restructuring and imtegration costs 4 +85% +55%
Cash Aow from operations (CFFO) 472 a3 +55%
Recorded music revenues by geographical area
Europe 40% 4%
North America 37% 6%
Asia 16% 15%
Rest of the world 7% 8%
100% 100%
~UMG" recorded music. sales of physical and digital albums and DVDs, in millions of units {b
Artist - Title 2012 Artist- Title 2011
Taylor Swaft - Red 51 Lady Gaga - Bom this way 59
Justin Bigber - Believe 29 Justn Bieber - Under The Mistletoe 28
Lana Del Rey - Bom To Die 27 Rihanna- Loud 27
Rod Stewart - Merry Christmas Baby 26 Rihanna - Talk That Talk 28
Rihanna - Unapologetic 23 LilWayne - Tha Carter IV 24
Maroon 5 - Overexposed 22 AmyWinehouse - Lioness Hidden Treasures 24
Madonna - MDNA 18  Drake - Take Care 19
Gatye - Making Mirrors 17 Kanye West & Jay Z- Watch The Throne 17
Lionel Richie - Tuskegee 15  Amy Winehouse - Batk to Black 17
Nicki Minaj - Pink Frigay  Roman Reloaded 14 |MFAQ - Sory for Party Rocking 17
Total 242  Total 258

na* notapplicable

a Includes EMI Recorded Music (retained businesses) revenues and EBITA consolidated since September 28, 2012, for €279 million {of
which €148 million for physical sales and €79 million for digital sales) and -€2 million, respectively

b Atconstant perimeter
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Revemres and EBITA

Universal Music Group's {UMG) revenues were €4.544 million, an 8 3% increase compared to 2011 At constant penmeter {excluding
revenues from EMI Recorded Music, acquired at the end of September 2012), revenues were up 1 6% thanks to growth in recorded music
sales in North Amenca and favorable currency movements At constant currency and at constant perimeter, revenues were down 3 3% with
2 10 0% increase in digital sales and higher license income offset by the decline in physical sales Digital sales represented 44% of recorded
music sates compared to 38% n the prior year

Recorded music best sellers notably included new releases from Taylar Swift, Justin Bieber, Maroon 5, Rihanna, Nicki Minaj, Lana Del Rey,
Gotye, Carly Rae Jepsen, Cecilia Bartoll, Daniel Barenboim, Rolando Villazén, and Mylene Farmer

UMG's EBITA of €525 million was up 3 6% compared t0 2011 Excluding EMI Recorded Music and at constant currency, EBITA was up 1 5%,
strengthened by cost reduction policy

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

UMG's cash flow frem operations amounted to €472 million, a €29 million increase compared to 2011 This includes the impact of the
integration of EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012 {-€18 mullion, including restructunng and Integration costs paid for
€37 miilion), which was more than offset by UMG's operating performances {EBITDA after changes n net working capital increased by
€69 mllion), the proceeds from the sale of certain content assets from UMG's catalag (€25 million), and a decrease in restructuring charges
pad by UMG (€14 million)
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423 SFR
Year ended December 31,

{in millions of suros, except for margins) 2012 2011 % Change
Mobile service revenues 7,006 7.885 -111%
Equipment sales, net 510 567 -10 1%

Mobile 1,516 8,452 11 1%

Broadband Internet and Fixed 3,963 4,000 -09%

Intercompany elimination (181} (269) +29 0%

Total Revenues 11.288 12,183 -713%

EBITDA 3,299 3.800 -13.2%

EBITA 1,600 2,218 -298%

EBITA margin rate (%) 142% 187% 4 5pts

Restructuring costs (187 (12} x156

EBITA excluding restructuring costs 1,787 2,290 -20%

Capital expenditures, net (capex net) (a) 2,136 1,809 +51 2%

of which acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1,065 150 x71
capital expenoitures, net excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1671 1,659 +7%

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) 693 2,032 -65 9%

of which acquisitions of mobile spectrum {1,065} {150} x71
cash flow from operations excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1,758 2,182 -184%

Mohile

Number of customers {in thousands})

Postpaid (b} 16,563 16,566 -
Prepaid 4127 4897 -157%

Total SFR Group 20,690 21,463 -3 6%

Mobile customer base market share {c} 28 3% 313% -3 pts

12-month rolling ARPU {in euros/year) (d)

Postpaid 417 462 97%
Prepaid 112 136 -17 6%

Blended ARPU 344 378 -8 0%

Acquisition cost compared to mobile service revenues {in %) 71% 76% 05pt

Retention cost compared to mobile service revenues (In %) 91% 82% +0 9pt

Residential broadband Internet and Fixed

Number of broadband Internet customers {in thousands) 5075 5019 (g +11%

ADSL customer base market share 22 5% (f) 235% -1pt

o

Includes M2M {Machine to Machine) customers

o

Source Arcep

Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

d Includes mobile terminations ARPU {Average Revenue Per User) s defined as revenues net of promotions and net of third-party content
provider revenues, excluding roaming in revenues and equipment sales divided by the average Arcep total customer base for the last

twelve months ARPU excludes MZM {Machine to Machine} data

e  On December 31, 2011, the Broadband Intemnet customer base was adjusted by 23,000 customers following the removal of 1P and 2P

Akéo customers from the consohdation penmeter
f  SFRestimate for 2012
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Revenues and EBITA

SFR revenues’ amounted to €11,288 miflion, a 7 3% dacrease compared to 2011 due to the progressive impact of price cuts related to the
competitive envisonment and to price cuts imposed by the regulators® Excluding the impact of these regulatory decistons, revenues
decreased by 3 3%

Mob:le® revenues amounted to £7,516 million, an 11 1% decrease compared to 2011

During the fourth guarter, SFR’s postpaid mobile customer base increased by 109,000 additions At the end of 2012, SFR's postpaid mobile
customer base reached 16 563 million, stable compared to 2011 The customer mix [the percentage of the number of postpa:d customers in
the total customer base} amounted to 80 1%, a 2 9 percentage point increase year-on-year SFA's total mobile customer base reached
20 690 million Mobile Internet usage continued to progress, with 49% of SFR customers equipped with a smartphone {41% at the end of
2011)

SFR became the first French operator to open the 4G network to the mass market and enterprises After Lyon on November 29, 2012, the 4G
network was launched n Montpellier and Paris-La Défense Four additianal cities will open in the first half 2013 This offer includes the
availability of a2 wide range of compatible equipment and 1s based on « Formules Carrées » packages

SFR alsg introduced a new pricing policy in January 2013 offening the best value/price ratio on the market both for its low-cost offers and its
premium offers, the latter remaining the chotce of the majortty in the French market

Broadband Internet and fixed revenues® amounted to €3,963 million, a 0 9% decrease compared to 2011, and a 0 3% increase excluding the
impact of regulated price cuts

At the end of 2012, the postpaid broadband Internet residential customer base reached 5075 million, with 56,000 net additions'® year-on-
year The customer base for the quadruple play offer |“ MuitrPack de SFR™) reached 1 8 milion at the end of 2012

SFR’s EBITDA amounted to €3,299 million, a 13 2% decrease compared to 2011 Excluding negative and positive non-recurring rtems
{-€15 milhion 1n 2012 and +€93 million in 2011}, EBITDA decreased by 10 6%

EBITA amounted to €1,600 million, a 29 8% decrease Excluding negative and positive non-recurring items and restructurning charges, EBITA
decreased by 18 0%

In 2012, SFR launched an adaptation plan while continuing to mvest in 4G and fiber infrastructures and adapt its organization to changing
market conditions |n November, SFR announced a voluntary redundancy plan with a target of 856 net departures

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

SFR's cash flow from operations amounted to €693 million, a 65 9% decrease compared to 2011 This change notably included the impact of
the acquisition of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million in 2012, compared to €150 million 1n 2011 Excluding these impacts, cash flow from
operations amounted to £1,758 miilion, compared to €2,182 million in 2011, a €424 million decrease {-19 4%), pnimanly due to the decrease
In EBITDA after changes 1n net working capital (-€407 milhon)

? Followng the drsposat of 100% of Débrtef France SA to La Fosts Talécom SAS Débrtel France SA, with a customer base of 290 000 has been excluded from the consohdation
penmeter since March 1, 2011
® Tanff cuts imposed by regutatory decision
1) 33% decrease in mobrle voice termination reguiated price on July 1 2011 a 25% additional decrease on January 1, 2012 and a further 33% decrease on July 1, 2012
1) 25% decrease it SMS termnation reguiated price on July 1, 2011 and a 33% additional decrease on July 1, 2012 In adehtion to asymmetnic tariff in favor of Free,
i) Roaming tanff cuts on July 1, 2011 and July 1 2012, and
v} 40% decrease in fuced vorce tarmination regulated price on October 1, 2011 and a 50% additonal decrease on July 1, 2012
? Motnis revenuss and broadband Internet and fixed revenues are determined as revenuas before elmmnation of intersegment operations within SFR
1At the end of December 2011, SFR group broadband internet residantial customer base totaled 5 019 mihon foflowing the exclusion of 1P and 2P Akdo customers from the
consolidation perimeter
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Year ended December 31,

% Change at
{in millions of euros except for margins) 2012 20M % Change constant rate
Mobile service revenues 1,529 1,615 53% H6%
Equipment sales, net 45 87 32 8% 338%
Mobile 1,574 1,682 6 4% 17%
Broadband Internet and Fixed 601 660 -39% -103%
Intercompany elimination {87 {119) na® na*
Morocco 2,088 2223 61% 14%
International 638 539 +184% +177%
{ntercompany elimination {37} {23) na* na*
Total Revenues 2,689 2,739 -1.8% -30%
Total EBITDA 1,505 1,500 +0.3% -09%
EBITOA margin rate {%) 56 0% 54 8% +12pt
Morocco 830 1,000 -170% -181%
International 157 89 +764% +75 1%
Total EBITA 887 1,089 -9 4% -105%
Restructuring charges {79} - na*
EBITA excluding restructuring charges 1.066 1,089 -21%
Margin rate (%] 396% 398% 42 pt
Capital expenditures, nat {capex net) 457 466 -19%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO} 1,066 1,035 +30%
Morocco
Number of mobile customers {in thousands)
Prepaid 16,656 16,106 +34%
Postpaid 1,199 1019 +17 7%
Total 17.855 17,126 +4 3%
Mobile ARPU (in MAD/month) 79 87 92%
MoU {in min/month) 122 85 +43 5%
Mobile churn rate {in %/year) (a} 208% 233% -25pts
Postpaid 15 5% 134% +21pts
Prepaid 22 2% 248% -26pts
Number of fixed lines {in thousands) 1,269 1,241 +23%
Number of Broadband Internet customers {in thousands) (b} 683 891 #156%
{nternational
Number of customers {in thousands)
Mabile 12,685 9,626 +31 8%
Fixed 298 299 03%
Broadband Internet 90 99 91%

na* not applicable

a  Excluding the impact of non-recurrent termination of inactive customers

b Includes narrowband and leased line accesses
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Revenues and EBITA

Maroc Telecom group’s revenues were €2,689 million, a 1 8% decrease compared to 2011 (-3 0% at constant currency) The group's overall
customer base mainta:ned positive momentum in 2012 with a 13 5% increase and reached nearly 33 millien customers, primarily due to a
30 4% increase in the international market year-on-year

Operations in Moracco generated revenues of €2,088 million, a 6 1% decrease compared to 2011 (-7 4% at constant currency) This change
reflected the successive cuts in mobile termination rates carmed out in January and July 2012, the additional price cuts in the mobile
segment (-34 6%}, and the decrease In fixed-line revenues under competitive pressure from the mobile segment The economic slowdown
and competitive environment continued to be very intense

The group's international activities generated revenues of €638 million, a strong 18 4% growth compared to 2011 (+17 7% at constant
currency) This performance resulted from very strang growth among mobile customers (+31 8%), enhanced product offers and higher
customer usage in 3 stable competitive environment Despite the conflict in Mali, the growth in revenues continued at a very sustained
place (+15 7% at constant currency)

The group's EBITDA amounted to €1,505 milhion, a 0 3% in¢rease compared to 2011 (-0 8% at constant currency) This performance reflected
a strong 43 5% growth (+42 6% at constant currency) in international EBITDA, which offset the 6 6% decline in EBITDA n Morocco EBITDA
margin increased by 1 2 percentage point year-on-year, reaching the high level of 56 0%

The group’s EBITA amounted to €987 milhon, a 9 4% dectine compared to 2011 {-10 5% at constant currency) Excluding restructuring
charges of €79 million, EBITA amounted to €1,066 million, a 2 1% decrease, representing a 39 6% margin, a modest 0 2 percentage point
decrease

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Maroc Telecom group’s cash flow from operations amounted to €1,066 million, a €31 mithon increase compared to 2011 (+3 0%), pnmarily
due to the wncrease (n EBITDA after changes in net working capital (€94 million) and to the reduction in capital expenditures, net
{+€9 mullion), which was partially offset by the restructuring charges paid {-679 millian)
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425 GVT
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
(in millions of euros, except for margins) 2012 20m % Change constant rate
Telecoms 1,633 1,444 +131% +22 1%
Pay-TV (a) ] 2 na* na*
Total Revenues 1,116 1,446 +18 7% +28.2%
Telecoms 749 616 +21 6% +31 6%
Pay-TV (a) {9) {15} na* na*
Total EBITDA 740 601 +23 1% +33 4%
EBITDA margin rate {%) 431% 416% +15pt
EBITA 488 39% +232% +33 T%
EBITA margin rate (%) 284% 27 4% +1pt
Total Capital expenditures, net (capex net) 947 105 +34 3%
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ} (326} (147} x22
Net Revenues (IFRS, in millions of BRL)
Voice 2.577 2,081 +23 8%
Pay-TV {a) 211 4 na"
Corporate and carrier data 263 235 +11 9%
Broadband Internet 1,188 472 +22 2%
VolP 61 652 -1 6%
Total 4,300 3354 +282%
Number of covered cities 139 19 +20
Net Revenues by region
Region Il 59% 63% -4 pts
Regions 1 &I 1% 37% +4 pts
Total homes passed (in thousands of lines) 9,095 1207 +26.2%
Number of lines in service {in thousands)
Retail and SME 5515 4,372 +26 1%
Voice 3358 2709 +24 0%
Broadband Internet 2157 i 663 +297%
Fraportion of offers = 10 Mbps 80% 75% +5pts
Corporate 3.154 1,954 +61 4%
Total Télécoms 8,669 6,326 +37 0%
Pay-TV (a} 406 32 na*
Total 9,075 6,358 +#27%
Net New Additions {in thousands of fines}
Retall and SME 1,143 1,337 -145%
Voice 543 759 156%
Broadband Internet 494 568 130%
Corporate 1,200 757 +58 5%
Total Télécoms 2.343 2,094 +119%
Pay-TV (a) 374 32 na*
Total 217 2126 +27 8%
ARPU by line - Retail and SME (BRL/month)
Voice 648 669 31%
Broadband Internet 508 580 12 2%

na® not applicable
a  GVT launched sts pay-TV offer in October 2011
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Revenues and EBITA

GVT's revenues reached €1,716 m:llion, an 18 7% increase compared to 2011 (+28 2% at constant currency), excluding the impact of tax
changes (VAT), revenues increased by 35% at constant currency In 2012, GVT expanded its coverage to 20 additional cities and currently
covers 139 cites As a result of commercial efforts and geographical network expansion, GVT Telecom lines-in-service reached
8 669 million, a 37 0% increase year-on-year After only one year in operation, its pay-TV service generated revenues of €83 million

GVT was named the best Broadband service in Brazil for the 4" consecutive year, offering the most modem and differentiated network in
Brazil At the end of 2012, 44% of its customers opted for speeds equal to or higher than 15 Mbps, compared to 37% one year ago

Launched commercially in January 2012, the number of subscribers to s new pay-TV service totaled about 406,000 as of
Decernber 31, 2012, representing an 18 8% penetration rate among the broadband customer base Dunng 2012, GVT's share of the net adds
of the entire Brazilian pay-TV market reached 11 4%, and when considering only the citres where 1t operates, GVT's share of net adds
reached 27 7%

GVT's EBITDA was €740 millon, a 23 1% increase compared to 2017 (+#33 4% at constant currency) and EBITDA margin reached the record
level of 43 1%, or 45 9% for the telecom activitres only

GVT's EBITA was €488 million, a 23 2% increase compared to 2011 (+33 7% at constant currency and +57 5% excluding the impact of the
VAT change and at constant currency)

GVT's capital expenditures amounted to €947 million, a 34 3% increase compared to 2011, of which approximately €248 million related to
the pay-TV business GVT reached break-even on an EBITDA-Capex basis for its telecom activities

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

GVT's cash flow from operations amounted to -€326 miilien, compared to -€147 mitlign in 2011 This change reflected the increase in GVT's
capital expenditures, net to £347 million in 2012, compared to €705 million in 2011, which was primarily related to investments in netwarks
In order to increase coverage m regions | and Nll, as well as investments relating to the pay-TV operations However, cash flow from
operations before capital expencitures (CFFO before capex, net) ingreased by 11 3% in 2012, to €621 mullion, reflecting the growth in EBITDA
after changes m net working capital
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426 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31
% Change at
{in mithons of euros, except for margins) mz 201 % Change constant rate
Revenues (a} 5,013 4857 +32% +32%
EBITDA 940 913 +3 0% +31%
EBITA 663 m -54% -53%
EBITA marqin rate (%} 132% 14 4% -1Z2p
DB D17 and “n*integration {including transition costs) {51) -

EBITA excluding D8 D17 and “n" integration (including transition costs) 74 m +19%
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) 476 484 -17%
Subscnptions {in thousands)

Pay TV Franca (b) 2680 9760 50

Canal+ Overseas (c) 1683 1456 +227
Canal+ France 11 363 11216 +147
Poland {at censtant penmeter) and Vietnam 1,882 1730 +152
Total Canal+ Group at constant perimeter 13,245 12946 +239
*n" platform in Poland 1009 na" +1 009
Total Canal+ Group 14,254 12,946 +1,308
Churn, per digital subscniber {(Maintand France) 136% 121% +iapt
ARPU, 1n euros per subscnber (Mainland France} 480 475 +11%

a Includes the D8 and D17 free-to-air channels, consolidated since September 27, 2012, as well as the “n” platform, consclidated since
November 30, 2012 The contribution of these entities to Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to €41 million, since their respective
cansolidation date For information, revenues and EBITA of D8, D17, and “n” amounted to €287 million and -€35 millon i 2012,
respectively

b Includes subscriptions with commitment at Canal+ and CanalSat, as well as subscriptions with no commitment at CanalPlay Infirity n
Mainland France

¢ Includes French overseas territones and Africa

Revenues and EBITA

Canal+ Group's revenues were €5,013 million, a 32% intrease compared to 2011 (+2 4% at comparable penmeter, 1 e excluding D8, D17
and the new activities in Poland)

At the end of December 2012, Canal+ France, which includes Canal+ Group's pay-TV activities in France and French-speaking countries, had
11 363 milhon subscriptions, representing a net growth of 147,000 year-on-year This growth was driven by strong performances at Canal+
Overseas {in French overseas territories and primarily n Africa), which had 1633 milion subscriptions at vear-end, a net grewth of
227,000 subscriptions, compared to 2011 In mainland France, the subscnption portfolio reached 9 680 million, a shight decrease compared to
2011 due to a ditficult economic and competitive environment Average revenue per subscnber increased shghtly to €48, particularly
reflecting improved cross-selling between Canal+ and CanalSat offerings

Revenues from other Canal+ Group activities grew strongly thanks to StudioCanal and new nternational actwitigs {notably in Pofand and
Vietnam), as well as to free-to-air TV

Excluding the impact of D8, D17 and the new activities in Poland {as well as transition costs), Canal+ Groups EBITA amounted to
£714 million, a 1 9% increase year-on-year, thanks to Canal+ Overseas’ growth, natably in Africa, and despite the negative impact of a VAT
nse {around €40 mitlion) Including the impact of the integration of the new actvities in Poland and of D8 and 017, Canal+ Group's EBITA
reached €663 million

On January 31, 2013, Canal+ Group renewed its exclusive nights to England's Premier League, the world's most widely broadcast football
championship, for the coming three seasons As a result, it will be positioned to offer 1ts subscribers the best French and European soccer,
with the top two of the Ligue 1, the top Champions League and 100% of the English Premier League In addition, Canal+ Group announced
on February 14, 2013, that it had secured exclusive rights in France to the Formula 1 world champienship

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Canal+ Group's cash flow from operations amounted to €476 milhon, compared te €484 million in 2011 The faverable evolution n EBITDA
after changes in net working capital were offset by the increase in content investments, net {notably StuchoCanal)
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42.7 Holding & Corporate

Year ended Decernber 31,

{in mullions of euros) 2012 2011

EBITA (115) (100}
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) (94} (84}
EBITA

Holding & Corporate’s EBITA was -£115 million, compared to -€100 mullion 1n 2011, due notably to higher itigation costs and several one-
time (tems

Cash flow from operations (CFF0)

Holding & Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€94 millien, compared to -€84 million 1n 2011 The change in cash flow from
operatiens between 2011 and 2012 was mainly attributable to the change in EBITA

428 Non-core operations and others

Year ended December 31,

{in millons of eurgs) 2012 2011

Non-core operations and others 65 4

Eliminatien of intersegment transactions {89) {82)

Total Revenues {24) (41}

EBITA (14) {22)

Cash flow from aperations {CFFOQ) {9) {16}
Revenues and EBITA

Revenues from non-core operations amounted to €65 million, a €24 million increase, following the 2012 contribution of Digitick (€17 mellion
n 2012, compared to €9 million in 2011), and of See Tickets {€33 million in 2012, compared to €12 million n 2011} acquired on
August 23, 2011

tBITA from non-core operations amounted to -€14 mithon 1n 2012, compared to -€22 mithon wn 2011 This increase was mainly due 1o the
contribution of See Tickets (E11 million in 2012, compared to €4 million in 2011}
Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

Cash flow from operations from non-core operations amounted to -€9 millon, compared to -€16 million in 2011 This change was mainly
related to the change in EBITA
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5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments:

5.1

Vivend: considers Financial Net Debt, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator in measuring Vivendi's indebtedness Financial Net
Debt is calculated as the sum of long-term and short-term borrowings and other tong-term and short-term financial liabilities as reported
on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equvalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Posttion as well as dervative financial nstruments in assets, cash deposits backing borrowings, and certain cash management
financial assets (included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”} Financial Net Debt should be
considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
as well as other measures of :ndebtedness reported in accordance with GAAP Vivendi Management uses Financial Net Debt for reporting
and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants of Vivendi

In addrtion, cash and cash equivalents are not fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, including but
not limited to, acquisitions of businesses, capital expenditures, dividends, contractual obligations and working capital

Summary of Vivendi’s exposure to credit and liquidity risks

Vivendi’s financing policy consists of incurring long-term debt, mainly in bond and banking markets, at a varable or fixed rate, in euros or n
US dollars, depending on general carporate needs and market conditions

Non-current financial debts are primarily raised by Vivend: SA, which centralizes the group’s financing management, except for Actvision
Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group In this context, n 2012, Vivend: pursued its policy of disintermediation, having recourse In
prionity to the bond market Vivend: also sought to diversify 1ts investor base by 1ssuing on the American bond market and pursued
its policy of maintaining the “economic” average term of the group’s debt above 4 years In addition, Vivend: has a Euro Medium
Term Notes program on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which 1s renewed each year, in order to take advantage of every euro
bond market opporturuty Vivend:'s bank counterparties must meet certain cntena of financial soundness, reflected in their credit rating
with Standard & Poor's and Moody's Moreover, to comply with the ratng agencies’ prudential regulations regarding hguidity
management, Vivend! arranges to the extent possible, the refinancing of all expiring bank credit facities or bonds one year 1n
advance As a result, n 2012, Vivend: made three bond issuances i euro for a total amount of €2,250 million (January, Aprl and
December 2012), and one issuance in US dollars for $2,000 million (Apnil 2012)

Contractual agreements for credit facilities granted to Vivend: SA do nat nclude provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to 1ts
financial ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and at the end of each half-
year, Vivend SA 1s notably required to comply with a financ:al covenant {please refer to Note 22 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012) The credit facilities granted to group companies other than Vivendi SA are
intended to finance either the general needs of the barrowing subsidiary or specific projects

In 2012, iInvestments, working capital, debt service {including the redemption of borrowings), and the payment of income taxes and
the dividend distribution, were financed by cash flow from operations, net, asset d:sposals, and borrowing or share 1ssuances
{Direct 8 and Direct Star) For the foreseeable future and based on the current financial conditions on the financial market, subject
to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change 1n scope. Vivend intends to maintain
this financing policy for its investments and operations

As of December 31, 2012

The group’s bond debt amounted to €10,888 million (compared to €3,276 million as of December 31, 2011} In 2012, Vivend: 1ssued
bonds in euras and in US dollars for a total amount of €3,758 million and redeemed bonds for a total amount of €2,048 million (of
which $700 million {or €448 million) were early redeemed 1n Apnil/May 2012) For additional information on this bond debt. please
refer to Section 54 below The group's bond debt represented 61% of the borrowings in the Statement of Financial Position
{compared to 59% as of December 31, 2011}

The total amount of the group’s confirmed credit facilities amounted to €9,039 milkion {compared to €12,083 million as of
December 31, 2011) The group’s aggregate amount of credit facilities naither drawn nor backed by commercial paper amounted to
€3,361 miltlion (compared to €6,635 million as of December 31, 2011) The decrease in the amount of credit facilities neither drawn
nor backed by commercial paper was notably due to the disintermediation policy, the increase in the outstanding amount of
commercial paper, and the financing of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by drawing on credit facilities

Vivend: SA’s and SFR's total confirmed credit facilities amounted to £€8,340 million as of December 31, 2012 (including €2 billion in
avallable swinglines), compared to €11,242 million as of December 31, 2011 All these credit facilities have a matunty greater than
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one year These credit faciities were drawn for €1,834 million as of December 31, 2012 Considering the €3,255 million
commerc:al paper 1ssued at that date and backed to bank credit facilities, these facilities were available up to a maximum amount
of €3,191 mullion

= Inconnection with its appeal of the verdict rendered in the Liberty Media Corperation litigation, Vivendi wili shortly deliver a letter
of credit rssued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporatian, for €375 million ([damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) The latter was guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivendi has signed a
Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivend: to re:mburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the
letter of credit The Reimbursement Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those
contained in Vivend:'s credit facilities In certain circumstances, these provisions could cause Vivendi to have fo post cash
collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, if one of the 15 banks defaults in respect of its obligations and was not
able to 1ssue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of America, Vivend) could be caused to substitute such
bank with another bank or, as a last resart, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such bank’s participation in the
letter of credit

e The short-term borrowings mainly included 1ssued commercial paper The “economic” average term of the group’s debt was
4 4 years [compared to 4 0 years as of December 31, 2011)

*  Finally, there 1s no restriction on the use of the financial resources which the group’s companies benefit {including Vivend: SA) that
may matenally affect, directly or indirectly, the group's activities

On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's remaved the credit watch negative that it had placed on Vivendi's debt on July 4, 2012 and
confirmed the rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating, which 1s used as a reference for
the 1ssuance program of commercial paper Vivend reaffirmed its commitment to maintaining such credit rating

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, Vivend SA and SFR had available confirmed credit facilities amounting to £8,340 million, of which €500 million were
drawn Considering the amount of commercial paper ssued at that date, and backed on bank credit facilities for £3,991 million, these
facilities were available for an aggregate amount of £3,849 million Moreover, the sale of Parlophone Label Graup, announced on February 7,
2013, for £487 million {please refer to Note 2 1 to the Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012), should be
finalized during the second half of 2013

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by 1ts operating activities, its cash and cash equivalents,
as well gs the amounts available through its current bank credit facilities will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital
expenditures, service 1ts debt (including the redemption of borrowings), pay 1ts income taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial
Investment projects, If any, for the next twelve manths, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the
group’s change in scope In addition, Vivend: considers that the bank commitments received on September 28, 2012 to cover the letter of
credit to be soon put in place i connection with its appeal of the Liberty Media Corporation litigation will be sufficient to suspend
enforcement of the judgment by Liberty Media Corporation until the appeal 1s resolved
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5.2 Financial Net Debt changes

As of December 31, 2012, Vivend!'s Financial Net Debt amounted to £13,419 milhion (compared to €12,027 million as of December 31, 2011}, a
£1.392 million increase This change notably reflected the following transactions

- the impact of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music (1,329 million, of which £1,363 million paid in cash and €34 million net cash
acquired) and the 40% interest in N-Vision [€277 million, exciuding the redemption of the loan granted by Canal+ Group to ITl in
November 2011}, for further details please refer to Section 1 1 above,

- the cash payments related to capital expenditures (84,490 million, of which €1,065 million was paid in January 2012 by SFR for 4G
mobile spectrum),

- the diidends paid notably to shareowners of Vivendi SA (€1,245 million), Maroc Telecom SA (€345 mullion), and Activision Blizzard
{€62 million), and the impact of Activision Blizzard's stock repurchase program {£241 million}, and

- Interest expense (E568 million),

- the above items being offset by net cash generated by operating activities of business segments (€7,106 millien) and by the capital
increase subscribed by employees in connection with Vivendi SA’s employee stock purchase plan in July 2012 (€127 million)

Refer to Notes to the
Consolidated December 31 2012 December 31, 2011

{in millions of euros) Financial Statements

Borrowings and other financial iabilities 17,797 15710
of which fong-term (a) 22 12 667 12,409
short-term (a) 22 5090 3301

Cash management financial assets (b} (c} 15 {301} (266}
Dervative financial mstruments in assets (b} 15 {137} {101}
Cash deposits backing borrowings (b} 15 (6} (12}
17313 15,331

Cash and cash equivatents (a} 17 {3 894) {3.304)
of which Actiision Blizzard {2,989) {2 448}
Financial Net Debt 13419 12021

a As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
b Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

¢ Prnmanly included Activision Blizzard's US treasuries and government agency securities, with a maturity exceeding three months

Cash and cash Borrowings and other  Impact on Financial Net
{n milons of euros) equivalents financial items {a) Debt
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2011 {3.304) 15,331 12,027
QutflowsAinflows) generated by
Operating activities {7,106) - {7 106}
Investing activities 6042 21 6063
Financing activities 27 2085 2512
Foreign currency translation adjustments 47 (124 7
Change in Financial Net Debt over the perigd {590) 1,982 1,392
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2012 (3.894) 12,313 13,419

a  "Other fiancial tems” include commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, dervative financial instruments (assets and
labilities), cash deposits backing borrowings, as well as cash management financial assets
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{in milians of euras)

EBIT

Adjustments

Content investments net

Gross cash providad by operating activities befors incoms tax pard
Other changes in net working caprtal

Net cash provided by opersting activities bafore income tax paid
Income tax paid net

Operating nctivities

Financial investments
Purchases of consolidated companies after acquired cash
of which acquisitton of EM! Recordad Music by Vivendr and UMG
Papment in cash
Nef cash acquired
Invastments it equity affilates
of wheeh scquisition of 40% interast in N Vision by Canale Group
Incraasa in financial assets
Total financial investments
Finencial divestments
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after divested cash
(esposal of aquny affiliates
Detreasa in financial assets
of which redemption of the foan granted by Canal+ Group to 1T
Total linanzinl drvestments
Financial investment activites
Dmadends recerved from equity affiliates
Dradends received from unconsohdated companies

Year ended Decernber 31 2012

Neti ing excluding capital expenditures and p
from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets
Capital expenditures
Proceeds trom sales of property plent squipment and mtangible assets
Capital expanditures, hat
Invest

Zf..f:.'of Impactoncashand  Impactonborrowings  Impact on Financial
cash squivalants  and ather financial items Net Dabt

: am) - Zam

s 58 (5199

29¢ 299

(277) - 7178]

150} {90)

: {7558 - 7850)

¥ 752 762

17,1061 - [7.106)

1374 [ 1432

1 1280 49 1329

1389 1362

63 49 134)

a2 a2

! 277 277

89 60) 3

175 2) 1,753

{13 (3

{1 (1

215 3 (192)

1 {120 {1200

1z 23 {216)

1,556 Fal 1517

5] ]

m m

155 Fi] 1573

1516 3516

{25 ey

3 4490 . 40

5042 F 5.063

Please refer to the next page for the end of this table
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Continued from previous page
‘Year ended December 31 2012

E::]::;: Impact on cash and Impact on borowangs ~ impact or Anancial
cash equivalents and other financial items Net Debt
{tn mallions of euros)
T with sh
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share hased compensation plans (131} (1
of which ceptial increass subscnbed by empioyees in connection with the stock purchase plen (127 127
{Sates)/purchases of Vivend SA's treasury shares 18 18
Dwrdends pad by Vivends SA (€1 per share] 1 1245 1245
Other transactions with shareowners 229 229
of which stock repurchase program of Actvision Bhzrard 1 241 241
Davidends paid by consolidated cormpamies to their non contraling interests 1 483 483
of which Maroc Telecom SA 345 M5
Actvision Blizzard 62 - &2
Total transactions with shar 1,544 . 1844
T onb gs and other financial habifrties
Setting up of Jong-term borrownngs and increasa i other fong-term financial kabiites 54 15.859) 50859
of which bonds {3 758) 3758
bank credit facilities (1834) 1834
Principal payments on long term borrowings and decrease in other long term financial hatilities ant {4217}
of which bank credit facilities 4176 {4176)
Principal payments on short term barrowings 54 2615 {2 615)
of which bonds 2048 {2 48)
bank credit facilities 271 271}
commercial paper 40 {40)
Other changes i short term borrowings and other financial liabilties {3 056) 3056
of which commercral paper 2767} 2767
Non-cash transactions 2 2
Interest paid nat 3 568 - 568
Other cash items related to financial activtes 3 9 - 8
Total trensactrons on borrowings and other financial [isbiihes (1417} 2.085 &63
Ewencing activives c i) 2085 2512
Foresgn currency translation adjustments 1] 47 {124) {77)
Changa in Financial Net Dobt A+B4C4D {590] 1.882 13%2

5.4 New financings

Bonds
In January 2012, Vivend: 1ssued a €1,250 mullion bond, with a b 5-year matunty and a 4 125% coupon, and an effective rate of 4 31%
In Aprii 2012, Vivendi made the following transactions in the bond markets

o A $2 billion bond 1ssue consisting of the following three tranches
- §550 mitlion with a 2 4% coupon matuning in Aprl 2015 and an effective rate of 250% A USD-EUR foreign currency hedge
(cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche with a rate of 1 3082 USD/EUR, or a €420 million counter value at
maturity,
- $650 million, with a 3 450% coupon maturing in January 2018 and an effective rate of 3 56%, and
- $800 million, with a 4 750% coupon maturing in April 2022 and an effective rate of 4 91%
This bond notably allowed the early redemption, through a tender offer, of the 700 million bond, with an initial scheduled maturity in
April 2013

o A €300 mullion tap 1ssue on the €750 million bond matunng in July 2021, with a 4 750% coupon This transaction increased the total
amount of the bond 1ssue to €1,050 million, with an effective rate of 4 67% {compared to 4 0% as of December 31, 2011)

In December 2012, Vivend: 1ssued a €700 milhon bond, with a 7-year and one month matunty and a 2 500% coupon, and an effective rate of
2 65%

Moreover, the bonds 1ssued in February and July 2005 for €600 million and €1,000 million were redeemed upon matunty in February and
July 2012, respectively
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Bank credit facilities

e In January 2012, Vivend set up a €11 hillion bank credit facility with a 5-year matunity, which permitted the early refinancing of the
€1 5billion credit facility with an inimal scheduled matunty in December 2012 and a €05 llion SFR syndicated loan with an initial
scheduled matunity in March 2012, and

s InMay2012, Vivend: setup a €1 b billion bank credit facility maturing in May 2017, which permitted the early refinancing of the two credit
facilities for a total amount of €3 billion {the €2 billion credit facility set up in August 2008, maturing in August 2013 for €1 7 billion and in
August 2012 for €0 3 billion, as well as the €1 billion credit facility set up in February 2008, maturing in February 2013)

Moreover, in June 2012, Vivend increased the maximum amount authorized by the Banque de France regarding Vivendi SA's commercial
paper pragram from €3 bilon to €4 billion

For a detailed analysis of the bond and bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

5.5 Financing of subsidiaries

Excluding primarily Activision Blizzard and Marac Telecom, Vivendi SA centralizes daly cash surpluses [cash pooling} of all controlled
entities (a) that are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of financial assets or {b) that are not subject to other contractual
agreements In particular, the increase to a 100% ownership interest in SFR on June 16, 2011 {please refer to Note 2 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012), has enabled Vivend! SA to centralize all of SFR's cash surpluses on a daily basis
from July 1, 2011 through a cash poeling account

Alternatively, in particular at Activision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom, cash surpluses are not pooled by Vivendi SA but rather, as the case
may be, distributed as dividends when they are not used to finance investments of the relevant subsidianes, as common stock repurchases
or to redeem borrowings used to finance their investments Regarding Activision Blizzard, up until July 9, 2013, the distribution of any
dividend by Activision Blizzard requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the independent directors if Activision Blizzard's Financial Net
Debt, after giving effect to such divwdend, exceeds $400 million

Activision Blizzard's net cash position amounted to £3,290 million (€2,714 million as of December 31, 2011) This amount notably includes US
treasuries and government agency securit:es having a maturity exceeding three months for $387 milhon {compared to $344 million as of
December 31, 2011}, classified as short-term financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position In addition, cash and cash
equivalents also include cash held outside the Umited States by Activision Bhizzard's non-Amencan subsidianies for €1,936 million {compared
to €1.266 million as of December 31, 2011} The funds held by foreign subsidianies are generally subject to US income taxation on
repatriation to the United States

Maroc Telecom group’s Financial Net Debt amounted to €638 million (€617 million as of December 31, 2011)
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6 Outlook

Preliminary comments. The outlook for 2013 presented below regarding revenues, EBITA, EBITA margin rates, EBITDA, EBITDA margin
rates, cash flow from operations (CFFO), and capital expenditures 15 based on data, assumptions, and estimates considered as reasonable by
Vivend: Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertainties related in particular to the economic, financial,
competitive and/or regulatory environment Moreover, the materialization of certam risks described 1n Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements could have an impact on the group’s operations and its ability to achseve its outlook for 2013 Finally, Vivend: considers that the
non-GAAP measures, EBITA, EBITDA, CFFO, and capital expenditures are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and fimancial
performarnce

Vivendi's 2012 actuals compared to outlook

e On March 1, 2012, Vivend: expected a 2012 adjusted net income above €2 5 billion, before the impact of the transactions announced
in the second half of 2011 (as a reminder acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by UMG, acquisition of the D8 and D17 channels by
Canal+ Group, and strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, [TI, and TVN in Poland) As a result, the group expected to propose a
cash dividend with respect to fiscal year 2012 representing around 45% to 55% of adjusted net income In addition, Vivendi expected
Financial Net Debt to be below €14 biltion at year end 2012, assuming closing by end of 2012 of the transactions announced in the
second half of 2011

« On November 13, 2012, given the better than expected performance of Vivend's businesses for the first mine months of 2012, which
offset the economic slowdown and heavier tax environment, Vivend: announced an improvement n the 2012 adjusted net income
guidance to “around €2 7 billion, before the impact of the transactions announced i the second half of 2011 and the restructuring
charges in telecom operations”

» In 2012, Vivend:'s adjusted net income amounted to €2,550 million, after the impact of the transactions announced in the second half
of 2011 (-€51 milion for Canal+ Group and -€2 million for UMG) and restructuring charges in its telecom operations (-€187 million for
SFR and -€79 million for Maroc Telecom group}, as well as the fine incurred by SFR {-€66 million} Excluding these non-recurring items
and after the impact of ncome taxes and non-controlling interests, adjusted net income amounted to €2,862 million, above the
upgraded guidance announced on November 13, 2012

e In addition, at the end of December 2012, Financial Net Debt amounted to €13 4 billien (below the guidance of "below €14 billion”)
and the Management Board will propose, at the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 30, 2013, a €1 dividend per share, to be
paid In cash, representing a distribution of €1,300 million, or 51% of adjusted net income, or 45% of adjusted net income, excluding
these non-recurring items

Vivendi's outlook for 2013

o Vivendr's new strategic crientation focuses on strengthening in media and content and the maximization of SFR's value The group’s
strang presence in content (games, music, and audiovisual) provides a salid and umigue foundation to build a worldwide European-
born media leader Vivend: owns and creates high-quality content with strong brands and a unique know-how Moreover, SFR will
strive to stabilize 1ts operations thanks to a proactive commercial strategy, invest to boost growth, adapt its cost structure to a new
bipolarizad market {and execute the €500 million fixed cost savings plan), and seek to enter into partnerships (network sharing /
industrial partnerships)

» Through this strengthening 1n media and content and the maximization of SFR's value, Vivendi's Management Board remains
committed to focusing on sharehelder value creation {through dividend distributions, share buybacks, and strategic acquisitions),
adjusted net income per share, and maintaining a long-term credit rating of BBB (Standard & Poor's / Fitch} / Baa2 {Moody's)

e Vivendr's priorities for 2013 will be to focus on cash flow generation 1n a slow economic environment, continue to adapt Its telecoms
businesses to a challenging environment, and integrate the acquisitions closed in 2012 and deliver initial synergies

Activision Blizzard

« In 2012, Activision Blizzard exceeded its guidance with an EBITA of €1,149 million, dniven by the strength of its main franchises {Call
of Duty, Skylanders, World of Warcraft and Diablo 1)

o In the short term, Actvision Biizzard expects to deliver strong profitability, but below its record setting 2012 performance, due to a
challenged global economy, the ongoing console transition and a smaller number of game releases compared to 2012 However, for
2013, the EBITA gwidance 1s still above $1 billion

« In addition, according to February 7, 2013's announcement on outlook, Actvision Blizzard is considering or may consider during 2013,
substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactions, and significant related debt
financings Activision Blizzard's full year 2013 outlook does not take into account any such transactions or financings that may or may
not occur during the year, with the exception of the $0 19 per share cash dividend announced on February 7, 2013
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Universal Music Group (UMG)

SFR

In 2012, n Iine with 1ts gindance, UMG achieved a double digit EBITA margin, at constant permeter (before the impact of the
acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, announced on November 11, 2011 and completed on September 28, 2012) 12 4%, compared to
12 1% n 2011, notably thanks to the increase in digital sales and to cost reductions

For 2013, UMG expects an increase in EBITA, with a pesitive contribution from EMI Recorded Music, including restructuning charges
The combination of UMG and EMI Recorded Music 1s expected to generate annual synergies above £100 mullion per annum by the end
of 2014, despite having to sell one third of EMI Recorded Music's revenues

The sale of Parlophone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 million {approximately €600 million after taking inte
account the EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge in place), to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less
significative divestments (of which notably Sanctuary, Mute, Co-Op} were also sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed
£530 millron, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

In 2012, the decrease in EBITDA, excluding negative and positive non-recurning items {-€15 millien in 2012 and +€93 million in 2011),
decreased by 10 6% thanks to 1ts adaptation plan and the strong control of its commercial costs Cash flow from operations, excluding
the impact of the acquisition of 4G spectrum for €1,065 million amounted to €1,758 million Capital expenditures, net amounted to
€2,736 million 1n 2012 (€1,671 million excluding the acquisition of 4G spectrum} In addition, in 2012, SFR launched an adaptation plan
while continuing to invest in 4G and fiber infrastructures and adapt its organization to changing market conditions In November 2012,
it announced a voluntary redundancy plan with a target of 856 net departures

For 2013, SFR expects EBITDA of clese 1o €2 9 billion and capital expenditures, net of around €1 6 billion and confirms its objective to
reduce operational costs by approximately €500 million by year-end 2014

Maroc Telecom group

fn 2012, Maroc Telecom group’s EBITA margin, excluding restructuring charges, was better-than-expected, at 336% thanks to
outstanding results of (ts International activities Cash flow from operations amounted to €1,066 millien 1n 2012 {compared to
£1,035 million 1n 2011}

For 2013, Maroc Telecom group expects to maintain the EBITDA margin at a substantial level of approximately 56% and a slight
growth 1n EBITDA - capex (excluding potential acquisition of spectrum and licenses)

GVT
e in2012, GVT's revenues increased by 28 2%, at constant currency and it achieved an EBITDA margin of 43 1%, including the impact of
the pay-TV business Capital expenditures, net amounted to £947 mullion [compared to €705 mition n2011) For the teiecom activities
only, GVT reached break-even on an EBITDA - capex basis
e For 2013, GVT expects revenues growth in the low 20's at constant currency, an EBITDA margin shghtly above 40%, and an EBITDA -
capex close to breakeven
Canal+ Group

In 2012, in line with 1its guidance, Canal+ Group's EBITA increased by 1 9% at constant perimeter {before the impact of the acquisition
of the D8 and D17 channels, completed on September 27, 2012 and of the merger between Cyfra+ and “n” 1n Poland, completed on
November 30, 2012)

For 2013, Canal+ Group expects an EBITA of around €670 million (excluding restructuring charges refated to pay-TV in Poland). up
€50 millien compared with 2012 proforma EBITA of €620 million, including a €35 million loss related to D8, D17 and “n”, assuming
ownership as of January 1, 2012

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend /38




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

71 Forward-looking statements

Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements

This Financial Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivend's financial condition, results of operations, business,
strategy, plans, and outiook of Vivend:, including projections regarding the payment of dividends as well as the impact of certain
transactions Although Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are hased on reasonable assumptiens, such statements are
not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ materally from the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of
nsks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivend's control, including, but not imited to, the risks related to antitrust and other
regulatory approvals in connection with certain transactions as well as the nsks described in the documents of the group filed with the
Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) (the French securities regulator), which are available in English on Vivendr's website
twww vivendi com) Accordingly, readers of this Financial Report are cautioned agamnst relying on any of these forward-looking statements
These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivend disclaims any intention or abligation to provide,
update or revise any forward-lcoking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

8 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivend: does not sponsor an Amenican Depositary Receipt (ADR] facility in respect of 1ts shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 1s
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend! Vivend disclaims any liability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of such report and 1s provided for informational purposes only This
translation 1s qualified in :ts entirety by the French version, which 1s available on the company’s website (www vivend: com) In the event of
any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1 Adjusted net income

Vivend considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator of the group’s operating and financial performance
Vivendi Management uses adjusted net iIncome because 1t illustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations more effectively
by excluding most nen-recurning and non-operating tems Adjusted net income (s defined in Note 123 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended Oecember 31
{m mllions of euros) 2012 2011
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (s} 164 2681
Adustments
Amartization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 487 510
Impairment losses on intangible assets acqurred through business combinations (a) 760 397
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation Itigation in the United States (a} 845 .
Other income (a) {22 {1385)
Other charges {a) 235 656
Other finanoial income {a) {37 {14
Other financial charges (a) 210 167
Change in deferred tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems 48 129
Non-recurring rtems related to prowision for mcome taxes {25) 4
Prowisicn for income taxes on adjustments 1203) {200}
Nan-controlling interests on adjustments {12) (30)
Adjusted net mcome 1550 2952

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Adjusted netincome per share

Year ended December 31,

2012 21
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net income {in millions of suras) 2550 2,547 (a) 2,952 2.949 {a)
Number of shares {in milhions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b) (c) 1,2989 1.2989 1,2814 1,281 4
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation (d) - 35 - 24
Adyustod weighted average number of shares 12989 13024 1.2814 1,283.8
Adjusted net income per share {in euros) (b} 196 196 230 230

a Includes only the potential dilutive effect related to employee stock option plans and restricted stack plans for Actvision Blizzard in a
nan-significant amount

b The weighted-average number of shares and adjusted net income per share have been adjusted for all periods previously pubhished n
order to reflect the diution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one honus share for each 30 shares held, in
accordance with [AS 33 - Eamings per share Please refer to Section 11 8 of the Financial Report above

¢ Netof treasury shares {please refer to Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012)

d  Does not include accretive Instruments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA’s share based compensation plan 15 presented in Note 2122 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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2 Reconciliation of Activision Blizzard's revenues and EBITA'

As reported below, the recanciliation of Activision Blizzard's revenues and EBITA to IFRS as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 15
based on

¢ Activision Blizzard's data prepared in comphance with US GAAP standards, in US dollars, contained in 1ts Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and non-GAAP measures published by Activision Blizzard on February 22, 2013, and

e data relating to Actvision Blizzard established in accordance with IFRS standards, in euros, as published by Vivendi in its Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
Non-GAAP measures of Activision Blizzard

Activision Bhizzard provides net revenues, net income (ioss}, earnings {loss) per share, operating margin data and guidance both including {in
accordance with US GAAP) and excluding (non-GAAP) certain items The non-GAAP financial measures exclude the fellowing 1tems, as
applicable 1n any given reporting persod

I the change in deferred net revenues and related costs of sales with respect to certain of the company's online-enabled games,
I expenses related to equity-based compensation,
I expenses related to restructuning,
Iv impairment of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
v the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, and

vi the income tax adjustments associated with any of the above items

Revenues reconciliation:

Year ended December 31,

2012 201

Non-GAAP Net Revenues (in millions of dollars) 4987 4,489
Elmmination of non-GAAP adjustments

Changes in deferred net revenues (a) (131} 266
Net Revenues in U'S GAAP (in millions of dollars), as published by Activision
Blizzard 4,856 4,755
Elmination of U S GAAP vs IFRS differences na* na*
Net Revenues in IFRS {in millions of dollars) 4,856 4,755
Dollar to euro translation
Net Revenues in IFRS {in millions of euros), as published by Vivend 3,768 3432
of which

Activision 2370 2,047

Blizzard 1,160 1,082

Distribution 238 303

Please refer to the Notes on the next page

na* not applicable

' Note For a defimtion of EBITA, please refer to Section 4 2 of this financial Report
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EBITA reconciliation.
Year ended December 31,
2012 2m
Non-GAAP Operating Income/(Loss) (in millions of dollars) 1,698 1,358
Llimination of non-GAAF adiustments
Changes In deferred net revenues and related cost of sales (a} (91) 183
Equity-based compensation expense {126) {103}
Restructuning charges - (26)
Amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (30} (72)
Impairment of intangibles acquired through business combinations - 12}
Operating Income/{Loss} in U S GAAP (in millions of dollars), as published by
Activision Blizzard 1.451 1,328
Elunination of U S GAAF vs IFRS differences 8 7
Operating Income/{Loss) in IFRS (in millions of dollars) 1,456 1335
Elimination of rtems excluded from EBITA
Amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations 30 72
Impairment of intangibles acquired through business combinations . 5
Other {1 {3)
EBITA in IFRS {in millions of dollars) 1,485 1,409
Dollar to euro translation
EBITA in [FRS (in millions of euros), as published by Vivend: 1,149 1011
of which
Activision 678 520
Blizzard 463 483
Distrbution 8 8

a  Relates to the impact of the change in deferred net revenues and related costs of sales with respect to certain of the company's

online-enabled games As of December 31, 2012, both in US GAAP and IFRS

¢ the change in deferred net revenues resulted in deferred revenues for $131 mitlion (€103 million) and, after taking into account
related costs of sales, the spreading of margin from operations for $92 million (€72 million}, and

» the deferred net revenues balance in the Statement of Financial Position amounted to $1,657 million (€1,251 mullion), compared to
$1.472 million {€1,139 million} as of December 31, 2011 After taking into account related costs of sales, the deferred margin
batance In the Statement of Financial Position amounted to $1,324 million (£1,000 million), compared to $1,181 milhon
(€913 million) as of December 31, 2011
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3. Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2012 and 2011 quarterly data

2012

st Quarterended 2nd Quarter ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
{in millions of euros} March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 834 837 673 1,364
Universal Music Group 961 961 981 1,641
SFR 2927 2,834 2,747 2,780
Maroc Telecom Group 676 687 665 661
GVT 432 4 479 434
Canal+ Group 1,232 1,238 1177 1,366
Non-core operations and others, and elimination
of intersegment transactions 3) (13) (5) (3}
Total Vivendi 1,119 6,965 6,667 8.243
EBITA
Activision Blizzard 395 177 182 395
Universal Music Group 68 88 82 287
SFR 561 552 537 {50)
Maroc Telecom Group 273 190 266 258
GVT 1186 107 118 147
Canal+ Group 236 47 239 (59)
Holding & Corporate (25) (44) {26} {20)
Nen-core operations and others (3) {1) (4) 8]
Total Vivendi 1,621 1316 1,394 952

201

1st Quarter ended  2nd Quarter ended  3rd Quarterended  4th Quanter ended
(in millions of euros) Mareh 31 Jung 30 Sept 30 Dec N
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 1,061 796 533 1.042
Universal Music Group 881 982 979 1,355
SFR 3,096 3,064 3,017 3,048
Maroc Telecomn Group 672 689 698 680
GVT 329 353 395 369
Canal+ Group 1,192 1,200 1,171 1,294
Non-core operations and others, and ehmination
of intersegment transactions (7 {15 (16) i3)
Total Vivends 71,184 7,069 6,777 7,183
EBITA
Actvision Blizzard 502 N 118 60
Universal Music Group 46 86 112 283
SFR 566 675 644 393
Maroc Telecom Group 266 265 302 256
GvVT 90 97 112 97
Canal+ Group 265 230 237 (31)
Holding & Corporate (20} (22) (17} (41}
Non-core operations and others {10} 4 (5} (3)
Total Vivendi 1,705 1,658 1,503 934

Data presented above takes into consideration the consolidation of the following entities at the indicated dates
- atUmversal Music Group EMI Recorded Music (September 28, 2012), and
- atCanal+ Group D8 and D17 {September 27, 2012) and “n” {November 30, 2012)
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Ill - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Sharehaldars,

in compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Shareholders' Meetings, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2012 on

e the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vivend: S A , hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
= the justification of our assessments, and

e the specific verifications required by law

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role 1s to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, based on our audit

I. Opinion on the Consclidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit In accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of matenial misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling technigues or other methads of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate ta provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our optnion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
group and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the Eurepean Union

Il Justification of our assessments

in accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de Commerce) relating to the justification of our
assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters

In connection with our assessment of the accounting principles applied by your Company

s Note 136 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the applicable cnitena for classifying and accounting for
discontinued operations or assets held for sale n accordance with IFRS 5 We verfied the correct apphication of this accounting
principle and we ensured that Note 2 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides appropriate disclosures with respect to
management’s position as of December 31, 2012

» Ateach financial year end, your Company systematicatly performs impairment tests of goodwill and assets with indefinite useful
lives, and also assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 1357 to the Consolidated Financial Statements We examined the methods used to perform these
impairment tests, as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements provide appropriate disclosures thereon

e Note 139 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and Note 138
describes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venfied the correct application of these accounting principtes
and also exarnined the assumptions underlying the positions as of December 31, 2012 We ensured Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appraprate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company’s tax positions

e Notes 138 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
liigation We examined the methods used within your group to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such
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Itigations We atso examined the assumptiens and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated i Note 131
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes 1n estimates and assumptions which could
have an impact upon the reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consokdated Financial Statements taken as a whale, and therefore contributed to
the opinion we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report

il Specific venfication

We have also venfied, in accardance with professional standard applicable in France, the information provided in the group management
report, as required by law

Woe have no matters to report as to rts fair presentation and its conformity with the Consolidated Financ:al Statements

Panis-La Défense, February 25, 2013

The Statutory Auditors
KPMG Audrt ERNST & YOUNG ET AUTRES
Département de KPMG S A
Frédénc Quélin Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

Note 2012 2011

Revenues 4 28,994 2813
Cost of revenues 4 {14,364) {14,391}
Selling, general and administrative expenses (39,482} {8.911)
Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income {352) {161)
Imparment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations 4 (760} {397)
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United States 27 (945) .
Other income 4 22 1,385
Other charges 4 {235) {656)
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 3 2878 5,682
income from equity affiliates 14 {38} {18
Interest 5 {568) {481}
Inceme from investments 9 75
Other financial income 5 37 14
Other financial charges 5 (210) {167}
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes 2,108 5,106
Provision for income taxes 62 {1.159) 1.378)
Earmings from coatinuing operations 949 3727
Earnings from discontinued operations - -
Earnings 949 3z
Of which

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 164 2,681
Non-controiling interests 785 1,046
Earmings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share -

basic 7 013 209
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share -

Mluted 7 012 209
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic 7 0.13 2.09
Earnings attributable to Vivendr SA shareowners per share - diluted 7 012 209

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, n euros

Note: Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share {basic and diluted) have been adjusted for all perods previously published
in order to reflect the dilution anising from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in
accordance with |1AS 33 - Farmings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{in milhons of euros} Note 2012 2011
Earnings 919 3,727
Foreign currency translation adjustments (605) 182
Assets avallable for sale 63 15
Cash flow hedge instruments 2 78
Net investment hedge instruments 17 2
Tax 1 {24)
Unrealized gains/{losses) 103 90
Other impacts, net - 12
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 {502) 284
Total comprehensive income 447 4,01
of which

Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners {317) 2,948
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 764 1,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Note December 31,2012

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwill

Non-current content assets
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Invesiments i equity affiliates
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventories

Current 1ax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts receivable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

{ong-term borrowings and other financial labilhities
Deferred tax liab!ittes

Other non-current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Current provisions

Short-term borrowings and other financial habilibes
Trade accounts payable and other

Curvent tax payables

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale
Current habilities

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

10
"
12
14
15

16

10
16
15
17

18

19
22

16

19
22
16

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

December 31, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financral Statements
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24 656 25,029
3,327 2,485
5,190 4,329
9,926 9,001

388 135
514 394
1,400 1.421
45,40 42,794
738 805
N9 542
1,044 1,066
6,587 6,730
364 478
3,894 3,304
13,446 12,925
667 -

14,113 12,925

59,514 55,719
7.282 6.860
8,271 8,225

{25) (28)
2937 4,390

18,465 19,447
29N 2,623

21,436 22,010
3,094 1,569

12,667 12,409

9N 728
1,002 864
11,754 15,570
FAl 586
5,090 3,301
14,196 13,987
321 205
20,318 18,079
6 _

20,324 18,079

38,078 33,649

59,514 55719
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,
(in milhons of euros) Note 2012 2011
Operating activities
EBIT 3 2,878 5,682
Adjustments 241 5199 2,590
Content investments, net {289) (13)
Gross cash provided by aperating activities before mncome tax pard 7778 8259
Other changes in net working capital 16 90 (307)
Net cash provided by operating activitias before income tax paid 7,858 7,952
Income tax paid, net 63 {762) {1,090}
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,106 6.862
Investing activities
Capital expenditures 3 (4.516) (3.367)
Purchases of consolidated companies, after acquired cash 2 {1,374) {210)
Investments in equity affiliates 14 (322) (49)
Increase in financial assets 15 {99) {377)
Investments {6,311) {4,003)
Procesds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 26 77
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after divested cash 13 30
Disposal of equity affiliates 14 11 2,920
Decrease in financial assets 4 215 1,751
Divestitures 265 4728
Diwnidends received from equity affiliates 3 79
Drvidends receved from unconsolidated companies 1 3
Net cash provided hy/{used for} investing activities {6,042) 807
Financing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based
compensation plans 21 13 151
Salesflpurchases) of Vivench SA's treasury shares {18} (37}
Dwidends paid by Vivendi SA to its shareowners 18 {1,245) {1,731}
Other transactions with shareowners {229) {7.909)
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their non-controlling interests 18 {483) {1,154)
Transactions with shareowners {1,844 {10,680}
Setung up of long-term borrowings and increase in other long-term financral labibities 22 5,859 6.045
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease in other fong-term financial liabilites 22 4.217) (452)
Principal payment on short-term barrowings 22 {2,619) (2.451)
Other changes in short-term borrowings and other fiancial lahilities 22 3,056 597
interest paid, net 5 {568) {481)
Other cash items related te financial actwities {98) {239)
Transactions on barrowings and other financiel liabilities 1417 3019
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities {421 {7.661)
Forgign currency translation adjustments {47 (14)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 590 {6)
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginrung of the penod 17 3,304 3,310
Atend of the peniod 17 3.894 3304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Year endad Dacember 31, 2012

Capiesd Retaowed surnings and sthey
Common shares Additenal Foreign cumency
immber of sheret | Share padn el | Sub) Fetored "'f"“;(’:;‘:? \ranslatron Subwal | A
[in millions of surs, #acagt number of shares) Note] _{m thousands) capital caprtal no- Mustmants
BALAMNCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 1911 TMINT [ [X--] E]_ 15057 158 -1 i14) 1 23T |
Attnbutnble te Vivends EA shereewners [Fr¥- 5] 5858 = [+ ] 1557 458 n 701 [Ed 18447
Atinbutabls to sax-comtroliing itareats . 7] m 2827 2623 |
Contnbotions by/distribwrons tv Vivemil LA sbarwawners B 7} L] ] o 23] Tz
Capreal mcreass retatad to Drrect Star 27 M2 3 22,355 123 mn s 33%
Viventh SA 3 ftock reputthich pegam {18} ne n
Dradends pawd by Vivanics SA |E1 per shars) 1) 11,245 {1245 [F
Grant ol one borws share for aach 30 shares heid (May 9 2012) 19, 41575 pril [re-]
Capxtal increase ralated to Vivendi 54 & shars basod compansatien plans n 12768 0 n 153 4 aa 197
of whech Vivends Erplkoyws Stock Purchase Pans (July 13 2912/ 12.289 o7 & 127 127
Chasges 1= Vivends SA & arterest m 1y b Chatt e ol raault im & Jous of ceatral (-3 ] -
of which Actrvision Bimzard § fiock epurchass program 18| o moy {10y
Gann on tha drutwsn of Canal « Grmgummgzﬂbm Cyfrae Followang tha creauan of ne+ Fi 14 114 114
CHANG! ITY ATTRIS! A SHAREQWNER: M08 422 & 3 am 1] 15‘ (D) [ I
Towtributions ¥ I Tn mer-costroling loterests ] T [
of which dnedends paid by submdianes to nan-controllmg mterests 19] 2] wa1| [2:3}
Lhanges i ses coatreiiog miveests that rasult wa & garn/fiess) st comtrel - -4 " m
ot whih 1T Heowmian non-controlling interasts F m jxi] 1w
Changes in mon-vantrolling ieterests tht do st resalt 18 ¢ geinfises) of control 108 1w (68)
of which Actrvsion Bluzard 3 rtock repurchass 1E| ) 131) 1131
CHANGE! QUITY ATTRLD INTRO ESTE [ 0) el | msJ
Farmregs — = ]
v iwceme di) cpad 10 squity (] ] ) maz
TAL ENSIVE INLOME [C! L] 1= (605 [ A
[ TOTAL CHANGES DVER THE PERIGD [A<B+E] =T L] 7 L5 -] O | sl [ ] ] ]
Artributatie tn Voends SA sharsowoors 75,598 27 * 3 421 572) 106 587 1 453) 198z)
Al 1# ta non- ntarests 363 3] 118 ] 8
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 1, 1252 [Fi]] 15528 AN 1 103] 5,508 HA®
Attributabie ta Vivend: SA sharecovnery 1LI2Y 962 72 (¥ 25 s -] 2] [Cif] 2537 ALY
Arcribwtuirie v “Mﬂ_‘ﬂ Intprwdtt R [+/] 15 P24 2977

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of the Censolidated Financial Statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Finarcial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: 1s a mited liability company {société anonyme} incorporated under French law, subject to French commercial company law and, In
particular, the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) Vivend: was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expinng
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless the termis extended Its registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Pans {France) Vivend: 1s listed on Euronext Pans (Compartment A)

Vivend! 1s at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and interactive networks and combines the world's leader in video games
(Activision Blizzard), the world's leader in music (Universal Music Group), the French leader in alternative telecoms [SFR), the Moroccan leader
in telecoms {Maroc Telecom group), the leading alternative broadband operator in Brazl {GVT) and the French leader in pay-TV {Canal+ Group)

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivend: and its subsidianes (the “group”} together
with Interests In equity affilrates Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 18, 2013, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 Having considered the Audit Committee’s recommendation
given at its meeting held on February 15, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting hetd on February 22, 2013, reviewed the Financial Report
and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, as approved by the Management Board on
February 18, 2013

On Apni 30, 2013, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 will be submitted for approval at Vivendi's
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2012 Consolidated Financia! Statements of Vivend: SA have heen prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union {EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2012

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1.21 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main ling items preserited in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, Income from equity affiliates, interest, provision
for incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and eamings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings presents a
subtotal for Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 12 3 and presented ;n Note 5

1.2.2 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided from operating activities

Net cash provided from operating actvities 1s calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes 1n net working capital Net cash provided from operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dividends received from equity affiliates) It also includes any cash flows ansing from the gain
or loss of control of subsidianes

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
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derwvative instruments it also mcludes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of centrol
{including increases In ownership interests)

1.23 QOperating performance of each operating segment and of the group

Vivend: considers Adiusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), Adjusted net incame (AN}, and Cash Flow From Qperations (CFFO}, non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and frmancial performance

EBITA

Vivend considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data The method used In calculating EBITA excludes the accounting »mpact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations, impairment losses on geodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
ncome and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivendi to measure and
compate the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance 1s driven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or acquisihons

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of ntangible assets acquired through business combinations, impairment
losses on goodwll and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial income and charges related to
financial nvesting transactions and to transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financeal
investing transactions include gains and losses recognized i business combinations, capital gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affiliates and other financial nvestments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control in a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivendi constders adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it better illustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurmng and non-operating items  Adjusted net income includes the following items

EBITA {**),

income from equity affiliates (*) {**),

interest (*) (**}, corresponding to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,
incame from investments (*1{**), including dividends and interest recewved from uncansolidated companies, and

taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

It does not include the following items

e gmortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**] as well as impairment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations {*) (**),
other income and charges related to finaneial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners (*), as defined above,
other financial charges and income (*) (**), equal to the profit and loss related to the change n value of financial assets and the
termmation or change 1n value of financial liabilities, which pnmanly include changes in far value of dervative instruments,
premums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative mnstruments, the cost of issuing or cancelling
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating activittes, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
earmings from discontinued operations (*) (**), and
provisions for income taxes and adjustments attnbutable to non-controlling interests and non-recurring tax items (notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabilities relating to risks extinguished over the period)

{*} ftems as presented i the Consolidated Statement of Earings, (**) Items as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Operations (CFFQ)

Vivendi considers cash flow from operations (CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure 10 assess the group’s operating and
financial performance The CFFQ includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dividends received from equity affihates and unconsolidated companies It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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The difference between CFFQ and net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax consists of dividends recewved from equity
affiliates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included (n net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

1.24 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and liabilites that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity's normal operating cycle
(generally 12 months}, are recorded as current assets or habilities If their matunty exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabilities Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 and 2010 Consohdated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements

1.3  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidiaries after eliminating sntragroup 1tems and
transactions Vivendi has a December 31 year-end Subsidianes that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare (ntenm financial
statements at that date, except when therr year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidiaries are inciuded in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estmates

The preparation of Consolidated Financral Statements in comphance with IFRS requires the group management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Even though these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend
Management based, in particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and crcumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could impact the reported amount of group assets, liabihties, equity cr earmings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

e revenue estimates of prowisions for returns and price guarantees, and rewards as part of loyalty programs deducted from certain
revenue 1tems {please refer to Note 1 3 4},

e Activision/Blizzard revenue estimates of the service period over which revenue from the sale of boxes for video-games with
significant online functionality 1s recognized (please refer to Note 13 41),

e provisions nisk estimates, performed on an indvidua! basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead to a risk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1 3 8and 19),

e employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaiming within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 1 38 and 20),

o share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield {please refer to Notes 13 10 and 21),
certain financial instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1358, 137 and 23),
deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group {please refer to Notes 1 3 9 and 6},

o goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations {please refer to Notes 1 352 and 2},

e goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets i progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impairment tests performed on each of the group's cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates (please refer
toNotes 1357,9, 11, and 12},

e Activision Blizzard content assets estimates of the future performance of franchises and other content assets related to games are
recognized 1n the Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 1353 and 10), and

e UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficianes who were granted advances are recognized In the
Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 135 3 and 10)

Given the current economic crisis, notably in respect of sovereign exposures in countries considered to be at nisk, Vivend: has reviewed the
valuation of all its financial assets and habilities This review did not have any significant impact on the 2012 Consolidated Financial
Statements
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132 Principles of consolidation
A list of Vivendr's major subsidianies, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented in Note 28

Consolidation

All companies in which Vivendi has a controlling interest, namely those in which 1t has the power to govern financial and operational policies
to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated

A controlling position 15 deemed to exist when Vivendi holds, directly or indirectly, a voting interest exceeding 50% of total vating rights in an
entity and no other shareholder or group of shareholders may exercise substantive participation nghts that would enable 1t to veto or block
ardinary decisions taken by Vivendi

A controlling position also exists when Vivends, holding an interest of 50% or less :n an entity, has {1} control aver more than 50% of the voting
nghts of such entity by virtue of an agreement entered into with other investors, {i1) the power to govern the financial and operational palicies
of the entity by wirtue of statute or contract, {in) the nght to appoint or remove from office a majonity of the members of the board of directors
or other equivalent gaverning body or {iv} the power to assemble the majority of voting rights at meetings of the board of directors or other
governing body Rewised IAS 27 presents the consolidated financial statements of a group as those of a single economic entity with two
categones of owners Vivendi SA shareowners and the owners of non-controlling interests A non-controlling interest 15 defined as the equity
in a subsidiary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result of this new approach, changes in a parent’s ownership
tnterest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control only impact equity, as contro! does nat change within the ecanomic entity Hence,
in the event of the acquisition of an addihonal nterest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivendi recognizes the difference
between the acquisition pnce and the carrying value of non-controlling Interests acquired as a change i equity attributable to Vivend) SA
shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of contral achieved in stages or a loss of control give rise ta profit or loss in the statement of
earnings

Vivend consolidates special purpose entities that it controls in substance where 1t either {1} has the nght to obtatn a majonty of benefits, or {n)
retains the majority of residual nisks inherent in the special purpose entity or Its assets

Equity accounting

Entities over which Vivend) exerc:ses significant influence as well as entities over which Vivend) exercises joint control are accounted for
under the equity method

Srgmificant influence 15 presumed to exist when Vivend: holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of voting nghts in an entity unless it can be
clearly demonstrated that Vivend: does not exercise significant influence Significant mfluence can be evidenced through other criteria, such
as representation on the board of directors or the entity's equivalent governing body, participation i policy-making processes, material
transacuons with the entity or the interchange of managerial personnel

Companies that are jointly controlled by Vivendr, directly or indirectly, and a hmited number of other shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement are also accounted for under the equity method

133 Foreign currency translation

The Consohdated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivend SA and the presentation currency
of the group 15 the euro

Forelgn currency transactions

Fareign currency transactions are imitially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the clostng date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity's functional currency at the
exchange rate prevaling on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment n a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized 1 equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated n a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 1s not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posttron 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consolidated Statement of Earmings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the penod The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as foreign
currency translation differences in charges and :ncome directly recognized in equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency translation
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differences resulted from the translation into euro of the financial statements of subsidiaries having foreign currencies as their functional
currencies  Consequently, these adjustments are not apphed to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates, whose functional currency Is not the euro

134 Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when 1t 15 probable that future economic benefits will be abtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

134.1 Activision Blizzard

Video games

Revenues from the sale of boxes for video-games are recarded, net of a provision for estimated returns and price guarantees (please refer to
Note 1345 below) as well as rebates, If any Regarding boxes for video-games with significant online functionality, revenues are recorded
ratably over the estimated relationship period with the customer, usually beginning 1n the month following the shipment of boxes for video-
games developed by Activision Blizzard and upon activation of the subscription for Massively Multiplayer Online Role Playing Games
(MMORPG) of Blizzard (World of Warcraft and 1ts expansion packs) The estimated relat:onsh:p period with the customer over which revenues
are recognized currently ranges from a minimum of five months to a maximum of less than a year

Deferral of Activision Blizzard revenues

Activision Blizzard believes that anline functionality for consale games, along with its obligation to ensure durability, constitute, for certain
games, a service forming an integral part of the game itself In this case, Activision Blizzard does not account separately for the revenues
linked to the sale of the boxed software and those linked to the online services because it 1s not possible to determine their respective values,
the onling services not being charged for separately As a result. the company recognizes all of the revenues from the sale of these games
ratably over the estimated service period, usually beginning the month follewing shipment

Regarding games that can be played with hardware, Actwvision Blizzard determines that certain hardware comporents have stand afone
values with established farr values, as the hardware 1s either currently being sold separately or will be sold separately in the future Where
this 15 the case, Activision Blizzard recognizes revenues for the hardware upon sale and defers the software revenues, if applicable, over the
estimated service period based on the relative fair value of the components

Deferral of Bhzzard's MMORPG revenuas

Based upon the view that the service proposed by the expansion pack 15 closely linked to the imtial World of Warcraft boxed software and to
the subscription to online service, thus valuing a global approach of the game, revenues related to the sale of World of Warcraft boxed
software, ncluding the sale of expansion packs and other ancillary revenues, are deferred and recognized ratably over the estimated service
relationship period with the customer beginning upon activation of the software by the customer through subscription

Other revenues
Revenues generated by subscriptions and prepaid cards for online games are recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the

service

Revenues from third-party licensees in certain countries (Russia, China, and Taiwan) who distnbute and host Blizzard's World of Warcraft
game are recognized as royalties, when the sale to the customer 15 made on behalf of the third party Any upfront licensing fee recewved fram
third parties 1s recognized over the term of the contracts

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing, warehousing, shipping and handling costs, royalty, research and development expenses, and the
amortization of capitalized software development costs Costs of sales associated with revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with
significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method for revenues

1342 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a proviston for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1 34 5} and rebates, are
recagnized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sald free on beard (FOB) and on delivery for products sold free on
destination
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Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and rehable data from certain distributars, are
recognized based on ther estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distribution platform (on-line or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copyrights an musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are received and collectability 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distnbution costs, royalty and copyright expenses, artists” costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses pnimanly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful recevables and indirect overheads

1343 SFR, Maroc Telecom group, and GVT

Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales in accordance with IAS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment {mobile phones and other equipment), net of discounts granted 1o customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscnption
contract period Revenues from tncoming and cutgoing traffic are recognized when the service Is rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distributors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephane packages and commissions paid to distnbutors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Equipment rentals

[FRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease applies to equipment for which a right of use 1s granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-iine basis over the hie of the lease agreement

Content sales

Sates of services provided to customers managed by SFR and Maroc Telecom group on behalf of content providers {mainly premium rate
numbers) are either accounted for gross, or net of the content providers’ fees when the provider 1s responsible for the content and for setting
the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and installation costs inveiced pnmanly to the operater's clients on the nstallation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructures 1s provided to clients pursuant to various types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) agreements |RU agreements, which are specific 1o the tefecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevocable right to use an asset {cables, fiber optic or bandwidth) during a (generally lengthy} defined period without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agreements is recognized over the
duration of the carresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 1s considered as a sale on credit

In the case of IRU agreements and certain lease or service contracts, services are pard in advance the first year Where the contract 1s not
qualified as a finance lease, these non-refundable advance payments are recorded as deferred income and recognized ratahly over the
contract term The deferral perod 1s thus between 10 and 25 years for (RU agreements and between 1 and 25 years for leases or senice
contracts

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues compnse purchasing costs {including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Selling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses
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1344 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestrial, satelhte or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service period,
net of gratuities granted Revenues from advertising are recogmized over the period during which advertising commercials are broadcasted
Revenues from ancillary services {such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition costs, as well as television distnbution costs, are mcluded in selling, general and administrative expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a nght of use is granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the irfe of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distnbution and from video and television or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 134 5 and rebates, are recognized upon
shipment and availability of the product for retail sale Amortization of film and television capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrcal print
costs, home video Inventory costs and television, and home video marketing costs are included 1n costs of revenues

1345 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to custemers through distnibutors They are
estimated based on past sales statistics and they take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final customers

The recognttion of awards associated with loyalty programs in the form of free or discounted goods or services are recorded according
to IFRIC 13 Loyalty programs of SFR {valid until the third quarter of 2012), Maroc Telecom, and Canal+ Group grant to existing customers
awards in the form of free services, according to the length of the retationship with the customer and/or loyalty points for subsequent
conversian nto erther handset renewal subsidies, or free services IFRIC 13 - Intespretation 1s based upon the principle of measuring loyalty
awards by reference to their fair value Fair value 1s defined as the excess price over the sales incentive that would be granted to any new
customer and, should any such excess price exist, would result in defernng the recogmtion of the revenue associated with the subscription in
the amount of such excess price

Selling, general and administrative expenses pnmarly include salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
Insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
and Activision Blizzard 1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estimated
135 Assets

1.351 Capitalized financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivend: did not capitalize financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition period of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2008, according to amended IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest 1s included n
the cost of qualifying assets Vivend applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs 1s January 1, 2009 onwards
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1352 Goodwill and business combnations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combrnations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this methad, upon the mitial consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control
o the dentifiable assets acquired and the Labilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acguwsition date, and
¢ non-controlling :nterests are measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling Interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This option 1s avarfable on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisition date, goodwill 18 initrally measured as the difference between
(1} the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests n the acquiree and, In a business
comtnnation achieved in stages, the acquisition-gate fair vaiue of the previpusly held equmty interest in the acquiree, and
{11} the net fair value of the dentifiable assets and liabiltties assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase in goodwall up to the extent attnbutable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “fulf goodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 manths after the acquisition
date If goodwill 1s negative, It is recagnized In the Statement of Earnings Subseguent to the acquisition date, gaodwill 15 measured at its
initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (please refer to Note 13 5 7 below)

In addition, the following principles are applied to bustness combinations

» on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benetit from the business
combination,

= contingent consideration in a business combination 1s recarded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurring after the purchase price allocation period 15 recognized in the Statements of Eamings,
acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,
in the event of the acquisition of an addibonal interest in a subsidiary, Vivends recogmizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controliing interests acquired as a change in equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

+  gocdwill 1s not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, its provisions differed from those of the revised standard on the main
following items
s minority interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option of
measurement at fair value,
= contngent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition onty if the payment was hikely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acowisition formed part of acquisition costs, and
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recogmized as goadwill .

1353 Content assets

Activision Blizzard

Licensing activities and internally developed franchises are recognized as content assets at their acguisition cost or development cost {please
refer to Note 1 35 4 below} and are amortized over thewr estimated useful ife on the basis of the rate at which the related economig benefits
are consumed Where appropriate, impairment loss 1s fully recognized against earnings for the period during which the loss 1s identified This
generally leads to an amortization period of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

UMG

Music publishing nights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and publishing nights, acquired through business combinations,
are amortized over a pertod of 15 years in sefling, general and administrative expenses

Royalty advances to artists, songwniers, and co-publishers are capitahized as an asset when thexr current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable to
them 1s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are eamed by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties 1s expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues
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Royatties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the penod during which the sale of the product
oceurs, less a provision for estimated returns

Canail+ Group
Fiim, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, telewision or sports broadcasting nights, the nights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
e fim and television broadcasting nights are recogmized at their acquisition cost, when the program 1s available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period,
e sports broadcasting nights are recogrized at their acquisition cost, at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
«  expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatnical film and tefevision nghts produced or acquied to be sold

Theatrical film and television nghts praduced or acquired before their iniial exhibition, to be sold, are recorded as 2 content asset at
capitalized cost (mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cost Theatrical film and television nghts are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method {ie, based on the ratio of the current period's gross
revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis} Vivend: considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 1s, for this actwity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization method If, however, the accumulated amortization would be lower than this charge, a minimum straight-line amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year period, which corresponds to the typical screening penod of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs are compnised of film rights acquired for a second television exhibition, or produced or acquired film and television rights that are
sold after their first television screening {1 e , after their first broadcast on a free terestrial channel) They are recognized as an asset at their
acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, 1n particular, profitabifity of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of software for rental, sale or commerciahzation

Capitalized software development costs comprise amounts paid to entitled beneficiaries for the use of ther intellectual property content for
developing new games (e g, software development, graphics and editonal content), direct costs incurred during the internal development of
products and the acquisttion costs of developed software Software development costs are capitalized when, notably, the technical feasihility
of the software 15 established and they are deemed recoverable These costs are mainly generated by Activision Blizzard as part of the games
development process and are amortized using the estimated revenue method {1 e , based on the ratio of the cusrent period's gross revenues o
estimated total gross revenues} for a gven product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum pertod of 6 months
commencing on a product’s release date Techmcal feasibility I1s determined on a product-by-product basis Non-capitalized software
development costs are immediately recorded as research and development costs The future recoverability of capitalized software
development costs and intellectual property license costs Is assassed every quarter When their recoverable value is less than their carrying
value, an impairment loss 1s recogmized against earnings for the pernod

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, ncluding website development costs,
are capitalized duning the application development stage Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, mstallation and testing Costs of sigmficant upgrades and enhancements resutting 1n additional functionality are also capitalized
These capitalized costs, mainly recognized at SFR, are amort:zed over 4 years Maintenance and minor upgrade and enhancement costs are
expensed as incurred

Financial Repost and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31,2012 Vivend: /62




Tuesday, February 26, 2013
1.355 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired In connection with a business combination are
recorded at thewr fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefimte useful hie are not amortized but are all subject to an annual impairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with
a finite useful life Useful ife 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting penod

Qther intangible assets include trade names, customer bases and licenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscribers' bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets

SFR, Maroc Telecom group and GVT

Licenses to operate telecom networks are recorded at hustoncal cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortrzed on
a straight-line basis from therr sffective service start date over their estimated useful Ife until maturity Licenses to operate in France are
recognized (n the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The vanable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the activity in the case of the telecommunication licenses in France}, 1s recorded as an expense
when incurred

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at hustorical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Histonical cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, the costs directly attributable to transporting an asset to its physical focation and preparing it for use
1 operations, the astimated costs for the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehatilitation of the physical
location resulting from the incurred obligation

When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amertized separately
Amortization 1s computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated usefui life of the assets Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of
each reporting perod

Property, plant and equipment mainly consist of the network equipment of telecommunications activitigs, each part of which 18 amortized
generally over T to 50 years The useful lives of the main components are as follows
¢ buildings over 8 to 25 years,
fiber optic equipment 50 years
pylons over 15 to 20 years,
radio and transmission equipment over 3 to 10 years,
switch centers 8 vears, and
servers and hardware over 1 to 8 years

* & & & @

Assets tinanced by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future mintmum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt Is recorded as "Borrowings and other financial habilities” In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful Nife, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost model 15 applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend: has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with 1FRS 1, Vivendr decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contamns a lease, which currently mainly apphes to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group and GVT satellite capacity and for
SFR, Maroc Telecom group, and GVT telecommunications services
» |ndefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements confer an exclusive and irrevocable right to use an asset during a defined period IRU
agreements are leases which convey a specific right of use for a defined portion of the underlying asset in the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths IRU agreements are capitalized if the agreement perod covers the major part of the usefu! hfe of the
underlying asset 1RU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
*  Some IRU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a nght to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operational costs for the perod
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1.35.7 Asset impairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate a current risk of impairment of goodwill, other ntangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets In progress, Vivend) re-examinies the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets In progress are all subject to an annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, with some exceptions This test 15 performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGU) or, if
necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including goodwill) A Cash Generating Umit 1s the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets The Vivend! group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are
marketed through different channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments
Vivendi CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 8

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of either {1} the value i use, or {u] the fair value (less costs t0 sell) as described
hereafter, for each indwidual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwall is performed by Vivench for
each CGU or group of CGUs, depending on the leve! at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations

The value 1n use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted valug of future cash flows (discounted cash flow method
(DCF)} by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the fallowing year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend: of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
pertod covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used In the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value {less costs to sell} is the amount obtamable from the sale of the asset or group of assets inan arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties, less costs to sell These values are determined on the hasis of market data (stock market prices or
companson with similar listed companies, with the value attributed to simifar assets or companies in recent transactions) or an discontinued
future cash flows in the absence of reliable data

If the recoverable amount 1s fower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment foss equal to the difference 1S
recognized in EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 1s recorded first against goodwill

The impairment losses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (other than goodwill) may be reversed In
a later period If the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the imit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwall cannot be reversed at a later date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
iitrally recognized at the fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, for which the best evidence 15 the acquisition cost
{including associated acgquisition costs, if any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at far value mclude available-for-sale securities, dervative financial instruments with a positive value {please refer to
Note 1 37) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
organized public markets, therr fair value being calculated by reference to the published market price at penod end For financial assets for
which there exists no published market price in an active market, fair value (s then estimated As a last resort, the group values financial
assets at historical cost, less any impairment losses, when a reliable estimate of fair value cannot be made using valuation techmques 1n the
absence of an active market

Avallable-for-sale securties consist of unconsolidated interests and other secunties not qualifying for classification in the other financial
asset categories described below Unrealized gains and losses on avallable-for-sale secunities are recognized in charges and income directly
recogmized In equity until the financial asset is seld, collected or removed fram the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there 15 objective evidence that the investment 1s impaired, at which ume the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized n equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income
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Dther financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for vading which Vivend intends to sell in
the near future {primarily marketable securities) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Incorme

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recewables (primarily loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affihates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, securitized loans and receivables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors)
and beld-to-maturity investments (financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity) At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
te the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s imtial effective interest rate), 1s recognized n profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed If the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

13.59 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually computed at the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling pnce in the
normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs

135.10 Trade account receivables

Trade accounts recewvable are imitially recognized at fair value, which generaily equals the nominal value Provisions for impairment of
recevables are specifically evaluated in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference perniod related to revenues for this same peniod Thus, for the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription
{Activision Bhizzard, Canal+ Group, SFR and GVT), the depreciation rate of trade account receivables 1s assessed on the basis of historical
account recewvables from former customers, prnimanly on a statistical basis In addition, account recewvables from customers subject to
insolvency proceedings or customers with whom Vivendi 1s mvolved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash (n banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
highly liquid investments with inival maturities of generally three months or less Investments in secunties, nvestments with initigl matunities
of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions {blocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regutations specific to @ country or activity sector |e g, exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the historical performance of the investments 1s monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification

1.3.6 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or @ group of assets and habilities 1s held for sale when its carrymg value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued uttlization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestrture must
be highly probable These assets and liabilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of divestiture
fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and are ne longer depreciated

An operation 1s qualified as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major ling of business and the cnterna for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivend has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
an sale or faur value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and labilities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flaws
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the retevant periods
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137 Fwnancial liabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial liabikties include
e bonds and facilities, as well as various other borrowings (including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and related
accrued interest,
abligations arising in respect of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negatwe value of other dervative financial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets 1n the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All barrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the barrowing Borrowings bearing
Interest are subseguently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1s the internal yield rate
that exactly discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded denivative
{e g. an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e g, a convertible bond, the amortized cost 15 calcu'ated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derwvative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g . redemption
earlier than initially expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted
at the initial effective interest rate

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendi has granted commitments to purchase non-controlling interests to certain shareowners of its fully consohdated subsidianes These
purchase commitments may be optional (e g, put options} or firm {e g, forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted for commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

e upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests 1s recognized as a financial iability for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainty offset through book value of non-
controlling interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners,

s  subseguent changes In the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability by an adjustment to equity attnibutable to
Vivend: SA shareowners, and

e on matunty of the commitment, If the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the entries previously recognized are reversed, If
the non-contralling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Derivative financial mstruments

Vivend: uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these dervative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualfy as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses arsing on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged 1tem When the denvative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Fsnancial Position or of a firm commitment which 1s not recognized in the Statement of
Financial Pasition, 1t 1s a fair value hedge The instrument 1s remeasured at far value in earmings, with the gamns or losses arising on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same Iine of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or hiability, at the initial cost of the asset or liability When the dervative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, it 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging nstrument Is remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or loss that Is
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized 1n equity, whereas its ineffective portion 18
recognized In earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liahihity, they are recognized at the inihial cost of the
asset or liability When the hedged 1tem s realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derwative financial instrument hedges a net investment 1n a foreign
operation, 1t 1s recognized in the same way as a cash flow hedge Derwative financial instruments which do not qualfy as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in garmngs, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content nghts (inctuding sports, audiowisual and film rights) are recegnized in
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of Instruments are recognized in other financial charges and
income
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138 Other liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting penod, Vivendi has a legal obligation {legal, regutatory or contractual) or a
constructive obhgation, as a result of past events, and i1t 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obhigation and the obligation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the tme value of money 15 matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax drscount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money If no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligatian, no provision is recorded and 2 disclosure 1s made in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee henefit plans

!n accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivend: participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retrement pensions, post-retirement heaith care, Iife msurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of thewr beneficianes who meet the requued condibans Retirement pensions are provided for substantratly all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local sogial secunity and multi employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group 1s consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations

Defined contribution plans
Cantnibutions to defined contrbution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defined bengfit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in varous nstruments such as surance contracts or equity and debt investment
secunities, excluding Vivend: shares or debt mstruments

Pension expenses are calculated by independent actuanes using the projected unit credit method This method 1s based on annually updated
assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend untii retirement, expected changes in future compensatton
and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivend) maintains a pension plan The assumptions adopted in 2011 and 2012, and
the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 20 As such, the group recognizes pension-related assets and habilities
and the related net expense

A provision 1s recorded in the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuanial value of the related benefits
{actuaral hability} and the fair value of any associated plan assets, net of past service cost and unrecognized actuanal gains and losses which
remain unrecognized in the Statement of Financial Position Where the value of pian assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset (s
recognized up to the maximum cumulative amount of net actuanal losses, unrecognized past service cost, and the present value of future
refunds and the expected reduction n future contributions

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized through profit and loss for the year using the “cormdor method” actuarial gains and losses in excess
of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the fiscal year are divided by the expected
average working life of beneficianes On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses against cansalidated equity

The cost of plans is included in selling, general and administrative expenses, except for the financial component which 1s recorded 1n other
financial charges and income The financial component of this cost consists of the undiscounting of the actuarial hability and the expected
return on plan assets

Some other post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage (mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuanial computation comparable to the method used for pension provisions
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1.39 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabilities and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give rise to temporary differences Pursuant to the iability method, these temporary differences result n the accounting of

o deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 1s greater than the carrying vatue (expected future tax saving), and

» deferred tax liabilities, when the tax base value 1s lower than the carrying value {expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the Liability
settled, based on tax rates (and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, :n ling with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, msofar as 1t 13
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 1s
generated by initial recognition of an asset or abiity in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or 16ss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments i subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be avaitable against which the temporary difference can be utdlized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that 1t 15 more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be ulized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being avallable, account 1s taken, primarily, of prior years' results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to occur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carried forward 1s to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earnings
of the group

Deferred tax liabilities are racognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax fiabifity results from goodwall or
initral recognition of an asset or hability in & transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
Impact earnings, nor tax tncome or oss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments i subsidianes, joint ventures and other associated enbities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satished the parent, investor or venturer 1S able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary diffesence and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1.310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interest of 1ts executive management and employees with its shareholders’ nterest by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company’s performance and increase Its share price on a long-term basis, Vivend maintains several share-
based compensation plans (share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans} or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivend: share price {stock options), which are settled erther in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares are
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives fixed by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Activision Blizzard maintains several share-based compensation plans (restricted shares) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the share pnce {stock options), which are settled in equity instruments Grants under these plans are approved by the Board of
Directors of Activision Blizzard The final grant of these nghts 1s contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by
the Board of Directors

Lastly, Universal Music Group maintains Equity tong-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
urits, which are settled in cash These equity umits are phantom stock umits whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer to Note 21 for details of the features of these plans
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Share-based compensation 15 recogrized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense 15 spread over
the vesting penod, 1e 3 years for stock option plans and 2 years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivend), other than in
specific cases

Vivendi and Activision Blizzard use a binomia! model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relres on assumptions updated
at the valuation date such as the computed volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nsk-free interest rate, the
expected dividend yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of
ther nghts

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settied instruments
» the expected term of the option granted 1s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
« the value of the instruments granted 1s estimated and fixed at grant date, and
s the expense 15 recognized with a corresponding ncrease in equity

Cash-settled mstruments
+ the expected term of the instruments granted 1s deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
for vested nghts, and to the average of the residua! vesting perod at the remeasurement date and the restdual contractual term of
the instrument for unvested rights,
¢ the value of instruments granted 1s intially estimated at grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reparting date,
= the expense 15 recognized as a provision, and

» moreover, as plans settled in cash are primanly denominated in US doilars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost is allocated to each operating segment, pro rata the number of equity instruments or equivalent instruments
granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the 1ssuance of Vivend or Activision Blizzard shares
which are in the process of vesting (s reffected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which nghts remamed to be vested as of Janvary 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive control, joint control or sigmhicant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise an exclusive contral, joint
control, or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidianies over which the group exercises a contrgl are ehminated in the intersegment operations (a list of
the principal consolidated subsidianies 1s presented in Note 28) Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidiaries of the group,
aggregated i operating segments, are conducted on an arm's length basis under terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by thud parties The operating costs of Vivend: SA's headquarters in Pans and of its New Yark City office, after the allocation of a
portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses, are included in the Holding and Corparate operating segment [Flease refer to Note 3
for a detalled description of the transactions between the parent company and the subsidiaries of the group, aggregated by operating
segments)
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15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend: and its subsidiaries prepare detailed reports on all matenal contractual obhgations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are jointly and severally lable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are performed, including (but not limited to} the review of

e minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authonzation of asset acquisitions or diveshitures,

e pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

 pending litigation, claims (in dispute} and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,

e tax examiner's reports and, if applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,

e nsurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,

« related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally

e major contracts and agreements

16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued by IASB / iFRIC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not vet effective, and for which Vivend: has not elected for an earlier apphication, the main standards which may
have an impact on Vivend: are as follows

e Standards adopted in the European Union
- Amendments to IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements FPresentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income, on the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income, and their recycling or Aot In the Statement of Earmings, which apphes to
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and with retrospective effect as of January 1, 2012,

- Amendments to IAS 19 — Employee Benefits, which applies to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective
effect as of January 1, 2012, and for which the main impacts are presented below,

- New standards relating to the principles of consolidation IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements, [FRS 11 = Jomnt
Arrangements, |FRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, |AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements, and 1AS 28 -
Investments i Associates and Jomt Ventures, which all apply to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 Vivend: intends
to early apply these standards from January 1, 2013 and retrospectively from January 1, 2012, and

- New standard IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement, relating to the defimtion of the fair value notion in terms of measurement
and disclosures, which applies prospectively to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

« Standards not yet adopted in the European Union
- Amendments to vanous IFRS included in the Annua! Improvements to IFRSs 2003-2011 Cycle, as pubhshed by the IASB on May
2012, which apply to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, retrospectively from January 1, 2012, but are stil! subject to
adoption in the European Union

Vivend! 15 currently finalizing the assessment of the potential impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consoldated Financial Statements 1n applying these standards and
amendments No significant impact 1s expected for the time being, except for the amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 19, which man impact
identified by companisan with the current accounting treatments applied by Vivend relates to the suppression of the “corndor method”, on the
recognition through profit and loss for the year of the amortization of actuanal gamns and losses on defined employee benefit plans Thus,
actuanial gains and losses not yet recognized will be recorded against consolidated equity as of January 1, 2012 for an amount of -€119
million, and as from January 1, 2012, actuanal gains and losses will be immediately recognized i other comprehensive income In the
Statement of Comprehensive Incame and will no longer be recycled in profit ang loss
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Note 2 Major changes in the scope of consolidation

2.1 Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group {UMG)

In accordance with the agreement entered into with Crtigroup Inc (Cit)} on Noverber 11, 2011, and following receipt of the regulatory approvals from
the European Commission and the Federal Trade Commussion in the United States on September 21, 2012, Vivend and UMG completed the
acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business ot EMI Group Global Limited {EMI Recorded Music) on September 28, 2012 EM) Recorded
Music has heen fully consolidated since that date The transaction was also unconditionally cleared n New-Zealand {June 21, 2012), Japan
{July9, 2012), and Canada {August 20, 2012)

The purchase price, in enterprise value, amounted to £1,130 miflion {approximately £1,404 million) and mncluded €1,363 milhon paid in cash, of
which £991 million (approximately €1,230 mithon) was paid in early September 2012, when conditions to payment were satisfied As part of this
transaction, Cit agreed to assume the full pension abligations in the United Kingdom, and UMG received commitments customary for this
type of transaction In addition, Citi undertook to indemmify UMG against losses stemming from taxes and litgation claims, in particular those
related to pension pbhigations in the United Kingdom

The approval by the European Commission was condittonal upon the divestment of EMI's Parlophone label and certain other music assets worldwide,
such as EMI France, EMI's classical music labels, Chrysals, Mute and several other focal EMI entities In accordance with IFRS 5 - Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations, Vivend: reclassified these assets as assets held for sale at market value i the Consohdated
Statement of Financial Positron as of December 31, 2012

The sale of Partophone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 million {approximately €600 milhon after taking into account the
EUR/GBP forergn currency hedge in place) to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less significant divestments
were alsa sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed £530 million, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

With these sales, Vivend: nears the finalization of 1ts regulatory commitments following the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, while
reinforcing UMG’s position as a worldwide leader in music The combination of UMG’s and EMI's Recorded Music businesses 1s expected to
generate annual synergies of more than £100 million as previously stated As a result of the sale of Parlophone Label Group, the acquisibon of
EMI Recorded Music acquisition will be at less than 5xEBITDA mult:ple, including disposals, restructuring charges and synergies

Purchase price allocation

In accordance with the accounting standards apphcable to business combinations, UMG has performed a provisional ailocation of the
purchase price using the faw value of assets acquired and liablities tncurred or assumed, based on analyses and appraisals prepared by UMG
with third-party appraisers, (f any The major acquired assets were the music nghts and catalog The allocation of the purchase price will be
finalized within the 12-month period as required by accounting standards and the final amount of goadwill may significantly differ from the
amount presented below

{in millions of euros) September 28 2012
Carrying value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and habihties acquired by Vivendi (A) (100)
Fair value adjustments of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and incurred or assumed habilities {provisional}

Music nghts and catalog 1036
Deferrgd income tax net {332)
Other (94}
Total (B} 610
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and incurred or assumed liabilihes {C=A+B) 510
Fair vatue of EMI Recorded Music's assets and habilities held for sale 533
Provisional goodwill 30
Purchase price of 100% of EMI Recarded Music 1,404

Moreover, the acquisition-related costs amounted to €56 million in 2012 and to €6 million 1n 261t They were recorded as other charges from
EBIT in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings and as investing actvities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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22  Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels by Vivendi and Canal+ Group

On Decamber 2, 2011, Bolloré Group and Canal+ Group announced the entry into a definitive agreement regarding the acquisition by Canak+
Group of Bolloré Group's free-to-air channels, Direct 8 and Direct Star In February 2012, Canal+ Group exercised 1ts option to acquire, in one
transaction, a 100% interest in Bolloré Group's television bus:ness, in exchange for the 1ssuance of Vivend: shares

On September 27, 2012, Vivend: carned out a share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid in consideration for the
contribution made by Bolloré Media, representing an enterprise value of €336 million After taking into account a €16 million pnce adjustment
related to debt and changes in working capital, the fair value of the transferred counterparty amounted to €320 million Bolloré Group
commutted to retain the Vivend: shares received in connection with the completion of this transaction for a minimum pesiod of six manths after
September 27, 2012 Since that date, Vivendi and Canal+ Group have been granted guarantees capped at €120 milhon These guaranties
expire 3 months after the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations for tax or social matters, and 18 months after September 27, 2012
for all other matters D8 and D17 have been fully consolidated since September 27, 2012 and were renamed D8 and D17, in connection with
their launch on October 7, 2012

As part of the French Competition Authority’s approval of the transaction on July 23, 2012, Yivendi and Canal+ Group undertook certain
commitments These commitments provide for restrictions on the acquisition of nghts for Amercan movies and television series from certain
American studios and for French movies, the separate negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-ar movies and television series,
limitations on the acquisition by D8 and D17 of French catalog movies from StudioCanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports
events on free-to-air channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a 5-vear perod, renewable once if the
French Competition Authority, after having performed a competitive analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty (Conse! Supéneur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain commitments
relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfes nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares far @ minimum peniod of
two and a half years

Following the closing of this transaction, Bolloré Group reported hawing increased its interest in Vivendi SA to 4 41% Subsequently, on
October 16, 2012, 1t announced that 1t had crossed the 5% threshold in Vivend SA’s share capital

On December 13, 2012, Vivendr's Supervisory Board co-opted Vincent Bolloré, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bolloré Group, as a
member of the Supervisory Board This cooptation will be submitted for ratification at the General Shareholders Meetng to be held on
Apni 30, 2013

The purchase price allocation will be finalized within the 12-month period as required by accounting standards The final amount of goodwill
may differ significantly from the provisianal goodwill of €310 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

23 Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN in Poland

In accordance with the agreement announced on December 19, 2011, and following the receipt on September 14, 2012 of unconditional
approval from the Polish Competition and Consumer Protection Authonty, on November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, ITi, and TVN finalized the
combination of their Palish Pay-TV platforms, which reman controlled by Canal+ Group, and the acquisition by Canal+ Group of a 40% interest
in N-Vision, which has been accounted for under the equity method since that date

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Canal+ Group's Cyfra+ platform} with [Tl Neovision (TVN's "n” platform), which created a new
satellite TV platform in Poland, with a base of 2 5 million customers, Canal+ Group owns a 51% interest in the new structure “nc+” {compared
to a previous 75% wnterest (n Canal+ Cyfrowy), TVN and UPC own a 32% and 17% interest, respectively As Canak Group has the majority on
the Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “nc+”, the latter has been fully consolidated by Canal+
Group since November 30, 2012

Liquidity nights
The key liquidity nghts under the agreements are as follows

o At the level of N-Vision

- [Tl has a put option to sell an additional 9% of N-Vision to Canal+ Group+, exercisable during a 80-day period beginning on
December 18, 2013, on the basis of a value equal to Group Canal+' initial investment in N-Vision, 1e for a cash price of
€61 million Since the option 1s based on an equity affiliate interest given to a third party 1t does not relate to a commitment to
purchase a non-controlling nterest, and thus foliows the accounting treatment of a denvative instrument,

Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire ITI's remaining N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time durning the two 3-month
periods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,

. conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option cn [TI's interest in N-Viston, ITI has a call option to
acquire Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month periods beginning May 30, 2016
and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June 30, 2018, at
the then-prevailing market value, and
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- Canal+ Group and [Tl each has the hquidity nght, following the above call option pertods, to sell ifs entire interest in N-Vision

o At the level of “nc+”
- Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in "nc+” at market value, which is exercisable during the 3-
month periods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2015,
- if Canal+ Group exercises its call option, Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaming interest m N-Vision, and
- inthe event that Canal+ Group does not exercise 1ts call option, TVN has iquidity nghts in the form of an Initial Public Offenng
of its interest in “ne+”

Purchase price allocation of IT! Neoavision “n~

The purchase price of 100% interest in “n" was valued at £268 million The allocation of the fair value of the acquired assets and incurred or
assumed habtlities will be finalized within the 12-month period as required by accounting standards The final amount of goodwili may differ
significantly from the provisional goodwill of £213 million recorded as of December 31, 2012 and valued according to the full goodwill method

In add:tion, in accordance with accounting standards, the dilution of Canal+ Group by 24% due to its interest in Canal+ Cytrowy resulted mn a
€114 milion income directly recogmized in equity Finally, "n” acquisition-related costs amounted to €15 million, of which €8 million were
incurred 1n 2011 These costs were recognized as other charges from EBIT in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and as investing
activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Interest in N-Vision

The 40% nterest in N-Vision was acquired by Canal+ Group for €277 million, paid in cash Simultaneously, the €120 million loan granted in
December 2011 by Canal+ Group to ITI has been redeemed As of December 31, 2012, this interest was valued using the most recent cash
flow forecasts approved by the Management of TVN, resubting in @ €119 million impairment loss {including the addibenal put option of 9%
mterest in N-Vision)

24 Other changes in the scope of consolidation

Acquisition by Canal+ Group of a non-coatroiling interest in Orange Cinema Series

On Apnl 12, 2012, Multithématiques, a subsidiary of Canak+ Group, and Orange Cinema Series entered inte a pactnership via a joint company,
Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC, in which Multithématiques acquired an approximate 33% interest and to which Orange Cinema Series
contributed the publishing and broadcasting operations of its pay cinema channels Since Apnl 5, 2012, Canal+ Distribution has been
distributing the channels of the Orange Cinema Series’ package through CanalSat On July 23, 2012, as part of the decision authonizing the
merger of TPS group and CanalSatellite, the French Competition Authority required that Canal+ Group sell 1ts non-controlling interest in
Crange Cinema Series - OCS SNC or, upon failure to sell such interest, to relinquish certain of 1ts nghts contained 1n the shareholders’
agreement between Multithématiques and Orange Cinema Series (please refer to Note 27)

Given Orange's decision not to approve any transferee, the French Competition Authonity confirmed that Group €anal+ was required 1o apply
the second part of the injunction (injunction 2{b}), requiring Multithématiques to
- dismiss the two members of Grange Cinema Series- 0CS SNC' Board of Directors appointed by Multthématiques and replace them
with independent representatives having no affiliation to Canal+ Group, and
- renounce certain rights provided in the shareholders’ agreement, in particular those relating to
o the transmission of information, notably regarding the company's performance,
o theclause which caps the expected costs of the acquisttton and production of programs in the annual budget,
¢ the non-compete clause, and
o the framework services contract between Multithématiques and Orange Cinema Senes whereby certain group entities
waould have provided support services to Orange Cinema Series

On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and i1 order to comply with the munction 2(b) ordered by the French Competition
Authority on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC' Board of Directors resigned from their positions As a result,
Multithématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to
Mulbthématiques within the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Sertes - OCS SNC

Acquisition by StudioCanal of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution

On July 17, 2012 StudioCanal announced the acquisition of a 106% interest in Hoyts Distribution, a cormpany specializing in the distribution of
feature films in Australia and New Zealand The company has been fully consolidated since that date
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Creation of Numergy by SFR

On September 5, 2012, SFR, Bull, and Caisse des Dépbts et Consignations announced the creation of Numergy, a company offering cloud
computing services to all economic players As of December 31, 2012, SFR held a 47% interest in Numergy, which is accounted for under the
equity method As of December 31, 2012, SFR subscribed to the capital increase of this new company for €105 million, of which €26 million
had been released

25 Acquisition of Vodafone’s 4% interest in SFR in June 2011

in accordance with the agreement entered into on April 3, 2011, Vivend: acquired on June 16, 2011, 2 44% interest in SFR from Vodafone for a
total amount of £7,950 million, which was paid entirely in cash This transaction valued the 44% interest 1n SFR at €7,750 million as of
January 1, 2011, to which was added a lump sum of €200 million related to the amount of cash generated by SFR between January 1 and
June 30, 2011, paid as an intenm dividend by SFR

In accordance with 1AS 27 revised standard, this transaction was accounted for as a purchase of non-controiling interests and accordingly the
consideration paid was fully recognized as a deduction from equity The difference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of
non-controlling interests acquired as of June 16, 2011, 1 e, a net amount of €6,049 millon, was recorded as a deduction from equity
attributable to Vivend SA shareowners

26 Changes in the group’s activities

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions n 2012, Vivendi's Management Board and 1ts Supervisory Board, have engaged in
a review of Vivendr's strategic development marked by a desire to strengthen its positions n media and content Given the stage of
completion of this strategic review and considenng the uncertainty of the timing of potential disposals of certain telecom busmesses, none of
the group’s business segments met the critena of IFRS 5 standard neither as of December 31, 2012, nor as of February 18, 2013, the date of
Vivendi's Management Board meeting that appraved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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Note 3 Segment data

31

Operating segment data

The Vivend: group comprises six businesses operating at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and mteractive networks Each business
offers different products and senvices that are marketed through different channels Gven the umique customer base, technology, marketing
and distribution requirements of each of these businesses, they are managed separately and represent the base of the internal reporting of
the group The Vivend: group has six businesses engaging in the operations described below

Activision Blizzard. development, publishing and distribution of interactive entertainment software, online or on ather media {such
as console and PC),

Universal Music Group sale of recorded music, including EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012, {physical and digital
media), exploitation of music pubhshing nghts as well as artist services and merchandising,

SFR a telecommunicatien operator {mobxle, broadband Internet and fixed telecommunications) in France,

Maroc Telecom group a telecommunication operator (mobile, fixed telecommunications and Internet) in Africa, predominantly in
Morocco as well as n Mauritamia, Burkina Faso, Gaban, and Mali,

GVT' a Brazilian fixed telecommunication and broadband Internet operator and, since October 2011, Brazilian pay-TV provider, and

Canal+ Group: publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels 1n metropolitan
France, Poland, Afnica, French overseas terntones and Vietnam as well as cinema film production and distnbution in Europe

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and altocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating indicators {segment eamings and cash flow from operations) Segment earnings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data 1s prepared according to the following principles

the operating segment “Holding & Corporate” icludes the cost of Vivend: SA’s headquarters in Pans and of its New York City
office, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the businesses,

the operating segment “Non-core operations and others” includes actvities penipheral to the group, notably Vivendi Mobile
Entertainment {which operates a service selling digital content on the Internet and on mobile phones under the “za0za" brand),
Wengo (the French leader in expert advisory services by phone), Digitick {the French leader in web ticketing), and See Tickets (a
British ticketing company).

intersegment commercial relations are conducted on an arm’s length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties,

the operating segments presented hereunder is stnctly identical to the infermation given to Vivendi's Management Board, and

in addition, the VTI/SFR merger had no impact on the Group’s internal reporting, SFR and Maroc Telecom group’s operational
performance still reports separately to Vivendi's Management

Vivend: also presents data categorized according to six geographic regions, consisting of its five main geographic markets {France, Rest of
Europe, United States, Morocco, and Brazil}, as well as the rest of the world
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Year ondod December 371 2012

{in millions of euros)

External revenues

{ntarsegment revenues

Revenues

Operating expenses excluding amortization and depreciation as well as

charges related to share based compensation plans

Charges related te share basad compensation plans

£BITDA

Restructunng charges

Gains/losses} on sales of tangible and intangible assets

Other non recuming items

Depraciation of tangible assets
of gible assets

business combnations

Adjustod samings before interest and ncome taxes (EBITA)

Amortization of intangibla assets acquired through businass

combinations

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business

combimationg

Raserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Carporatien itigation in the

Unrted Stetes

Other income:

Other charges

Earnings bafora intsrest and income taxes (EBIT}

Income from equity affitiates

Interest

Income fram investments

Other financial iIncome

Other financial charges

Provision for income taxes

Eamings from discontinued operations

Esmings

Of which

Eartiings sttmbutable to Vivendi SA sharoowners

Non controlling interasts

g those acquired through
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Year ended Dacamber 31, 2011

{ins emltions of euras)

Extemal revenues
Intersegment ravenues
Revenuss

Operzting n and aswell g3

charges rakstad o share-based compensation plans

Charges related 1 share-basod compensation plans

EBITDA

Restructunng charges

Bains/liosses) on sates of tangila end mangbie exsats

Other non-recurming items

Deprecizton of t2ngible asssts

Amortzation of imangible assets excludiag those acquired through
business combinations

Adusted eamnings bafore interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Amortyzation of irtangible assets acquired through business
combinabions

Impagment kosses on intangitle assats acquired through business
combinations

Gther incame

Qther charges

Eastiings bafors interest aod income taxes (EBIT)

Income from equity affiliates

Interest

Income from invastments

Othar finantial income

Other financial chargas

Provision for ncome taxes

Eamings from discontinued operations

Enmings

&f which

Earnings attributabla to Vivendi SA shareownen
Non-contofling interests
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Positron

Nan-core
Agltrwsnrgn MUmVPi_;SS' SFR Mmé Telecom avi Canal+ Group goldmg t& operauons and  Total Vivend:

fin enullions of euros) s usic Lroup roup Orporate others
Dacembaer 31, 2012
Segment assets {a} 4199 B BET 20717 6008 5085 73N 192 i3} 52734

inet nvestmeants in equity affihates 8¢ 138 - - 166 - 388
Unallocated assets {b) 5780
Total Assets 53,514
Segment liabilines (c) 1991 3548 40N 1675 680 292 4053 60 19003
Unallocated Liabilities (d) 18075
Total Liabilibes 38,078
Increase 1n tangible and intangible assets 59 B3 2765 485 996 233 1 B 45608
Capital expenditures net icapex. net) (e} 57 56 273 467 947 230 1 6 4490
Decemboer 31, 2011
Segment assets fa) 417 7594 20 065 6134 4759 7424 150 209 50 452

el mvestments w equity affiliates 85 45 - 5 135
Unallocated assets (b} 5 267
Total Assets 55,19
Segment Liabilities (c) 1998 2 764 4077 1690 618 2829 2980 50 17 006
Unallocated habilities (d) 16643
Total Liabilites 1649
Increase in tangible and intangible assets 37 55 1845 515 148 61 1 4 3461
Capital expenditures net{capex net){e) 52 52 1808 466 705 251 1 4 3340

Additional operating segment data 15 presented in Note 9 “Goodwall™ Note 10 "Content assets and commitments” and Note 13 “Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations”

a  Segment assets include goodwell contant assets other intangible assets property plani and equipment, investments in equity athliates financial assets Inventones and trade account recenvables and
other

b Unallocated assats snclude deferred tax assets current tax receivables cash and cash equivalents as well as assets held for sale
¢ Segment hiabiliies include provisions other non-current liabilities and trade scceunts payable
d  Unaltocated liabilties 1nclude borrowangs and ather financsal habilities deferred tax habriues cutrent tax payables aswel! as fiabilities related o assets held for sale

& Relates to cash used for capital expenditures net of proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
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32 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by the customers’ location

{in millions of evros)

Revenues
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Morocco
Brazl

Rest of the World

{in milhons of euros)

Segmant agssets
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Morocco
Brazl

Rest of the World

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
15,955 55% 16,800 58%
3,393 12% 3173 1%
3395 12% 3,085 1%
2029 7% 2,166 8%
1,797 6% 1,527 5%
2425 8% 2,062 7%
28,994 100% 28813 100%
December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
27539 52% 27,339 54%
2,692 5% 1,958 4%
10815 21% 9172 19%
4,347 8% 4,620 3%
5127 10% 4,791 10%
2214 4% 1972 4%
52,734 100% 50,452 160%

Tuesday February 26, 2013

In 2012 and 2011, acquisibons of tangible and ntangible assets were mainly reakzed in France by SFR and Canal+ Group, in Moroceo by
Maroc Telecem SA, and in Brazil by GVT

Note 4

Broakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2012 201

Product sales, net 8,262 7.598

Services revenues 20,648 21175

Dther 84 40

Revenues 28,994 28813

Cost of products sold, net {4,932) (4.811)

Cost of service revenues {9,444) (9,585)

Other 12 5

Cost of revenues {14,354) {14,391}
Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

{:n millions of eurcs except number of employees) Note 012 2011
Annual average number of full-time equivalent smployees {In thousands) 1 584
Salaries 2559 23%
Social secunty and other employment charges 723 654
Capitalized personnel costs {268) (211}
Wages and expenses 3,013 2839
Share-based compensation plans 2t 170 19
Employee berefit plans 201 73 7
Other 275 266
Personnel costs 3,532 3,305
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Additional information on operating expenses

Research and development expenditures amounted to €718 million 1n 2012 (compared to €722 rillion in 2011} and comprsed all internal or
external net costs brought to earnings for the periods reported

Advertising costs amounted to €900 mullion in 2012 (compared to €877 million in 2011)

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €116 million
n 2012 {compared to €112 million 1n 2011}

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Earmings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €580 million 1n 2012 {compared to
€576 milhon 1n 2011}

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Year ended December 31,

{in mullions of euros) Note 2012 2014
Amortization [excluding intangible assets acquired through business combinations) 2682 2534
of which praperty, plant and equipment 12 1,744 1,662
content assets 10 122 117
other itangrble assets " 818 755
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 487 510
of which content assets 10 324 326
other intangible assets n 163 150
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 8-10 760 397
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 3929 i

a  Maly relates to the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill (€665 million} and certain goodwill, and music catalogs of Universal
Music Group {€94 million) in 2012 and to the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwll (€380 million) in 2011

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31

{iIn mithons of euros) Note 2012 201
Impact related to the settlement of the hitigation over the share ownership of FTC in Poland 26 - 1,255
Capital gain on the divestiture of businesses 5 14
Capital gain on financial investments 8 93

of which the sale of UMG's interest in Beats Electronics 4 83
Other 9 23

Other income 2 1,385
Downside adjustment on the dvestiture of businesses {3 (5)
Downside adjustment on financial nvestments (193) (421}

of which mmpairment of Canal+ Group's N-Vision equity affriate 2z {1139} -
the capital loss on the sale of the remaming 12 34% interest in NBC Universal - {421)
QOther {79} (230)
of which acquisition costs reiated to EMI Recorded Music and ITI Neovision “n* 2 {63} f14)
sattiements with the Brazihan Authortties regarding ICMS 27 {7} {165)
Other charges (235} (656}
Net total {213) 729
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Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2012 2011
{Charge)/Income
interest expense on borrowings {599} {529)
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 31 48
Interest {568} (481)
Fees and premums on borrowings and credit faciities 1ssved/redeemed and early unwinding
of hedging derivative instruments (15) {52)

{583} (533)

Other financial income and charges

Year ended Decemnber 31,

{in millions of guros) Note 2012 2011
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 202 12 9
Change in value of denivative instruments 23 -
Other 2 5

Other tinancial income K7} 14
Effect of undiscounting liabilities {a) {31} {33)
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 202 (38) {35)
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facilities 1ssued/redeemed and early unwnding of
hedging denvative nstruments {15} {52)
Foreign exchange loss {105} {Zn

of which GYT's suro borrowing ta Vivend SA 23 176} (24)
Change in value of denvatwe instruments - {109
{Other {21) {10)

Other financial charges (210} {167)

Net total {173} {153)

a  Inaccordance with accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 15 matenial, assets and habilities are imtially
recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and habilities 1s adjusted to account for the passage
of tme As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, these adjustments only applied to liabilities (mamly trade accounts payable and
provisions}
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivend: benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2011 «ncluded, from the Consolidated
Globa! Profit Tax System, as authonzed under Article 209 quinquies of the French Tax Code

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi 1s entitled to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidianies that are at least 95% directly or indirectly owned by 1t, and that are located in France Universal Music in France,
SFR (as of January 1, 2011}, and Canal+ Group (excluding Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, in which Vivend: directly or indirectly
owns at most 80% of the ocutstanding shares),

Until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System entitied Vivend: to consolidate i1ts own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that are at least 50% directly or indirectly owned by 1t, and that are located in
France or abroad, 1 e, besides the French companies that are at least 39% directly or indirectly owned by Vivendi Activision
Blizzard, Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Société d'Edition de Canal
Plus {SECP) As a reminder, as of May 19, 2008, Vivend applied to the French Mimistry of Finance for the renewal of its
authonization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authorzation was granted by an order dated
March 13, 2009, for & three-year period beginming with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

The changes in French Tax Law 1n 2011 capped the deduction for tax losses carned forward at 60% of taxable income and
terminated the Consohidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carried
forward 1s capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest 1s imited to 85% of financial charges, net

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend:'s tax attributes (tax losses and
tax credsts carried forward) are as follows

As Vivend! considers that its entitiement to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effectve until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Mimistry of Finance, and thereby included fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, 1t filed on
November 30, 2012, and asked for the refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 201t However, as this fiscal position may be challenged, Vivend: has accrued a €366 million provision for the
associated risk (please refer to Note 6 6, below},

Moreover, considening that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System tax credits can be carried forward upon the maturity of the
authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivend) will request a refund of the taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the
year ended December 31, 2012, excluding social contributions and exceptional contributions, or €208 million Similarly, this fiscal
position may be challenged and Vivend: has accrued a €208 million provision for the associated risk (please refer to Note 6 6,
below),

Considering the above, as of December 31, 2011, Vivend: recorded tax attrbutes amounting to a potential tax saving for a total of
€2,013 million On February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2012, the 2012 tax results of the subsidianies within the scope of Vivend: SA’s French Tax Group System
were determined as an estimate, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes at such date could not be determined with certainty,
After the impact of the estimated 2012 tax results and before the impact of the potential conseguences of the ongoing tax audits
{please refer to Note 6 6 below) on the amount of tax attnibutes, Vivend: SA should achieve tax saving from tax attnbutes of
£€1.567 million {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 36 10%), and

As of December 31, 2012, Vivend SA valued its tax attnbutes under the French Tax Group System based on one year's forecast
results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivend) would benefit from the French Tax Group System tax savings
in an amount of €324 milion {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 36 10%})

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2012 Vivend: /82




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

6.2 Provision for income taxes

Year ended Decernber 31
{in milions of euros} Note 2012 201
{Chargel/income
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Tax savings related to Vivends SA's French Tax Graup System and to the

Consolidated Global Profit Tax System 61 m 565
Tax savings related to the US tax group 20 40
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense 21} "
Consideration of nisks related to previous years' income taxes {62} (253}
' Other income taxes items {1471) {1,584}
T {1,153) 1,21
Defarred
Impact of Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System 61 {48) {129)
Impact of the US tax group - -
Other changes in deferred tax assets 2 43
Impact of the changels) In tax rates (4) B
Other deferred tax income/{expenses) 44 {77)
{6) {157)
Provision for income taxes {1,159 (1.378)

6.3 Pravision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic region

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) 2012 20m
{Chargel/Income
Current
France {510} {549)
Umited States {198} 112)
Morocco (257} 1313)
Brazil {87) {45}
Other junisdictions {101} {202)
{1,153} (1.21)
Defarrad
France {38} 217}
United States (22} {83
Morocco 3 3
Brazil {1 a0
Other junisdictions 62 50
(6} {157}
Provision for income taxes {1,159} {1378)
Income tax {padi/collected
France {189} 322}
United States {169} {207
Morocco {256} {338)
Braut (14 61}
Other junsdictions {134) (162)
Income tax paid (762} {1,090)
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6.4 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros except %) Note 2012 20
Earnsngs from continuing operations before provision for income taxes 2,108 5,105
Elmnation
Incame from equity affiiates ki 18
Earnings before provision for income taxes 2,146 5123
French statutory tax rate 36 10% 36 10%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate (775} (1,849)
Reconcihatron of the theoretica! and effective provision for income taxes
Permanent differences 42 133
of which other differences from tax rates &6 88
impacts of the changes in tax rates i4) 6
Vivendi $A's French Tax Group System and Consolidated Global Profit Tax System 61 Rk <] 436
of which  cument tax savings 361 565
changes in related deferred tax assets (48) (129}
Other tax losses and tax credits (3t 1
of which  use of current Josses of the period 4 -
use of unrecagnized lpsses and tax credits 31 56
unrecogmized lasses {38) {67)
Other temporary differences (341) 19
of which reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation htigatian in the Unted States {341)
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense {65) {248}
of which consideration of risks related to previous years' Income taxes {62} {253}
Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside edjustments on financial
investments or businesses (313) {140}
of which impairment of Canal+ france goodwill {240) {137}
imparrment of Canal+ Group's N-Vision equity affiliate {43) -
Other (37} 82
Etlective provision for income taxes !1!159! {1.378)
Effective tax rate 54 0% 26 9%

6.5 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2012 2011
Opeming balance of deferred tax assets/{habilties) 693 880
Provision for ncame taxes (6) {157)
Charges and income directly recorded in equity (8) {3 {25)
Business combinations {278) {1}
Changes I1n foreign currency translation adjustments and other 3 ()
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{habiliies} 409

a  Includes +€1 million recogmized n other items of charges and income directly recogmized in equity for the year ended
December 31, 2012 {compared to -€24 million as of December 31, 2011}

Financal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 mz Vivend: /84




Components of deferred tax assets and hiabilities

(in millions of euros}
Deferred tax assets
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December 31, 2012

December 31 2011

Deferred taxes, gross
Tax attributes (a) 2,639 3742
of which Vivend: SA (b) 1,567 2653
Vivends Holding | Comp (c) 623 601
Tempoarary differences (d} 1734 1,404
Netting {366) 414)
Defarsed taxes, gross 4,007 4732
Deferred taxes unrecognized
Tax atiributes (a) {2138) {3175
of which Vivend SA (b} f1,243) {2.281)
Vivend: Holdng ! Carg (¢} {623} (601}
Temporary differences {d) {469} (136)
Deferred taxes, unrecognized {2.607) 3311}
Recorded deferred tax assets 1,300 1421
Deferred tax hiabilities
Purchase accounting asset revaluations (e} 901 742
Other 456 400
Netting {366) {414)
Recorded deferred tax habilities Ll 24
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities}, net 209 693

a

The amounts of tax attributes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junisdictions which
are material to Vivend, manly France and the United States, tax retums are filed at the latest on May 15 and September 15 of the
fallowing year, respectively Thus, the amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may differ significantly, and If necessary, may be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table ahove

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
£2,013 mulion as of December 31, 2011, of whuch €1,053 mullion related to tax losses {please rafer ta Note 6 1 ahove) and €958 muilion
related to tax credits, after taking into account the estimated impact {-€446 million} of 2012 actvities (taxable income and use or
expiration of tax credits), but prior to taking into account the potential consequences of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 66
below}

in France. tax losses can be camed forward indefimtely and 1ax credits can be carried forward for a penod of up to S-years No tax
credit matured as of December 31, 2012

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi Holding | Corp in the United States as head of the
US tax group, representing $848 million as of December 31, 2011, after taking into account the estimated impact {-€22 million) of 2012
activities {taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, as well as capital losses and tax credits generated), but prior to
taking into account the potential conseguences of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6 below)

In the United States, tax losses can be carned forward for a peniod of up to 20-years and tax crechts can be carried forward for a period
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2022 and $6 million tax credits matured as of December 31, 2012

Mainly relates the deferred tax assets refated to non-deducted provisions upon recegnition, including provisions relating to employee
benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans

These tax liabilities, generated by asset revaluations following the purchase price allocation of companies are terminated upon the
amortization or divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge
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6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authorities in the junsdictions in which
Vivendr has or had operations Various tax authonties have proposed or levied assessments for additional tax i respect of prior years It1s
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of certain
of these audits Vivendi Management believes however, that 1t has serious legal means to defend the positions it has chosen for the
determination of the taxable income of the fiscal years currently under a tax audit Vivendi Management beileves that these tax audits will
not have a matenal and unfavorable impact on the results of operations, financial position or hquidity of Vivendi Moreover, the impact of
the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 was accrued (€366 miflion), as well as the impact related to the use of tax credits in 2012
(€208 milhon)

In addition, 1n respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consolidated income reported for fiscal years 2006, 2007, and 2008
s under audit by the French tax authorities This tax audit started in January 2010 In addition, 1n January 2011, the French tax authorities
began a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for the fiscal year 2003 and in February 2013, the French tax authorities began a tax
audit on the consolidated income reported for the fiscal year 2010 Finally, the consequences of the tax audit for fiscal years 2004 and 2005 dvd
not matenally impact the amount of tax attributes

Vivendi’s US tax group had been under tax audit for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 The consequences of this
tax audit did not matenally impact the amount of tax attibutes Vivendi’'s US tax group Is under tax audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax audt started in February 2012

Finally, Maroc Telecom 1s under a tax audtt for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007, and 2008 This tax audit 1s currently
In progress

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners {in millions
of euros} 164 161 {a) 2681 2,678 (a)
Number of shares {in millons)
Waeighted average number of shares outstanding {b) (c) 1.2989 1,2989 12814 1,2814
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation (d) - 35 - 24
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 12989 13024 12814 126838
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners par share (in
euros) (b} 013 012 209 209

Easnings from discontinued operations are not applicable over the presented periods Therefore, the caption “earnings from continuing
operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners” relates to earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

a  Only includes the potential dilutive effect related to stock option plans and restricted stock rights of Actvision Blizzard for a non-
matenal amount (please refer to Note 21 3}

b The weighted-average number of shares and earmings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share have been adusted for all
periods previously published in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to gach shareowner on May 9, 2012 cf ong bonus
share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with 1AS 33 - Earmings per share please refer to Note 18}

c Net of treasury shares [please refer to Note 18)

d Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares 1n connection with Vivend SA's share-based compensation plans 1s presented in Note 21 22
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Year ended December 31, 2012

(in mullions of euros) Note Gross Tax Net
Foreign currency transiation adjustments {a} (605) - (605}
Assets avallable for sale 15 63 - 63
Valuation gains/llosses] taken to equity 55 - a5
Transferred to profit or loss of the period 8 - g
Cash flow hedge nstruments 23 22 1 23
Valuation gamns/flosses) taken to equity 41 { 42
Transferred to profit or loss of the penod {19) - {19
Net nvestrnent hedge instruments 23 17 - 17
Valuation gains/losses) taken to equity 17 - 17
Transferred to profit or loss of the perod - - -
Charges and income directly recognized in equity (503} 1 (502}
Year ended December 31, 2011
{in milfions of euros) Nate Gross Tax Net
Foreign currency translation adjustments {a) 182 - 182
Transferred to profit or ioss as part of the sale of NBC Universal
interest (b) 477 - 477
Agsets available for sale 15 15 - 15
Vaiuation gams/{iosses) taken to equity 15 - 15
Transferred to profit or loss of the period - - -
Cash flow hedge instruments 23 78 (24) 54
Valuation gatns/{losses) taken to equity {5 2z {3)
Transferred ta profit or loss of the penod 83 (28} 57
Net investment hedge instruments 23 21 - 21
Valuation gains/{losses) taken to equity - - -
Transferred to profit or loss of the perod 21 - 21
Other impacts 12 - 12
Charges and income directly recogmzed in equity 308 {24} 284

a  The change In foreign currency translation adjustments pnimarly resulted from ffuctuations in the euro/doliar exchange rate {mainly at
Activision Blizzard and Universal Music Group) and in the euro/Brazilian Real exchange rate {at GVT}

b Includes a foreign exchange loss attnbutable to the decline of the US dollar since January 1, 2004, recognized upon the sale of the
remaining 12 34% interest in NBC Universal on January 25, 2011
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Note 9 Goodwill

{(in milions of euros)

Goodwill, gross
impairment losses
Goodwill

Changes in goodwill
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December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

37,940 37.716
{13,284 {12,747)
24,656 25,029

Divestitures changes n

Decamber 31, Impairment losses Business combinatians foreign currency Decermber 31
20m translation adjustments 2082
{in millions of euros) and other
Activision Blizzard 2309 - [54) 2,255
of which Activision 2265 - {53) 2212
Bhzzard 44 - 1 43
Universal Music Group 4114 {85} (a) 304 (b) (195) 4,138
SFR 9152 - 1 - 9153
Maroc Telecom Group 2413 - - {6} 2407
of which Maroc Telecom SA 1795 - ) 1,780
subsidiaries 618 gl 617
GVT 2222 - - {216) 2,006
Canal+ Group 4648 {665) 537 {7 4513
of which Canal+ Franca 4,309 (665) - (s 3635
StudioCanaf 192 - 14 7 207
D8/o17 - 310 (o) - a1
nc+ 25 - 213 (8} 230
Non-core operations and others 171 1) 7 7 184
Total 25029 (751) 849 (471) 24556
Divestitures, changes in
December 31 npairment losses Business foreign currency December 31
2010 combinations translation adjustments 2011
[in miliions of euros} and other
Activision Blizzard 2257 (4} 2 54 2309
of which Actwision 2,209 - 2 54 2,265
Bhzzard 44 - - - 44
Distribution 4 {4} - - -
Universal Music Group 4,011 5 98 4114
SFR 3170 - {18} 9,152
Maroc Telecom Group 2,409 1 3 2413
of wiich Maroc Telecomn SA 1792 - 3 1,795
subsidiaries 617 7 - 618
GvVT 2423 - {201} 2222
Canak+ Group 4,992 (386) 42 . 4648
of which Canal+ France 4589 {380/ - - 4,308
StudioCanal 149 - 42 ! 192
Non-core operations and others 83 - 88 (e} - 171
Total 25,345 {390} 138 (64) 25,029

a Relates to impairment losses related to certain music catalogs of Universa! Music Group

b Manly relates to provisional goodwill attributable to the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 (please refer to

Note 2 1}

c Relates to provisional goodwill attnbutable to the acquisition of D8 and D17 on September 27, 2012 (please refer to Note 2 2)

d Relates to provisional goodwill attributable to the acquisition of “n”, which was finalized on November 30, 2012 {please refer to Note

23)

e  Manly refated to goodwill attnbutable to the acquisition of See Tickets in August 2011
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Goodwill impairment test

[n 2012, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to its cash-generating units {CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years Vivend! ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded their carrying value
{including geodwill) The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {discounted cash flow method {DCF)) and the fair value (less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable hsted compan:es, comparison with the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies (n recent transactions} For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUSs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units {CGU) CGU or groups of GGV tested
Activision Activision
Activision Blizzard Blizzard Blizzard
Distnbution Oistribution

Universal Music Graup

Racorded music

Artist services and merchandising

Music publishing

Universal Music Group

EMI Recordad music

{a)

Mohile

SFR FR
Broadband Internet and fixed SER{el
Mobile
Fixed and Interngt Maroc Telecom
Onatel Onatel
Maro Telecom Group Gabon Telecom Gabon Telecom
Mauritel Maurtel
Sotelma Sotelma
GVT GVT GVT
Pay-TV in Metropolitan France Canal+ France
Canal+ Qverseas
Canak Group D8/D17 Free-to-air TV D8/D17 Free ta-air TV [a)
StudioCanal StudioCanal
Other enbities Other entities (a)

a  Asof December 31, 2012, no goodwill impaimment test regarding EMI Recorded Music, DB/D17 and “nc+” was undertaken given that the
purchase price allocation date was close to the closing date, and considering that no tnggenng event had occurred between those dates

b Due to the increased convergence of SFR's Mobile, and Broadband Interet and fixed services, Vivendi Management adjusted, in
2011, the level at which SFR’s return on investments 1s monitored Consequently, Vivendi now performs a goodwill impairment test by
combining SFR's Mobile CGU and Broadband Internet and fixed CGU

As of June 30, 2012, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to GVT, on the basis of an internal valuation of the recoverable amount
of GVT As a result, Vivendi Management concluded that the recoverable amount of GVT exceeded 1ts carrying value as of June 30, 2012 As
from June 30, 2012, no tnggerning event occurred that would require performing an impairment test regarding GVT as of December 31, 2012

During the fourth quarter of 2012, Vivend: performed such test on each cash generating unit (CGU) or groups of CGU, except for GVT, on the
basis of an internal valuation of recoverable amounts, except n the case of Activision Blizzard, Universal Music Group {UMG), and SFR, for
which Vivendi required the assistance of third-party appraisers As a result, Vivendi Management concluded that, except in the case of
Canal+ France, the recoverable amount of each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value as of December 31, 2012

e Canal+ France as of December 31, 2011, Vivendi Management noted that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was below its
carrying value, and consequently recorded an imparment loss of €380 million As of December 31, 2012, as for the goodwill
impairment test performed as of December 31, 2011, Canal+ France's recoverable amount was determined upon the basis of the
value in use based on the DCF methed, using the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, as
well as financial assumptions consistent with previous years a discount rate of 9% and a perpetual growth rate of 150%
{unchanged compared to December 31, 2011) - please refer to the table below As a result, considering primarly the expected
impact on revenues in Metrapolitan France of the increase in the VAT rate from 7% to 10% as of January 1. 2014 and, to a lesser
extent, the adverse changes in the macro-economic and competitive environment since the second half of 2012, Vivend
Management concluded that Canal+ France's recoverable amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2012, and
consequently recorded an impairment |oss of €665 million

» SFR as of December 31, 2011, and June 30, 2012, Vivend: had re-examined the value of SFR's goodwill and concluded that the
recoverable amount of SFR exceeded its carrying value at those dates As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi again examined the value
of SFR's goodwill At that date, and as of December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2012, SFR’s recoverable amount was determined upon
the basis of the usual valuation methods, in particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash flow
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forecasts, and fimancial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated in order to take into
account (1) the expected 1impact of the new tanff policies decided by SFR during the second half of 2012 and early 2013, following
the evolution of the competitive environment, (i) the downward adjustment in the perpetual grewth rate assumption {0 50%,
compared to 1% at the end of June 2012 and end of 2011) and {1} the acceleration in very-high speed broadband investments As
a result, Vivend)'s Management concluded that SFR's recoverable amount, despite its decline, exceeded its carrying value as of
December 31, 2012 - please refer to tables below

Presentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverahle amounts

The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU I1s detemmined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flaw project:ons consistent
with the 2013 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each operating segment
on the basis of the financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate, and EBITA as defined in
Note 1 23, caprtal expenditures, competitive environment, regulatory environment, technological development and level of commercial expenses
Except for Marac Telecom, for which the recaverable amount is determined based on its stack market price, the recoverabte amount for each CGU or

groups of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with the main key assumptions presented below

The Annual Report contains a detailed descnption of the 2013 operating performance projections for each operating segment of the group

Valustion Method Discount Rate (a} Parpetual Growth Rate
Operating segments CGU or groups of CBU tested 2012 201 12 FIT] m: 2011
Actvision DCF stock market price & | DCF stock market prce & 1050% 10.00% 200% 400%
comparables model comparables model
Actision Bizard Blizzard DCF stock market price & | DCF stock market price & 1050% 10.00% 400% a00%
comparables model comparahles model
Drstribution DCF & comparables medel | DCF & comparables model 13 50% 13 00% -4 00% 4 00%
Unwersal Music Group Unversal Music Group DCF & comparables model | DCF & comparables model 375% 3 25% 100% 100%
SFR SFR DCF & comparables mode! DCF 730% 700% 050% 100%
Maroc Telecom Stock market pnce Stock market prce na* na® na® na*
Onatel DCF DCF 14 40% 1370% 300% 300%
Maroc Telecom Group Gabon Telecom DCF DCF 12 70% 1170% 300% 300%
Mauritel DCF DCF 17 40% 1900% I00% 300%
Sotelma DCF DCF 14 60% 13 50% 300% 300%
GVT {B) GVT DCF DCF & comparables mode! 1091% 11 54% 400% 400%
Canal+ France DCF ocF 300% 900% 150% 150%
Canal: Grovp $tudoCanal DeF ocF 300% 900% 000% 000%

na* notapplicable

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts

consistent with the ones that would have been sbtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Regarding GVT, an annual impairment test on the value of goodwill was performed in the second quarter of each fiscal year
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December 31 2012

Discount rate

Perpetual growth rate

Cash flaws

Change in the ciscount rate in order for

Change In the perpetual growth rate 1n

Change in cash flows in order for the

Apphed tha recoverable amount 1o be equat 10 Apphed oides for the recoverable amount to be Tecoverable amount 1o be equal to the
| rate the carrying amount rate equal to the carrying amount carrying amount
{in %) {in number of points} {in %) {in number of paints} {In %}

Actvizion Blizard
Activision 1050% +978pts 400% 2415p1s 58%
Bhizzard 1050% +1019 p1s 400% 25 W pts 68%
Universal Music Group 975% +298 p1s 100% 491 pts 5%
SFR 730% +0 68 pt 050% 121pt -10%
Maroc Telocom Group {al {a) {a) fa) (@
GVT (bj 1091% +251pts 400% 55 pts 36%

Canal+ Group
Canah+ France ¢} 900% fc} 150% (3] {c}
StudioCanal 900% +323 pts 000% -5 55 pts 20%
December 31, 2013
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows

Change in the discount rate in order for Change in the perpetual growth rate in Changa m cash flows i order for the
Apphed the recaverable amount to be egual to Appled order for the recoverabla amount to be recovarable amount ta be equal ta the
rate the carrying amount rae equal 1o the carrying amount carrying amount
n %) fin nurnber of ponts) {n %) {m numier of puints) {in %)

Actoision Blizzard
Actmsion 1000% +1416 pts 400% -5525pts 53%
Blizzard 10 00% +1277 pis 400% -4 25 pts -10%
Umivarsal Music Group 925% +125pt 100% 186 pt -13%
SFR 700% +249 pts 1 00% -4 T4 pts 32%
Margc Telacam Group (1] (s} () @) (g}
GVT (b} 11 % +1 64 pt 400% -3 pts 25%

Cansl+ Group

Canal+ France {c) 900% (3} 150% ic) {c)
SwdioCanal 900% +1899pt 000% -3 31 pts -i1%

a As of December 31. 2012, and December 31, 2011, Maroc Telecom was valued based on its stock market price

b The goodwill impairment tests on GVT were undertaken on June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011

¢ Inrelation to the recognition of a goodwilll impairment loss on Canal+ France as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
please refer below for a sensitivity analysis , which presents {the increase)/decrease in impasment generated by a change of
25 points 1n the discount rate and the perpetual growth rate assumptions, and a 2% change in the cash flow assumption with each of

these assumptions being taken separately for the goodwill impairment test

Dhscount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
{in milhons of euros) 25pts 25pts 25 pts 25 pts 2% 2%
December 31, 2012 {133} 142 105 {98} 77 4]
Dacember 31, 2011 {149} 158 17 (108} 87 {87}
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Note 10

10.1 Content assets

{in millsons of euros)

Internally developed franchises and other games content assets
Games advances

Music catalogs and publishing nghts

Advances to artists and repertoire owners

Merchandising contracts and artists services

Film and television costs

Sports nghts (a)

Content assels

Deduction of current content assets

Non-current content assets

{in millions of euros)

Intemally developed franchises and other games cantent assets
Games advances

Music catalegs and publishing nights

Advances to artists and repertoire owners

Merchandising contracts and artists services

Film and television costs

Sports rnights {a)

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets

Non-current content assets

Content assets and commitments

Tuesday February 26, 2013

December 31, 2012

Content assets, gross Accumulated amoruzauion Content assels
and impament losses

493 {331} 162
13 - 133
7222 {4 871) 2351
618 - 618

i (15) 0
5522 (4 758) 766

3N - 331

1434 {9,973) 4N
{1,118} 74 {1,044)
13,226 {9,899} 337

December 31, 2011
Accumulated amartization
Content assets gross Cantent assets
and impairment losses

4 (315} 156

9N - g1
6,420 (4743} 1,677
515 - 515

25 {12} 13
5129 {4 409) 7120
3719 - 379
13,030 (9.479) 3,551
{1,086} 30 {1.086)
11,934 (9,449} 2,485

a Primanily relates to the rights to broadcast the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded in 2011 to Canal+ Group for four seasons
{2012-2013 to 2015-2016), which are recognized as follows upon the start of the season or upon the initial payment, the nghts for the
2012-2013 season were recorded in content assets for €427 million on August 1, 2012 (compared to €465 milion on August 1, 2011)
The remaining three seasons (2013-2014 to 2015-2016) were recognized as given off balance sheet commitments (please refer to Note
10 2 below}

Changes in main content assets

Year ended Decgrmber 31
{in millions of euros) 2012 201
Opening balance 3551 3816
Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations {122 mn
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations {324} {320}
Impairment losses on content assets acquired through business combinations {9) (a} {7
Increase 2585 27n
Decrease {2252} {2251)
Business combinations 1,077 (b 38
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other {135) 115
Closing balance 43N 3551

a Relates to the impairment of certain UMG music catalogs

b Primarily relates to the music catalogs acquired from EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 (please refer to Note 21)
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10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position’ content liabihties

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Content liabil:ties are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of “Other non-current liabiities” whether they are current or

non-current, as apphcable [please refer to Note 16)

Mirimum future payments as of December 31, 2012

Total minimum future

Total Due in payments as of
{in mithons of euios) 2013 2018-3017 After 2017 December 31, 201
Games royalies 22 /4 - 28
Music royalties to artists and repertoire awners 1579 1477 102 1398
Film and telewision rights {a} 189 189 - 235
Sports nghts 374 374 - - 438
Creatwe talent, employment agreements and others 119 41 72 B 49
Content ltabnlities 2283 2108 1714 6 2148
Off balance sheet commitments given/{receved)
Minimum future payments as of December 31 2012 Total minemum future
Total Due in payments as of

{in millions of euros) 2013 2014-2017 After 2017 December 31 2011
Film and television nghts {a) 2,590 1,138 1,411 41 2,143
Sports nghts (b} 115 612 1,103 2,052
Creative talent employment agreements and others (c) 959 478 445 36 1009
Given commitments 5264 22728 2,959 77 5204
Fitm and television nghis {3} {114) 72) 142} - {85)
Sports fights (12} n {5} {15}
Creative talent, employment agreements and others {c) not available

Other 1199} (78) {121) {63}
Received commitments {325) {157} {168} - {163
Total net 4939 201 27191 n 5,041

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2012

Mainly includes contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of fitm and TV productions {mainly excluswity contracts with major
US studios) and pre-purchase contracts m the French movie industry, StudioCanal film praduction and co-production commitments
{given and recerved} and broadcasting nghts of CanalSat and Cyfra+/"n” multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadcast 1s available for nitial release As of December 31, 2012, provisions recorded relating to these
commitments amounted to €86 million, compared to €153 million as of December 31, 2011

In addition, this amount does not include commitments given in relation to channel night contracts for which Canal+ Group and GVT
{following the launch of its pay-TV offer in October 2011} did not grant mimimum guarantees The variable amount of these
commitments cannot be reliably determined and 1s not reported in the Statement of Finaneeal Position or in given commitments and 15
instead recorded as an expense for the period in which 1t was incurred Based on the estimation of the future subscriber number at
Canal+ Group, commitments 1n refation to channel nght contracts would have increased by €288 million as of December 31, 2012,
compared to €143 million as of December 31, 2011

Moreover, according to the agreement entered into with cinema professional organizations en December 18, 2009, Société d'Edition
de Canal Plus (SECP) 1s required to invest, every year for a five-year period (2010-2014}, 12 5% of its annual revenues in the financing
of European films With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements with producers and authors’ organizations, Canal+
France s required to invest a percentage of its revenues in the financing of hentage work every year

Agresments with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ organizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

Notably includes the nights to broadcast the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded to Canal+ Group in 2011 The price paid by
Canal+ Group represents €427 mullion per season, o a total of €1,281 million as of December 31, 2012 for the 2013-2014 to 2015-2016
seasans, compared to €1,708 million as of December 31, 2011 These commitments will be recogmized 1n the Statement of Financial
Fosition either upon the start of every season or upon nitial payment

Prmanly relates to UMG which routinely commits to artists and other parties to pay agreed amounts upon delivery of content or other
products [*Creative talent and employment agreements”) Until the artist or the other party has delvered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses 1ts obligation as an off balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
15 abligated to deliver & content or other product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
reliably determined and, thus, 1s not reported in received commitments

Vivend /93




Note 11

Other intangible assets

December 31 2012

Other intangible assets

Accumulated amortization

Other ntangible assets

(in milhons of euros) gross and impairment 105565

Software 5447 {4,035) i,412

Telecom hicenses 2,960 {811} 2,149

Customer bases 962 (728) 237

Trade names 462 {53} 409

Other 2110 {1,127 983
11,941 {6,751} 5190

{in millions of euras)

December 31 2011

COther ntangible assets,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

gross and impairment losses
Software 5015 13.692) 1,363
Telecom licenses 1,848 {705) 1143
Customer bases 986 {616} 370
Trade names am (52) 429
Other 1 956 {932) 1,024
10,286 (ﬂ 4329

Tuesday, February 26 2013

Software includes acquired software, net for 592 million as of December 31, 2012 (€636 million as of Oecember 31, 2011}, amortized over
A-years as well as SFR’s internally developed software

Trade names relate to trade names acquired from GVT 1n 2009 and Activision (n 2008

Other intangible assets notably include indefeasible nghts of use {IRU) and other long-term occupational nghts, net for €236 million as of

December 31, 2012 (€328 million as of December 31, 2011)

Changes in other intangible assets

Year ended December 31,

{in mithons of euros) 072 2011
Opening balance 4329 4408
Depreciation {979} {945}
Acquisitions {a) 1,645 581
Increase related to internal developments 204 276
Divestitures/Decrease (4 {11}
Business combinations 38 14
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments {52} {11}
Other 19 17
Closing balance 5,190 438

a Includes the acquisition by SFR of 4G spectrum {very-high-speed Internet - LTE) for €1,065 million in 2012 and €150 mullion n 2011

Depreciation 1s recognized as cost of revenues and 1n selling, general and administrative expenses It mainly consists of SFR's telecom
hcenses {-€73 million in 2012, compared to -€72 million in 2011}, internally developed software (€221 million in 2012, compared to
-€199 million m 2011), and acquired software {-€244 million in 2012, compared to -€273 millon in 2011)
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Note 12

{in millons of euros}

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress
Other

{in milions of euros}

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Constructron-in progress
Other

Property, plant and equipment

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

December 31, 2012

Property plant and
equipment, gross

Accumulated
depreciatton and
impairment losses

Property plant and equipment

242 {2 240
377 i2.143] 1,564
13,939 (8.071) 5 868
375 - 375
4637 (2,758} 1879
22,800 (12,974) 9,926

Oecember 31 2011

Property plant and
equipment gross

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment losses

Property plant and equipment

227 (2) 225
2790 {1616) 1174
13443 {7 770) 5673
323 - 323
4,380 (2774} 1,606
21163 112,162} 9,001

As of December 31, 2012, other property, plant and equipment, net, notably ncluded set-top boxes, for €974 million, compared to
€807 million as of December 31, 2011 In addition, property, plant and equipment financed pursuant to finance leases amounted to
€58 mullion, compared to €60 million as of Decernber 31, 2011

Changes in propenty, plant and equipment

{in millions of guros)

Opening balance
Depreciation
Acquisitions/Increase
Owvestitures/Decrease
Bustness combinations

Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments

Other
Closing balance

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
9,001 8217
{1,743) (1662}
2,769 2604
(39) (29}
170 7
1232) (140)
. 4
A A

The depreciation 1s recognized as cost of revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses It mainly consists of the depreciation
of buildings {-€151 million in 2012, unchanged compared to 2011) and equipment and machinery (-€1,081 million in 2012, compared to

-€1,100 mithon in 2011)
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Note 13  Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations

{in millhons of euros)

Other intangible assets, net
Software

Telecom licenses

Customer bases

Trade names

Other

Property, plant and equipment, net
Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-In-progress

Other

Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net

{in milltons of euros)

Other intangible assets, net
Software

Telecom licenses

Customer bases

Trade names

Other

Property, plant and equipment, net
Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Canstruction-in-progress

Other

Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net

December 31 2012

Maroc Telecom

SFR GVT Total
Group
1112 182 56 1,350
2002 {a) 147 2,149
152 2 72 226
- 1 117 118
816 50 13 879
4,082 32 8 4,722
g7 131 - 228
1182 315 16 1,613
2117 1747 1,885 5,749
314 . - 314
758 97 334 1189
4468 2290 235 8,993
8,550 2672 2433 13,715
December 31 2011
SFR Maroc Telecom VT Total
Group
10582 206 54 1312
963 {a) 180 - 1,143
218 V3 135 355
1 129 130
885 39 16 940
3118 428 3 3,580
83 131 - 214
855 264 15 1134
22N 1,730 1,532 5533
285 - - 285
750 115 167 1032
4234 2240 1,714 8,198
7,362 2,668 248 12,078

a  SFR holds licenses for its networks and for the supply of its telecommunications services in France, for a 15-year period for GSM
{between March 2006 and March 2021) and a 20-year penad for both UMTS (between August 2001 and August 2021) and LTE (between
January 2012 and January 2032), with the following financial conditions

e for the GSM license, an annual payment over 15 years compnsed of a |1} fixed portion 1+ an amount of €25 millon for each year
{capitalized over the period based on a present value of €278 million in 2006} and {11} a vaniable portion equal to 1% of the yearly

revenues generated by th:s technology,

e  for the UMTS license, the fixed amount paid in 2001 (€619 million) was recorded as an Intangible asset and the vanable part of the
fee 1s equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this technology Moreover, as part of this license, SFR acquired new
spectrum for €300 million in June 2010, over a 20-year peniod, and

s for the LTE licenses, the fixed amounts paid in October 2011 (€150 million) and January 2012 (€1,065 million), respectively, were
recorded as intangible assets at the acquisition date of the spectrum band, and the vanable portion of the fee 1s equal to 1% of

the yearly revenues generated by this technology

The varable portions of the fees that cannot be rehiably determined are not recorded in the Statement of Financial Posiion They are

recorded as an expense, when incurred
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SFR’s network coverage commitments related to telecommunication hcenses

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

* (On November 30, 2009, the “Autonité de Régulation des Communications Electroniques et des Postes” or “Arcep” (the French
Telecommunications Regulatory Agency) addressed a notice to SFR regarding 1ts compliance in the UMTS network coverage of the
French metropalitan population 98% by December 31, 2011, and 99 3% by December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2011, with
984% of the French metropolitan population covered, SFR was in compliance with iis coverage commitments As of

December 31, 2012, the network coverage was 99 0%

e As part of the grant of the first band of LTE spectrum in October 2011, SFR has committed itself to ensure a specific coverage rate
for the French metropolitan population 25% by October 11, 2015, 60% by Octaber 11, 2019, and 75% by October 11, 2023

e  As part of the grant of the second band of LTE spectrum in January 2012, SFR has committed itself to comply with the following

obligations

{1) SFR 1s required to provide the fotlowing very high-speed mobile network coverage
- coverage of 38% of the French metropolitan population by January 2024 and 99 6% by January 2027,
- coverage In the priority zone (approximately 18% of the French metropolitan population and 63% of the territory)
within this zone, SFR 1s required to cover 40% of the papulation by January 2017 and 30% of the population by

January 2022,

- coverage ohhgations at a departmental level SFR has to cover 90% of the population of each French department by
January 2024, and 95% of the population of each French department by January 2027,

(n SFR and Bouygues Telecor have a mutual network shaning or spectrum pooling obligation in the priority zone,

(01} SFR has an obligation to offer national roaming to Free Mobile within the prionity zone upon building of its own 2 6 GHz
network covering at least 25% of the French population provided that it has not signed a national roaming agreement

with another operator, and

{iv) SFR has a joint coverage obligation with the other 800 MHz license holders to cover the hot-spots that have been
identified by the French administration within the framework of the "white zones” program (beyond 98% of the

population} within 15 years

Note 14  Investments in equity affiliates
Voting interest Value of equity affiliates
{in miflions of euros) Note  December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
N-Vision 2 40% - 162
Numergy 2 47% - 104 -
QOther na* na* 122 135
388 135

na* notapplicable
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Note 15

Changes in net working capital

{in millions of euros)

Cash management financial assets {a)
Other loans and recervables (b}
Denvative financial instruments
Avallable-for-sale secunities {c)

Cash deposits backing borrow:ngs

Other financial assets
Financial assets

Deduction of current financial assets
Non-current financial assets

Financial assets

Note

3

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

30 26
222 340
137 101
197 125

6 12

15 28
878 872
{364} {478}
514 39

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Primarily relates to US treasuries and government agency securities with a matunty exceeding three months held by Actvision
Blizzard for $387 milhion as of December 31, 2012 (compared to $344 mullion as of December 31, 2011}

As of December 31, 2011, other loans and receivables notably included SFR's cash deposits relating to Qualified Technological

Equipment (QTE} operations for €53 million as well as a €120 million loan granted by Canal+ Group to ITl in December 2011 in
connection with the strategic partnership involving Polish pay-TV This loan was redeemed at the closing of the transaction, on
November 30, 2012 {please refer to Note 2 3) Moreover, all of SFR's QTE contracts were early redeemed as of December 31, 2012

secunties and were not the subject of any significant impairment with respect to fiscal years 2012 and 2011

Note 16

Net working capital

As of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011, the availabte-for-sale securities did not include significant publicly quoted

Changes in Changes in
December 31 Busmess foreign currency December 31,
0 nperanngt; Tzor]kmg combnations transiation Ottt {o] m2
{in mulhons of euros) capitalia adjustments
Inventones 805 {80} ) iz} {4} 738
Trade accounts receivable and other &'_IBl {291} 284 {84} |52} 6,587
Working capital assets 1,535 3n) 3 {96} {56) 1325
Trade accounts payable and other 13,987 {307) 579 {125} 62 14196
Qther non-current liabilities 864 26 56 19) 75 1002
Working capital liabilities 14,59 {281} 635 {143) 137 15,198
Net working capital {2,316} (90) {322} 48 (193} {7.873)
Changes in
Changes n
December 31 Business foreign currency December 31
2010 operatm? \:\g;klng combinations translation Other () 20n
{in mithons of euros) capia adjustments
Inventornes 750 53 i 5 {4 805
Trade accounts recervable and ather 671 g5 24 130) {70} 6,730
Working capital assets 7,461 148 5 (25) (74} 1,535
Trade accounts payable and other 14 451 {101) N 8 {440} {c) 13,987
Other non-cusrent habilities 1074 {58) - 7 {145} 864
Working capital habilities 15,525 (159} n [T} (585} 14,851
Net working capital (8,064) 307 1#6) 23] 51 17.316)
a Excludes content investments made by Activision Blizzard, UMG, and Canal+ Group
b Mainly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments
C Notably includes the interim dividend due as of December 31, 2010 by SFR to Vodafone, paid m January 2011 (£440Q mullion)
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Trade accounts receivable and other
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{in millions of euros) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Trade accounts recervable 5458 5,684
Trade actounts recevable wree-offs {1,315} {1,202)
Trade accounts receivable, net 4143 4,482
Other 2444 2,248
Trade accounts receivable and other 6,587 6,730

Vivend does not consider there to be a significant risk of non-recavery of non-impaired past due receivables Vivendr's trade receivables do
not represent a significant concentration of credit nsk due to its broad customer base, the broad vanety of customers and markets, as well
as the subscription-based business model of most of its business segments {Activision Blizzard, SFR, GVT, and Canal+ Group) as well as the
geographic diversity of its business operations (please refer to Note 3 2) Please also refer to Note 1 3 510 for a description of the method

used to evaluate trade account recevable provisions

Trade accounts payable and other

{m millions of euros) Note December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Trade accounts payable 6,578 6,684
Music royafties to artists and repertoire owners 102 1477 1,375
Game deferred revenues (a) 1,251 1,139
Prepatd telecommunication revenues (b) 817 300
Other 4,073 3,889
Trade accounts payable and other 14,19% 13,987

a  Relates to the impact of the change in deferred net revenues at Activiston Blizzard and related costs of sales associated with the sale

of boxes for certain games with significant online functionality {please refer to Note 134 1)

b Mamly includes subsenpt:ons that are not past due and prepaid cards sold but not consumed, mobile phones held by distributors, roll-
over minutes of SFR's mohile operations and the current portion of SFR’s deferred revenues of fixed operations

Other non-current liabilities

{in mllions of euros) Note  December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Advance lease payments in respect of Qualified Technological Equipment aperations 15 - 53
Liabilrties related to SFR GSM license (a) 13 154 172
Prepaid revenues from indefeasible nghts of use (IRY) and other long-term

occupational nghts (b) 340 365
Non-current content liabilities 102 180 96
Other 328 (c) 218
Other non-current habilities 1,002 864

a8  Relates to the discounted value of the hability The nominal value amounted to €206 million as of December 31, 2012, compared to

€231 million as of December 31, 2011

b Relates to deferred revenues associated with indefeasible night of use {{RU) agreements, leases or services contracts

¢ Notably includes the iong-term portion of capital (€63 million) subscribed by Numergy, not yet released (please refer to Note 2 4)
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Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents

{in miflions of euros} December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Cash 920 667
Cash eguivalents {a) 2974 2,637
of which UCITS 2,699 2,265
certificates of depasit and term deposits 275 372
Cash and cash equivalents 3894 3,304

a Cash eguivalents mainly includes Actiwvision Blizzard's cash and cash equivalents for €2,989 million as of December 31, 2012
{compared to €2,448 million as of December 31, 2011}, invested, If any, in money market funds with initial maturity dates not
exceeding 90 days

Note 18  Equity

Share capital of Vivend: SA

(in thousands) December 31, 2012 December 31 2011

Common shares outstanding {nommal value €55 pershare} 1,323,962 1,247 263
Treasury shares {1 461} {1,329}
Voting nghts 1,322,501 1,245,934

The ncrease n the number of common shares outstanding in 2012 15 due to the grant of 416 mibon bonus shares 10 Vivendi SA
shareholders i May 2012 {please see below), the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels in exchange for 22 4 million shares in
September 2012 {please refer to Note 2 2) as well as the emplovee stock purchase plan {12 3 million shares) of July 201Z {please refer ta
Note 21)

As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi held 1,461 thousand treasury shares, or 0 11% of its share capital These shares are backed to the
hedging of performance share plans The carrying value of the portfolio amounted to €25 million as of December 31, 2012 and «ts market
value amounted to €25 million as of December 31, 2012

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, approximately 53 million stock options were outstanding, representing a maximum nominal share
capital increase of €294 million or 4 03% of the company’s share capital

Non-controlling interests

{in millions of euros) December 31 2012 December 31, 2011

Actiwvsion Blizzard 1,183 1009
Maroc Telecom Group 1,073 Eki!
Canal+ Group 692 471
Other 23 12
Total 291 2623

Distributions to shareowners of Vivend: SA and its subsidianes

Dividend proposed by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2012

On February 18, 2013, the date of Vivendi's Management Board's meeting which approved 1ts Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2012 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, Vivendi's Management Board decided to propose to
shareowners a dividend distribution of €1 per share, which would represent a total distribution of approximately €1 3 billion to be paid n
cash on May 17, 2013, following the coupon detachment on May 14, 2013, by withdrawal from the reserves This proposal was presented
to, and approved by, Vivend's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 22, 2013 The additional contnbution of 3% on dividends
will be recorded as a tax charge upon the payment of the dividend on May 17, 2013

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2011

At the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of Aprd 19, 2012, Vivend's shareholders approved the Management Board's
recommendations relating to the allocation of distnbutable earnings for fiscal year 2011 As a result, the dividend payment was set at €1 per
share, representing a total distribution of €1,245 million, paid in cash on May 9, 2012, follow:ng the coupon detachment on May 4, 2012
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Bonus shares grented to Vivend: SA shareowners

At its meeting held on February 29, 2012, following the Superwisory Board's recommendation, Vivendi's Management Board decided to grant
to Its shareowners cne bonus share for each 30 shares held This transaction resulted in the 1ssuance on May 9, 2012, by a €229 millien
withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, of 41 6 million new shares with a nominal value of €55 each and entitlement as from
January 1, 2012

Dividend distributed by subsidiaries
On February 7, 2013, Activision Blizzard announced that its Board of Directors had declared a dvidend of $0 19 per common share to its
shareholders This dividend will be paid in cash on May 15, 2013

The Supervisory Board of Maroc Telecom group will propose to the Annual Shareholders' Meeting, to be held on April 24, 2013, the payment
of an ordinary dividend of MAD 7 4 per share, which corresponds to 100% of distributable earnings from 2012 This dividend will be paid In
cash an May 31, 2013

tn 2012, dvidend payments to subsidiaries’ non-contralling interests amounted to €481 mifhion (€721 milhon in 2011} and mainly included
Marac Telecom SA for £345 million in 2012 (compared to €384 million in 2011) and Actwision Bhzzard for €62 million i 2012 (compared to
£55 millior 1n 2011) Moreover, on June 16, 2011, at the completion of the acquisition of 1ts 44% interest in SFR, a €200 milion interim
dividend was pa:d to Vodafone

Activision Blizzard

Stack repurchase program of Activision Blizzard

On February 2, 2012, Actwision Blizzard announced that its Board of Dwectors had authorized a stock repurchase program under which
Activision Bhizzard can repurchase shares of 1ts outstanding common stock up to an amount of $1 billion This program wall end at the earler
of March 31, 2013 or on the date of the Board of Dwectors’ decision to discontinue it in 7012, Activision Blizzard repurchased approximately
4 million shares of its common stock i connection with this program, for a total amount of $54 million In addition, duning the first half of
2012, Activision Blizzard settled a $261 milhon purchase of 22 million shares of 1ts commeon stock pursuant to the previous $1 5 billion stock
repurchase program In total, Activision Blizzard repurchased approximately 26 mrilion shares of its common stock 1n 2012, for a totat amount
of $315 million, or €241 million (compared to $692 million or €502 mullion 1n 2011)

Vivendi's ownership imerest in Activision Blizzard

As a remunder, on November 15, 2011, Vivend: sold 35 million Actwvision Blizzard shares into the market for $422 mullion (€314 million)

As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi held 684 million shares out of a total of 1,112 milfion Activision Blizzard shares, or a 61 5% interest
{compared to approximately 60% as of December 30, 2011) Moreover, as of December 31, 2012, the cutstanding Activision Blizzard stock
instruments represented 77 million new shares to be 1ssued in favor of therr beneficianes (52 milhon shares due to stock options and
25 million restncted shares, campared to 53 million and 17 million shares, respectively, as of December 31, 2011, please refer to Note
2132), and the stock repurchase program authorized in February 2012 not consumed for up to $346 million, representing approximately
86 milhon potential treasury shares (under the assumption of a stock price of $11 per share)

As part of its earnings release announced on February 7, 2013, the Board of Activision Blizzard 1s considenng, or may consider during 2013,
substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactions These potential transactions
could be financed by debt
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Note 19 Provisions

December 31 Business foreign currency Decembar 31
Note m Addition Utzztian Reversal combinations transtation adjustments mz

{in millions of euros} and cther

Employee benefits (a) 507 3 ) na) &0 38 551
Restructunng costs 48 372 (154} - 52 (10) 59
Liigations 27 479 1015 {c) {54} (82) 4 {5) 1357
Losses on onerous contracts 237 19 {104) {10) 1 143
Contingent Liabilities due to disposal (d} 64 41 - {17) 24
Cost of dismantling and rastaring sites (e} 70 1 {3 15 B3
Other () 773 748 {g) o7} {63) 29 9 1389
Provistons 2,155 2,_1}3: {500) |17_4_!' 15 :i15 3,805
Deduction of current provistons {586) {316} 91 129 {12) {27) {711}
Non-current provisions 1,569 1632 (5] 135) [E<] [ 3094

December 34 Business foresgn cumency December 31
Note 2010 Addition Utlzztion Reversal combinations translation adjustments 201
{in mithens of euros) . and other
Employee benefits {a) 514 10 i) @ - T 507
Restructunng costs 42 87 {90} (6) 1 14 48
Libgations i 43 262 (98 (46} 12 6 479
Losses on onerous contracts 394 72 {185} 61} 2 {5) 23
Caontingent liabilies due to dispasal {d) 64 50 {3) - {6) a4
Cost of dismanthing and restoring sites () 63 - {2} 9 0
Other {f) 526 959 64) {88} % m
Provisions 208 1z 690 8z} 15 0 PEER
Deduction of current provisions {552) {299) 290 48 - [73) {586)
Non-current provisions 1477 513 [E5L0) {134) 15 8 1.563
3 Includes employee deferred compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€439 million as of December
31, 2012 and €446 million as of December 31, 2011, please refer to Note 20 2), but excludes employee termination reserves recorded
under restructuring costs
b Includes restructuring provisions  SFR (€170 mulkion), Maroc Telecom (€72 miltion), and UMG (€79 million)
c Notably includes the £945 million reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation hiigation in the United States (please refer
to Note 27)
d Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These prowisions are not significant and the
amount 1s not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicia! to Vivendi
e SFR and GVT are required to dismantle and restore each telephony antenna site following termination of a site lease
f Notably includes provisions for fiscal and legal lingations for which the amount 1s not detailed because such disclosure could be
prejudicial to Vivend
g Notably includes the reserve accruals related to the impacts of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System m 2011 (€366 million}, as

Divestitures changes i

Dwestitures changes in

well as the impact related to the use of tax credits in 2012 {€208 million) {please refer to Note 6)

Note 20 Employee benefits

20.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The following table provides information abeut the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial component The total cost of
defined benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 20 2 2 below

Year endedg December 31,

(in milhions of euros) Note 2012 20

Employee defined contribution pians 57 55
Emp'ovee defined benefit plans 2022 16 16
Employee benefit plans 73 n
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202 Employee defined benefit plans

2021 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return an plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with accounting policies presented in
Note 1 38 and have been apphed consistently for several years Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensation
increase} are company specific Financial assumptions (notably including the discount rate and the expected rate of return on investments)
are made as follows
» determination by independent actuaries and other independent advisars of the discount rate for each country by reference to yields
on notes 1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties identical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices, and as reviewed by Vivendt's Finance Department, representing, at year-end, the best
esttmate of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments, and
o the expected return on plan assets is determimed for each plan atcording o the portfoho composiion and the expecied
performance of each component

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate (a) 36% 45% 36% 43%
Expected return on plan assets (b} 36% 37% na* ng"
Rate of compensation increase 20% 19% 31% 30%
Expected average working hfe {in years} 103 98 48 53
Weghted average duration of the benefit obhigatian {in years) 142 146 105 101

na* notapplicable

a A 50 basis point increase (or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively} i the 2012 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 million in pre-tax expense {or an increase of €2 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €65 million {or an increase of €71 million, respectively)

b AS0 basis point increase (or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) in the expected return on plan assets for 2012 would have led to
a decrease of €1 million in pre-tax expense {or an increase of €1 million, respectively)

Assumptions used in accounting for the pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 350% 425% 425% 500% 325% 450% 325% 4 50%
Expected return on plan assets 3 50% 4 25% 425% 336% 325% na* 325% 455%
Rate of compensation increase na” na* 450% 500% 2 00% 2 00% 341% 347%

na* not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 350% 4 25% 4 00% 475%
Rate of compensation increase 350% 350% na* na*

na* notapplicable

Pension plan assets

Weightad-average range of investinant allocation by asset category for sach major plan

Minimum Maximum
Equity secunties 6% 6%
Real estate 1% 1%
Debt securities 57% 57%
Dwversified funds 16% 16%
Cash and other 20% 20%
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Equity secunties 6% 6%
Real estate 1% 1%
Debt secunties 57% 67%
Diversified funds 16% 17%
Cash and other 20% 9%
Total 100% 100%

Pensian plan assets which were not transferred have a limited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Vivend nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivend: assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for categones under 65 years old and 65 years old and over in 2012, 10 45% in 2021 for these
categories In 2012, a one-percentage-point increase n the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligations by €12 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €10 million and the pre-tax expense by less than €1 mifhion

2022 Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits Total

{in mlkons of euros) 2012 201 nz2 20m 202 2011
Current service cost 19 1§ - - 18 16
Amortization of actuanal {gams)/losses 8 7 - - 8 7
Amortization of past service cost 1 7 - - 1 {7
Effect of curtallments/settiements (12) - - - {12)

Adjustment related to asset celling - - - - -
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 16 16 - - 16 16
Interest cost 3 28 7 7 38 35
Expected return on plan assets {12) 9 - (12) {9
Impact on other financial charges and income 19 13 7 7 26 2%
Net benetit cost 35 35 7 ] 42 42

In 2012, benefits pard amounted to (1} €29 millon {compared to €27 million 1n 2011} with respect to pensions, of which €7 mithon {compared
to €5 million in 2011} was paid by pension funds, and (i1} €12 million {unchanged compared to 2011) was paid with respect to post-retirement
benefits

2023 Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benehts

Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status over a five-year penod

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits
December 31, December 31
{in mllions of euros) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2012 2011 2010 2008 2008
Benehit obligation 857 668 625 539 482 163 158 158 142 135
Fair value of plan assets 367 272 240 203 189 - - - -
Underfunded obligation {490} {386} (385) (335) {293} {163} {158) {159) {142) {135)
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o mullions of euros)

Opening balance
Current sarvice cost
Amanization of actuanal igams)/lcsses
Amortization of past sanice cost
Effact of curtadments
Effect of sattiernants
Adjustment related to assat carlng

impact on seiltng, sdmraistrative and panersi sxpenses

Interest cost
Expected retum on plan assets

impact en other financial charges and income

Netbanaiit cost

Attuaral gains/Tlosses) ansing fram changes in demographic assumptons
Actuanal Alosses} ansing from ch n fnancial

Expenence gansAkissest(a)

Benefits paid

Lomtnbutions by plan pariiiparia

Contributions by employers

Plan amendments

Businass combinations {bj

Drvestriures of busmesses

Transfers

Other [foraign cumency tzanslation adjustments]

Closing batance

of which - wholly of partly funded benelits
witolty irfunded benafits (¢}

of which  assets rolatad to smployes benaefit plans
provasions for pmployee benelit plans fd)

Ernployee defined benafit plans
‘Yaar andad Necember 31 2012
Banght Farrvalue of Undesrfunded Unrecognuzed Adjustment Net
obigation plan assats obligation actuarial rel#ted 10 asse1  [provisionl/asset
(gains}losses cealing recoided i the
and past senace statement of
tost financial pastion
Nate (A} 1] __{CHBHA 1] E) (CHDHE)
m {554) 126 {a28)
19 19} {19
L] 18)
m mn
{21} il i9) 12
f18}
38 138} {38
12 12 12
i25)
{42}
1 i i
106 {106) 106
ik 13 % (26)
42} (43}
1 1
83 Lx] 83
1 [{]] 3
m 3] {60) {80}
(6k (2 4 {13 3
1,020 357 {653} 183 (£54)
7
487
35
19 1459)
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a  Includes the wpact on the bengitt obligation resufting from the difference between benefits esumated at the previous year-end and benefits paid duning the year and the difference between the
expected rewum on plan assets at the previous year end and the actual return on plan assets dunng the year As a reminder wn 2010 2009 and 2008 [gains)losses that rasult from actual expenence
in respect of benefit obligations amounted 10 -€4 mion €1 million and €t million respectively and gains/llosses) that result from actual expenience 10 respect of plan assets amounted to
€9 million €3 millign and €43 milhon respectively
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whally unfunded benafits fc)
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Relates to the impact of the acquisiion of EMI Recorded Muste on the valus of the obligations plan assets and underfunded obligation for €111 million €62 milian and €59 million

¢ I accordance with local laws and practices certain plans are not covered by pension funds As of December 31 2012 they principally compnise supplementary pension plans in the United States
penston plans in Germany and post reurement benefit plans in the United States

d  Includes a cusrent hability of €46 million as of December 31 2012 {compared to €37 million as of December 31 2011)
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Penston berefits Post retirement henafits Tota!
{in msflions of euros) December 31 Dacember 31 Decembar 31
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011

Benefit abligation
US companies 18 121 144 139 262 60
UK companies 225 205 - 225 205
German comparues 183 108 183 108
Franch ecrmpanies 216 17 215 171
Other 115 53 19 19 134 82

857 668 163 158 1,020 826
Fawr value of plan assets
US companies 53 56 - 53 5
UK comparies 188 154 - 188 154
German companies 3 . . 3 _
French companigs B7 51 67 51
Qthex 56 n 8 1n

367 2712 - - 367 272
Underfunded obiigation
US companies {69) {65} (144} (133 {209) (204}
UK companies 3n 151) - {37) {51}
German companies (190 (108) - {180) {108)
French companies {1459} [120) - {149) {120}
Other {589} 152) 19 {19) (78) {71

1430) (396) {163) {158) (653) (554)

In 2011, Vivend) taok into account the impact of the change in the legislation in relation to the indexation of retirement plans in the United
Kingdom, which resulted in a non-significant decrease of its commitments

2024 Additional information on pension benefits in France

Vivendi maintains ten pension plans in France, of which four make investments through insurance companies The allocation of assets by
category of the vanous plans was as follows

Equity securities Real estate Debt securities Cash Total
Corporate Supplementary Plan 121% 64% 77 5% 40% 100%
Corporate Management Supplementary Plan 150% 59% 75 4% 37% 100%
SFR Supplementary Plan 12 0% 60% 810% 10% 100%
Canal+ Group IDR* Plan 99% B1% B2 0% - 100%

IDR {Indemnités de départ en retraite} indemnities payable on retirement

The asset allocation remains fairly stable over ime Contnbutions 1o the four plans amounted to €17 mullion in 2012 {compared to €4 million
In 2011}, and are estimated to be €7 million in 2013

Payments to all ten pension plans in France amounted to €17 million m 2012 {compared to €5 million in 2011), and are estimated to be
€8 million in 2013

2025 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2013, hedge fund contnbutions and benefit payments to retirees by Vivend: are estimated at €45 million in respect of pensions, of which
€23 million to pension funds and €12 million to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi {in nominal value) are as follows

Post-retirement
Pension benefits 08

{in milhions of euros) benefits

2013 33 12
014 42 11
2015 25 n
2016 24 1
2017 32 N
2018-2022 190 51
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Note 21 Share-based compensation plans

21.1 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in milhons of euros) Year ended December 31,
ChargeAIncome} Note 2012 20M
Stock options, performance shares and bonus shares 32 28
Employee stock purchase plans 33 25
“Stock apprecration rights® and "restricted stock units® - {5)
Vivend: stock instruments 212 65 48
Activision Blizzard stock instruments 213 103 67
UMG employee equity unit plan 214 9 7
Subtotal (including Activision Blizzard's captalized costs) 177 12
equity-settled instruments 168 120
cash-settled instruments g 2
{-} Actwvision Blizzard's capitalized costs {a) 7 7
Charge/(Income) refated to share-hased compensation plans 3 170 129

a Share-based compensation costs directly attributable to games development are capitalized i compliance with the accounting
principles described i Note 1354 In 2012, €21 million were capitalized {compared to €19 millien in 2011) and €14 million were
amortized (compared to £26 milhon in 2011}, representing a net impact of +£7 mitlion {compared to -7 millien in 2011)

21.2 Plans granted by Vivendi
21.21 Information on plans granted by Vivend:

Vivend: has granted several share-based compensation plans to its employees During 2012 and 2011, Vivendi granted stock option and
performance share ptans, wherever the fiscal residence of the beneficiaries, and bonus share plan for employees of all the group’s French
subsidiaries, as well as stock purchase plans for its employees and retirees {employee stock purchase plan and leveraged plan)

The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are descnbed in Note 1310

More specifically, the volatiity apphed in valuing the plans granted by Yivend: in 2012 and 2011 1s calculated as the weighted average of (a)
75% of the histonical volatility of Vivend: shares computed on a 6 5-year penod and {b) 25% of the implied volatility based on Vivend: put
and call options traded on a liquid market with a matunty of 6 months or mare

The nisk-free interest rate used 1s the rate of French “Obligations Assimifables du Trésor” {OAT) with a matunity corresponding to the
expected term of the snstrument at the valuation date

The expected dividend yield at grant date 1s based on Vivendi's dividend distribution policy, which 1s an expected dividend representing
approximately 45% to 55% of adjusted net income

Equity-settled instruments

The definitive grant of equity-settled instruments, excluding banus share plan, 1s subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions Such
performance conditions include an external indicator, thus following AFEP and MEDEF recommendations The objectives underlying the
performance conditions are deterrined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Human Resources Committeg

The value of the granted equity-settled instruments s estimated and set at grant date For the main stock option plans, performance share
plans and bonus share plans of 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

2012 20m1

Grant date July 18, (3} Apnl 17, Aprd 13,
Data at grant date

Option strike price {in euros) {b} na* 1363 1993

Share price {in euros) 1575 1253 20 56

Expected volatility na* 27% 25%

Expected dividend yield 635% 798% 730%
Performance conditions achievement rate {c) na* 100% 100%

na™ nat applicable
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a  Vivend's Management Board decided to grant 50 bonus shares to the employees of all the group’s French subsidianes

b In accordance with legal requirements, the number and stnke price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares in
connection with outstanding plans, were adjusted to take into account the impact, for the beneficiaries of the grant, of one bonus
share on May 9, 2012 to each shareowner per 30 shares held by a withdrawal from additional paid in capital This adjustment had no
impact on share-based compensation expense related to the relevant stock option and performance share plans

¢ Beginming in 2012, for hoth performance shares and stock options, the objectives underlying the performance conditions are assessed

onte on a cumulative basis at the expiry of a two-year penod (each year duning two years for plans granted in 2011) Therr defimitive

grant will be effective upon the satisfaction of the following new performance conditions

¢ internal indicator (70%) EBITA margin rate which will be recorded as of December 31, 2013 on the basis of cumulative 2012 and
2013 fiscal years (compared to adjusted net income {45%) and cash flow from operations {25%) for plans granted in 2011}, and

o external indicators (30%} the performance of Vivendi share between January 1, 2012 and December 31, 2013, compared to two
stock indices Europe Stoxx 600 Telecommunications (70%, compared to 60% for plans granted in 2011) and a range of Media
values (30%, compared to 40% for plans granted in 2011)

As the performance conditions related to the 2011 plan were satisfied at year-end 2012, the definitive grant of stack options and
performance shares from Apnl 13, 2011 became effective as of December 31, 2012 The acquisition of these instruments 1s conditional upon
active employment at the vesting date

Stock option plans

Stock options granted in 2012 and 2011 vest at the end of a three-year period and expire at the end of a ten-year period {with a 6 5 year
expected term) and the compensation cost determined at grant date 1s recagnized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

On April 17, 2012, 2,514 thousand stock options were granted, compared to 2,527 thousand granted on Apnl 13, 2011 After taking nto
account @ Z 35% nisk-free interest rate (3 21% n 2411), the fair value of each option granted was €0 95, compared to €2 16 per option on
Apnt 13, 2011, corresponding to a global fair value of €2 million {compared to €5 million n 2011)

Performance share plans

Performance shares granted in 2012 and 2011 vest at the end of a two-year period The compensation cost 1 therefore recognized on a
straight-ine basis over the vesting period Performance shares are avatlable at the end of a four-year pentod from the date of grant
However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares composing the share capital of Vivendi SA,
employee shareholders are entitled to dividends and voting nghts attached to these shares at the end of the two-year vesting period The
compensation cost correspends to the value of the equity Instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference between
the fair value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dwvidends that were not received over the vesting period

On Apnl 17, 2012, 1,818 thousand performance shares were granted, compared to 1,679 thousand granted on Apri 13, 2011 After taking
into account a drscount for non-transferability of 7 10% of the share gnice on April 17, 2012 {4 50% on Apnl 13, 2011}, the fair value of each
granted performance share was £9 80, compared to €16 84 per share on Apnl 13, 2011 corresponding to a global fair value of €18 million
{compared to €28 miilion in 2011}

50 bonus share plan

On July 16, 2012, Vivend adopted a 50 bonus share plan per employee of all the group’s French subsidianes These shares will be issued at
the end of a two-year period, 18, July 17, 2014, subject to the employee bemng In active emplayment at this date and without any
performance condittons The compensation cost was recogmzed on a straight-hne basis over this peniod The shares will only be available
after another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share
capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders will be entitled to dividend and voting rights relating to all therr shares from the end of the two
year vesting pertod

On July 16, 2012, 729 thousand bonus shares were granted After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 9 30% of the
share price an July 18, 2012, the fair value of each granted bonus share was €12 40, a total of €9 million

Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

Vivend: also mantains share purchase plans (stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allow substantially all of its employees and retirees
to purchase Vivendi shares through capital increases reserved to them These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer
restnctions, may be purchased by employees with a maximum discount of 20% on the average opeming market price for Vivend: shares
during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capital Increase by the Management Board {purchase date) The
difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on the date of grant (correspending to the subscription period
closing date) represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivend: applies a discount for non-transferability in respect of
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the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the shares during a five-year period, which is deducted from the benefit granted to the employees
The value of the stock purchase plans granted I1s estimated and fixed at grant date

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

2012 2011
Grant date June 25 June 23
Subscription price {in euros} 1031 1527
Data at grant date
Share price (in euros) 1357 1839
Discount to face value 24 02% 1697%
Expected dividend yield 737% 816%
Risk-free interest rate 137% 2 44%
S-year interest rate 651% 615%
Repo rate 036% 0 36%

Under the employee stock purchase plans, 2,108 thousand shares were subscnibed 1n 2012 (1,841 thousand shares subscribed n 2011)
After taking into account a 15 3% discount for non-transferability to the share price on the grant date {10 0% i 2011}, the fair value per
subscribed share was €1 2 on June 25, 2012, compared to €1 3 per subscribed share on July 23, 2011

Under the leveraged plans implemented in 2012 and 2011, wirtually all employees and retirees of Vivendi and its French and foreign
subsidiaries were entitled to subscribe for Vivend: shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted
subscription price, and to uttimately receive the capital gain {calculated pursuant to the terms and conditiens of the plan) corresponding to
10 shares for one subscribed share A financial institution mandated by Vivend: hedges this transaction

In 2012, 9,845 thousand shares were subscnbed under the leveraged plans {compared to 7,320 subscribed shares in 2011) After taking into
account a 1 5% discount for non-transferability measured after the leveraged impact {1 0% in 2011}, the fair value per subscribed share on
June 25, 2012 was €3 1, compared to €2 9 per subscribed share on June 23, 2011

Therefore, stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted n & capital increase totaling €127 million on July 18, 2012 (including 1ssue
premium}, compared to €143 million on July 21, 2011

Cash-settled instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specific instruments to 1ts US resident managers and employees, with economic features similar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees. except that these equity instruments are settled in cash onty The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 1s initially estimated as of the grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense I1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date All the nights for these plans were
definitively vested as of April 2010

Stock approciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficianies thereof to recerve the appreciation in the value of Vivend: share, they are known as "stock
appreciation rights” (SAR) which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the beneficianes will receve a cash
payment upon exercise of their rights based on the Vivend: share price equal to the difference between the Vivend: share price upen
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year period The following table presents
the value of outstanding stock appreciation night plan measured as of December 31,2012

2007 2006
Grant date April 23,  September22,  Apni13,
Data at grant date
Strike price {in US dollars) a1 34 3458 3458
Number of instruments granted {in thousands} 1,281 24 1,250
Datg at the valuation date { December 31 2012)
Expected term (in years) 21 18 16
Share price {in US dollars) 2249 2249 2249
Expected volatlity 29% 29% 29%
Risk-free interest rate 007% 006% 005%
Expected dividend yield 587% 587% 587%
Fair value of the granted option as of December 31, 2012 {in US doilars) 020 040 0.34
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Under an RSU plan, the beneficianies received, at the end of a four-year penied follewing the grant date, a cash payment based on the
Vivend share pnce egual to the Vivends shate price at that date, plus the value of dwidends paud on Vivend: shares n respect of the two
fiscal penods subsequent to the two-year vesting period, and converted into the local currency at the prevailing exchange rate In 2011, the
beneficianies of the RSU plan granted in 2007 recewved a cash payment for an aggregate consideration of £2 miliion Consequently, there are
no mare RSU plans at Vivend

2122  [nformation on outstanding Vivend: plans smce January 1, 2011

Equity-settied wstruments

Stock options Performance shares
Number of stock options Weighted avarage strke Number of perfarmance !
outstanding frice of stock opuons shares outstanding
putstanding
{in thousands} {in euros) {in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2010 48,922 214 1827
Granted 2,565 199 1,768
Exercised {554} 139 {509)
Cancelled {1,028) 197 {125)

Balance as of December 31, 2011 49,907 215 2,961
Granted 2650 137 1918
Exercised {479) {a} 130 {981}
Cancelled 411) 184 {138)
Adjusted 1,739 204 124

Balance as of December 31, 2012 53406 |b) 205 3883 (c)

Exercisahle as of December 31, 2012 42817 214 -

— —

Acqurred as of December 31, 2012 42,857 214 23

a  The weighted average share price for Vivend: shares at the dates of exercise for the options was €16 70 {compared to £19 89 for stock
options exercised in 2011)

b The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €22 miliion
¢ The weighted-average remaining period before 1ssuing shares under performance shares was 1 2 years

Regarding the grant of 50 bonus shares, the remaining number of bonus shares was 697 thousand as of December 31, 2012 During 2012,
32 thousand shares were cancelled

Please refer to Note 18 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options, the performance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2012 1s as follows

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Weighted average

Range of strike prices Number Weighted average iemaning Number Weighted average

strke price strike price

contractual life

(in thousands) {in euros) {in years} {rn thousands) {in euros)
Under €18 nm 154 59 3160 133
£18-€20 17019 185 43 14,421 183
E20-€22 1335 23 23 71395 3
€22-€24 6296 228 53 6,296 226
€24-€26 5714 257 33 574 57
£26-€28 5871 77 43 5871 227

€29 and more - - - -

53,406 205 44 42,857 74

Cash-settled instruments

As of December 31, 2012, the remaining outstanding SAR amounted to 5064 thousand {compared to 5057 thousand as of
December 31, 2011) In 2012, 35 thousand SAR were exercised and 123 thousand were forferted All nights related to SAR were vested and
therr total intrinsic value amounted to $2 million As of December 31, 2012, the amount accrued for these instruments was €2 million
{compared to £2 million as of December 31, 2011)
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21.3 Plans granted by Activision Blizzard
2131 Information on plans granted by Activision Blizzard

As part of the creation of Actvision Bhzzard on July 10, 2008, Vivend assumed the outstanding plans of Activision

The accounting methods applied to value these granted plans are described in Note 1310 More precisely, the volatility apphed m valuing
the plans granted by Activision Blizzard consists of the historical volatiity of Activision Blizzard shares and the implied volatihity based on
traded put and call options The nisk-free interest rate used was a forward rate and the expected dividend yield assumption was based on
the company’s histarical and expected future amount of dividend payouts

On July 28, 2008, the Board of Directors of Activision Blizzard adopted the Activision Blizzard Inc 2008 Incentive Plan, further amended and
restated by the Board of Directors and the Compensation Commuttee of this Board with stockholder approval {as so amended and restated,
the “2008 Plan“) The 2008 Plan authorizes the Compensation Committee of the Board of Durectors to provide Activision Blizzard's stock-
based compensation In the form of stock options, share appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares,
performance umts and other performance or value-based awards The stock-based compensation program of Activision Blizzard for the most
part currently utilizes a combination of options and restricted stock units Under the terms of the 2008 Plan, the exercise price for the
options, must be equal to or greater than the closing price per share of the common stack of Activision Blizzard on the date the award 1s
granted, as reported on NASDAQ

For the main stock option plans, performance share plans and bonus share pians of 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

2012 2Mm
Weighted-average data at grant date (a)
Option strike price (in US dollars) 1095 1254
Share price (1in US dollars) 1095 1254
Expected volatility 41% 44%
Expected dividend yield 165% 134%
Performance conditions achievement rate na* na*

na* not applicable

a  Relates to the weighted-average by number of instruments for each grant per fiscal year

Stock option plans

Stock options have time-based vesting schedules, generally vesting annually over a period of three to five years and the options expire at
the end of a ten-year period

In 2012, 4,296 thousand stock options were granted, compared to 4,052 thousand stock options in 2011 The weighted-average fair values of
the granted options were $3 47 per option (with a 1 12% nsk-free (nterest rate) compared to $4 17 in 2011 {wath a 1 91% nisk-free interest
rate)

For stock options granted in 2012, the expected term was 7 05 years, compared to 6 58 years for the options granted m 2011

Restricted stock plans

Restricted stocks either have time-based vesting schedules, generally vesting in therr entirety on the third anniversary of the date of grant or
vesting annually over a period of three to five years, or vest only if certain performance measures are met Concerning the restricted stocks
granted in 2012 and 2011, the shares are vested at the end of a three-year period

In 2012, 15,498 thousand restricted stocks were granted, compared to 4,918 thousand restricted stocks in 2011 The weighted-average fair
values of the granted restricted stocks were $11 81 per instrument compared to $12 30 1n 2011

In addition, 1n connecticn with the consummation of the Activision and Vivendi Games business combination on July 9, 2008, the Chief
Executive Officer of Activision Blizzard received a grant of 2,500,000 market performance-based restricted shares, which vested in 20%
increments on each of the first, second, third, and fourth annwversanies of the date of grant, with another 20% vesting on
December 31, 2012, the expiration date of the Chief Executive Officer's employment agreement with Activision Blizzard As of December 31,
2012, the market performance measure was not achieved and all of the market performance-based restricted shares granted to the Chief
Executive Dfficer were forfeited
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2132 loformation on autstanding Activision Blizzard plans since January 1, 2011

Stock options Restricted stocks
Number of stock optrons Wanghted average strike Number of restncted stocks
price of stack options
outstanding outstanding
outstanding
{in thousands}) {in US doliars} {in thousands}

Balance as of December 31, 2010 61,175 105 16,512

Granted 4,062 125 4918

Exercised |9 605) 72 {3,125)

Forfeited {1719) 11 {1225)

Expirad {741} 151 -

Balance as of December 31, 2011 53,162 11 17139

Granted 4 2% 10 15498

Exeroised {4,790) (a} 69 (3,554)

Forferted {423) 124 {3478}

Expired {497) 149 -
Balante s of December 31, 2012 51,748 (b) 15 25605 (c

Exercisable as of December 31, 2012 39,T-73= 114 -

Acguired as of December 31, 2012 39,473 114 -

a  The weighted average share price far the shares of Activision Bhizzard on the date on which the options were exercised was $12 15

{compared to $12 06 1n 2011}

b The total intringic value of outstanding stock options was $37 million

¢ Forrestricted stocks, the weighted average remaining period before 1ssuing shares was 17 years

Please refer to Note 18 for the potential impact on Vivendi's ownership interest in Activision Blizzard of the outstanding stack options and
the restricted stock plans

Informat:on on stock options as of December 31, 2012 15 as follows

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Weighted average
Range of strike prices Number Weighted average remaining Number Weighted average
strke price strtke price
contractual life
{in thousands) {in US dollars) {in years) {in thousands) {in US dollars)

Under $2 m 18 02 m 18
$2-34 488 28 09 488 28
$4-36 1607 55 22 1607 55
$6-58 4373 70 30 4373 70
18-510 5Na 93 45 5680 93
$10-512 22802 13 7% 13150 1n3
$12-814 8663 130 66 6,394 131
$14-316 3540 150 55 3127 150
$16-517 4590 165 54 4483 165
$17 and more 60 184 56 60 184
51,748 115 61 1473 14

214 UMBG long-term incentive plan

Effective January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are awarded
phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciaton nghts whose value 18 intended ta reflect the value of UMG These urits are simply
units of account and do not represent an actual gwnership interest in either UMG ar Vivendi The equity units are notional grants of equity
that will be payable n cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or easlier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation rights are
essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the term The
SAR's are also settled in cash only no {ater than 2015 or eartier under certain circumstances There 18 a guaranteed minimum payout of
$25 milhon

Payouts under the plan generally coincide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participants’ rights vest at the end of a fixed vesting pened,
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compensation expense 1S recognized over the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense is recognized based
on the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropriate grant date model 1n
accordance with IFRS 2

As of December 31, 2012, the amount accrued under these arrangements was €22 million (€14 million as of December 31, 2011} There have
been no payments made to date

Note 22  Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31 2012 December 31 2011
{in milhions of euros} Total Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term
Bonds 221 10888 10,188 700 9,276 7676 1600
Bank credit facilities {drawn confirmed) 222 2423 2326 97 4917 4558 359
Commercial paper ssued 222 3,255 3255 528 - 52%
Bank overdrafts 192 192 163 - 163
Accrued interest to be paid 205 205 200 - 200
Other 751 120 631 621 173 448
Nominal value of borrowings 17,14 12,634 5,080 15,706 12,407 3,299
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting (1 4 {5 (12) 8] G
Cammitments to purchase non-controlling interests 8 8 - 1 10 1
Derwvative financial instruments 23 36 21 15 5 - 5
Borrowings and other financial habihes 17,757 12,667 5,090 15710 12,409 3301
221 Bonds
Interest rate (%) December Maturing during the following periods Decembier
Maturdy Nn After kil
(in millions of euras) nominal  effective 2012 13 20014 2015 016 20072017 011
€700 million {December 2012} 2 500% 265% Jan-20 700 - - - - 700
$550 million {Apnl 2012} 2 400% 2 50% Apr-15 420 (a) - 4z0 - - -
$650 mllion {April 2012} 3450%  356% Jan-18 491 - - - 491
$800 rmillion (April 2012) 4750% 491% Apr-22 604 - - - 604
£1,250 mullon (January 2012) 4125% 4 31% Jul-17 1,250 - - - - 1250 -
€500 million {November 2011} 3875% 404% Nov-15 500 - 500 - 500
€500 mullion {November 2011} 4 875% 500% Nov-18 500 - - - - 500 500
€1,000 milhion {July 2011) 3500% 368% Jul 15 1000 - 1000 - - - 1000
€1,050 million {July 2011} 4 750% 467% Jul-21 1050 (b - - 1050 750
€750 million {March 2010} 4000% 415% Mar 17 750 - - - 750 - 750
€700 million (December 2009} 4 875% 49%5% Dec-19 700 - - - - 700 700
€500 million (December 2009) 4 250% 439% Dec-16 500 - - 500 - 500
€300 million - SFR {July 2009) 5 000% 505% Jul 14 300 - 300 - - - - 300
€1,120 millign {January 2009} 7750% T 69% Jan 14 894 B94 - - - - 894
$700 mulbion (Apnl 2008) 6625% 685% Apr-18 529 - - - - 529 541
€700 mullton (October 2006) 4500% 547% Oct-13 700 700 - - - 700
£1,000 mullion - SFR {July 2005} 337%% 414% Jul12 - - - - - - 1000
$700 million (April 2008) 5750% 606% Apr-13 - e} - - - - - 541
€600 mullion (February 2005) 3875% 39% Feb-12 - - - - 600
Nominal value of honds 10,838 700 1,194 1920 500 2000 4,574 9,276

a A USD/EUR foreign currency hedge {cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche denominated in US dollar and issued in
April 2012 with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 million counter value at maturity As of December 31, 2012, the counter value of this
bond converted at the closing rate amounted to €415 million

b InApnl 2012, this bond was increased by €300 million
¢ InApnl/May 2012, this bond was early redeemed through a tender offer

The bonds denominated in euro are histed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The bonds denominated in US dollar were converted into euro based on the closing rate, 1 € , 1 3244 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2012 {compared
to 1 29290 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2011)
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Bonds 1ssued by the group contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment {pan-passu ranking} In

addition, bonds issued by Vivendi SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control tngger if, as a result of any such event, the
long-term rating of Vivendi SA is downgraded below investment grade status {Baa3/BBE-)

222 Bank credit facilities

December Maturing during tha followang periads December
Maximum kil After k|

{in mullion of euros) Matunty amount 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2m7 2017 201
£1 5 thon revohing fatimty (May 2012) May 17 1500 {a) - - - -
€1 1 billon revolving facility {January 2012} Jan 17 1100 (o)
€40 millron revaiving facilty (January 2012} Jan 15 40
€50 illion: ravolving facity {May 2011}

trancha B €15 bdltan May 14 1500 725 % - - 725

tranchs C €2 0 billicr May 16 2000 19 - 819 M0
€10 bilhon ravotving facility {September 2010) Sep-15 1000 350 1850
€12 billon revolving facilty  SFR (June 2010) Jun-15 1200 -
€2 billion revolving facility (February 2008) {a) 850
€2 billign revolviag fagility {August 2008} {a) - 2000
Securitization program - SFR (March 201 1} - o) - 422
GVT BNDES 570 406 30 45 76 76 57 122 299
Marog Tetecom  MAD 3 biilion 1oan Jul 14 94 93 54 Ly 149
Canal+ Group VSTV Feb 14 35 29 13 16 - - 2
Drawn confimed bank credit facilrtres 2413 97 826 426 835 57 LF7] 497
Undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities 6616 B 784 1918 1209 2628 n 7164
Total of group's bank credit facilsties 9,039 103 1510 2384 214 2685 193 12081
Commertizl paper 155ued (d} 3255 32556 529

a InMay 2012, Vivendi set up a €1 5 billion syndicated bank credit facility maturing 10 May 2017, which permitted the early refinancing of
two credit facilities for a total amount of €3 billion {the €2 billion credit faciity of August 2006 maturing 1n August 2013 for €1 7 billion
and n August 2012 for €0 3 billion as well as the €1 billion credit facility of February 2008, matuning in February 2013}

b InJanuary 2012, Vivendi set up a €1 1 hillion bank credrt facility with a 5-year matunty, which permitted the early refinancing of the
€15 billion credit facility initially matunng in December 2012 and SFR's €0 5 billion syndicated ioan initially maturing in March 2012

¢ SHR's secuntization program was terminated in Jung 2012

d The commercial paper 1s backed to confirmed bank credit facilities |t 15 recorded as short-term borrowing on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position Mareover, in June 2012, Vivend) increased the maximum amount authorized by the Banque de France
regarding Vivend SA's commercial paper program from €3 bilhion 1o €4 tillion

Vivend: SA and SFR bank credit facilities, when drawn, bear interest at floating rates

Moreover, in connection with 1ts appeal of the verdict rendered 1n the Liberty Media Cosporation litigation, Vivendi will shortly deliver a
letter of credit 1ssued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 milhon {damages and interest, as well as
legal costs} This off-balance sheet financial commitment will have no impact an Vivend's net debt (please refer to Note 23 2 3)

Vivendi SA’s syndicated bank credit faciliies (€7 1 brllion as of December 31, 2012) contam customary provisions related 1o events of default
and covenants relating to negative pledge, divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivend: SA 1s
required to comply with a financial covenant of Proportionate Financial Net Debt’ to Proportionate EBITDA? over a twelve-month rolling
pernod not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loans Non-comphiance with this covenant could result in the early redemption of the facihties
if they were drawn, or their cancellation As of December 31, 2012, Vivend) SA was in compliance with these financial covenants

SFR's bank credit facility (€1 2 billion as of December 31, 2012} contains customary default, negative pledge, and merger and divestiture
covenants In addition, the facility 1s subject to a change in SFR's control provision Moreover, at the end of each half year, SFR must comply
with the following two financial covenants {1} a ratio of Financial Net Debt to consolidated EBITDA over a twelve-month rolling period not
exceeding 3 5, and (1) a ratio of consolidated earnings from operations {consolidated EFO) to consolidated net financing costs {interest) equal
to or greater than 3 Non-comphance with these financial covenants could tesult in the early redempbion of the loan As of
Decermber 31, 2012, SFR was (n compliance with these financial covenants

! Defined as the difference between Vivend: s Financial Net Debt and the share of Financial Net Debt attributable to non-controling interests of Actvision Blizzard and Maroc
Telecom group

T Defined as the drfference between Vivend: s modifred EBITDA and modified EBITDA attnbutable ta non-controlling imterests of Actwsion Bhzzard and Marot Tefecom group,
plus drwidends received from entities that are not conselidated

Financial Repart and Audited Consohdated Financigl Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend) /115




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

The renewal of Vivend SA’s and SFR's confirmed bank credit facilities when they are drawn 1s contingent upon the 1ssuer reiterating certain
representations regarding :ts ability to comply with its financial obligations with respect to loan contracts

The credit facilities granted to GVT by the BNDES (approximately BRL 1 5 billion as of December 31, 2012) contain a change n control trigger
and are subject to certain financial covenants pursuant to which GVT 1s required to comply at the end of each half year with at least thres of
the following financial covenants {1} a ratio of equity to total asset equal to or higher than 040 {0 35 for the credit facilities granted in
November 2011}, {u) a ratio of Financial Net Debt to EBITDA not exceeding 2 50, {1} a ratio of current financial liabhties to EBITDA not
exceeding 0 45, and {Iv) a ratio of EBITDA to net financial expenses of at least 4 00 (3 50 for the cradit faciittes granted in November 2011)
As of December 31, 2012, GVT was in comphance with its cavenants

223 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by matunity
{in mullions of euros) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Maturity
<1 vyear({a) 5,080 29% 3299 21%
Between 1 and 2 years 2057 12% 4017 26%
Between Z and 3 years 2,380 13% 2037 13%
Between 3 and 4 years 1,406 8% 1,603 10%
Between 4 and 5 years 2073 12% 1,391 9%
> G years 4,718 26% 3359 21%
Nomnal value of horrowings 12,14 100% 15,706 100%

a  Shortterm bomowings (with a maturity of less than one year} included in particular the commercial paper for €3,255 millon as of
December 31, 2012 (compared to €529 million as of December 31, 2011), with a 30-day weighted-average remaining period at year-end 2012
In addrtion, they included the £700 million bond 1ssued 1n October 2006 and maturing in October 2013

As of December 31, 2012, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which afl undrawn amounts on available medium-
term credit lines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was of 4 4 years {compared to 4 0 years at year-end 2011}

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in millions of euras} Note December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Fixed interest rate 11 666 66% 9993 64%
Floating interest rate 6048 34% 5713 36%

Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 17,714 100% 15,706 100%

Pay-fived interest rate swaps 450 1000

Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1,450} {1,750}

Net position at fixed mnterest rate 232 (1,000} {750)

Fixed interest rats 10,666 66% 9,243 58%
Floating interest rate 7,048 40% 6 463 41%
Nomnal value of borrowings after hedging 11,14 100% 15,706 100%

Please refer to Note 23 2 1 for a description of the group’s interest rate nsk management instruments

Breakdown by currency

{in millions of euros) Note December 31 2012 December 31, 2011
Euro - EUR 14 420 a1% 13751 8%
US dallar - USD 2046 12% 1084 7%
Other (of which MAD BRL, PLN and FCFA) 1,248 7% 1Al 5%

Nomimnal value of borrowings before hedging 17,7114 100% 15,206 100%

Currency swaps USD 1303 563

Other currency swaps {813) (a} {78)

Net total of hedging instruments 232 490 485
Euro - EUR 14910 84% 14236 51%
US dollar - USD 743 4% 521 3%
Other (of which MAD BRL, PLN and FCFA} Z 061 12% 949 6%

Nomnal value of borrowings after hedging 17.14 100% 15,706 100%
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a  Notably included a forward GBP/EUR contract for a narmunal amount of £430 mullon, put into place i arder to cover the proceads from the

forthcomeng sale of certain assets of EMI Recorded Music Please refer to Note 23 Z 2 for a descniption of the group’s foreign currency nisk
management

224 Credit ratings

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2012, the credit ratings of Vivendi were as follows

Rating agency Rating date Type of debt Ratings Qutlook
Standard & Poor's July 27, 2005 (a) Long-term carporate deht BEB
Short-term ¢orporate debt A-2 Negative {a)
Senior unsecured debt BBB
Moady's September 13, 2005 Long-term senior unsecured debit Baaz Stable
Fitch Ratings December 10, 2004 Long-term senior unsecured debt BaB Stable

a OnOctober 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's removed the credit watch negative that it had placed in Vivend!'s debt on July 4, 2012 and confirmed
Vivend\'s rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating

Note 23  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
23.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments classified as liabilites under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Posttion include bonds and bank credit facilities, ather
financial liabilities {including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and other non-current
liabiities As assets under Vivend:'s Statement of Financial Position, they include financial assets measured at fair value and at historical
cost, trade accounts recevable and other, as well as cash and cash eguivalents In addition, financral instruments include derivative
instruments {assets or habilities) and assets available for sale

Accounting categery and far value of financial instruments

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carryim Carryin

{in milkions of euros) Note varl‘{Jeg Farrvalue valueg Fair value
Assets

Cash management financtal assets 301 301 266 266

Available-for-salg securitigs 197 197 125 125

Denvative financial instruments 137 137 101 101

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 15 28 28

Financial assets at amortized cost 228 228 352 352
Financial assets 15 878 878 872 872
Trade accounts recewvable and other, at amortized cost 16 6 587 6 587 8,730 6,730
Cash and cash equivalents 17 34894 3,894 3,304 3304
Liatmlities

Bomrowings at amortized cost 12,713 18,637 15,6594 16,079

Dervative financial mstruments 35 36 5 5

Commutments to purchase nen-controfling interests, at fai value

through profit or loss g 8 11 7
Borrowngs and other financial liabilities 22 17,757 18,681 15710 16,089
Other non-current hiabilities, at amortized cost 16 1,002 1002 864 864
Trade accounts payable and other, at amortized cost 16 14,196 14 196 13,987 13987

The catrying value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable 15 a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short matunity of these instruments
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Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables present the fair value method of financial instruments according to the three following levels
. Level 1 fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabihities,
- Level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices Included within Leved 1), and
- level 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included in the follawang tables
December 31, 2012

{in millions of euros) Note Total Level 1 Leve! Z Level 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets 15 ki) m - -
Avallable-for-sale secunties 15 197 - 154 43
Dervative financial instruments 232 137 - 137 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 g9 - ]
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3.894 3,894 -

Lialnhties
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 8 - - 8
Denvative financial nstruments 232 36 - 36 .

December 31, 2011

{in millions of euros) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets 15 266 266 - -
Available-for-sale securities 15 125 1 71 47
Derwvative financial instruments 232 m - 10 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 28 19 - 13
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3304 3,304 - -
Liabilities

Commitments to purchase non-controiling interests 1" - 2 9
Derivative financial instruments 232

In 2012 and 20711, there was no transfer of financial snstruments measured at far value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, financial instruments measured at level 3 fair value did not include any significant amount

232 Management of financial risks and derivative financial instruments

As part of its business, Vivend: 1s exposed to several types of financial nsks market nisk, credit {or counterparty) nsk, as well as hquidity nsk
Market risks are defined as the nisks of fluctuation 1 future cash flows of financial Instruments {receivables and payables, as described 1n
Note 23 1 above) that depend on the evolution of financial markets For Vivendi, market nisks may therefore pnmarly impact interest rates
and foreign currency exchange positions, 1n the absence of significant investments in the markets for stocks and bonds Vivend's Financing
and Treasury Department centrally manages significant market nsks, as well as its liquidity nisk within the group, reporting directly to
Vivendi's chief financial officer, a member of the Management Board The Department has the necessary expertise, resources {notably
technical resources), and information systems for this purpose However, the cash and exposure to financial nisks of Maroc Telecom group
and Activision Blizzard are managed independently The Finance Committee monitors the liquidity positions in all business units and the
exposure to interest rate nisk and foreign currency exchange rate risk on a bi-menthly basis Short- and long-term financing activities are
mainly performed at the group's headquarters and are subject to the prior agreement of the Management and Superwisory Board, in
accordance with the Internal Regulations However, 1n terms of optirmzing financing operations within the group's debt management
framework within the himits already approved by the Supesvisory Board, a simple notification 1s required

Vivend: uses various dervative financial instruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded gver-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties Al
derivative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes and speculative hedging 1s forbidden
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Derivative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2012 December 31, 2011
{wnn rulbans of euros) Note  Assets Liabihies Assets Liabilities
Interest rate risk management 2321 104 {10 60 -
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps - (10 - -
Pay floating Interest rate swaps 104 - 60
Foreign currency nisk management 2322 1 {26) (3] {5}
Other 234 20 - . -
Dervative financial instruments 137 {36) 101 {5)
Deductron of current denvative finangial instruments {12) 15 {39 5
Non-currem denvatyve financial instruments 125 1) 62 -

2321  Interest rate risk management

Interest rate nsk management instruments are used by Vivend: to reduce net exposure to interest rate fluctuations, to adjust the respective
proportion of fixed or floating interest rates in the total debt and to optimize average net financing costs In addition, Vivend's internal
procedures prohibit all speculative transactions

Average gross borrowings and average cost of borrowings

In 2012, average gross borrowings amounted to €17 1 billion (compared to €13 7 bithon in 2011), of which €10 2 billion was at fixed-rates
and €6 9 billion at flpating rates {compared 1o €7 2 and €6 5 bithon in 2011, respectively) After management, the average cost of borrowings
was 3 50%, with a fixed rate ratio of 60% (compared to 3 87%, with a fixed-rate ratio of 53% in 2011}

Interest rate hedges

Interest rate nisk management instruments used by Vivendi include pay-floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps Pay-floating swaps
effectively convert fixed rate borrowings to LIBOR and EURIBOR indexed ones Pay-fixed interest rate swaps convert floating rate borrowings
into fixed rate borrowings These instruments enable the group to manage and reduce valatility in future cash flows required for interest
payments on borrowings

In 2012, Vivend: SA early terminated swaps {netional amount of €300 million) belonging to the pay-floating interest rate swap portfolio
{aggregate noticnal amount of €750 million), maturing i 2017, thus generating an unrealized gain of €19 millien Simultaneously, the
balance of ths portfoho {notional amount of £450 million} was reclassified as an economic hedge and Yiventh set up a pay-fixed interest
rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million, generating an unrealized gain of €37 million These unrealized gains were recorded in
charges and income, directly recognrzed 1n equity, and recycled in financial income over the remaining term of the horrowing hedged

The tables below show the notional amounts of interest rate nisk management instruments used by Vivend:

December 31 2012

Notional amounts Fair valug
Aftar

in millons of euros] Total 2013 2014 2015 2018 M7 017 Assets Lallities
Pay-fixed mterest rate swaps 450 450 - (10)
Pay floating interest rate swaps (1,450) {1,000 {450} 104 -
Net position at fixed interest rate g1mol ppnng - (al 104 {10}
Breakdown by accounting cate of rate hedqing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - .

Fair Value Hedge {1.000) {1 000) 55 -

Econemic Hedging (b} . - {a) 49 {10)
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December 31 2011

Notional amounts Fair value
After
Asset Liaiit

(in millions of euros) Total 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 ssels lapiities
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 1,000 1,000 -
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1,790} {1 00Q} (750) 60 -
Net position at fixed interest rate (750) 1,000 {1,000) {750) il -
Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedging instruments

Cash Flow Hedge -

Fair Value Hedge {1750} {1000) {750} {c} 60

Economic Hedging (b) 1000 1000 -

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed swaps for a notional amount of

€450 million, maturing 1n 2017, both of which qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedging instruments relate to denvative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant 1o
IAS 39 )

c In 2012, Vivend: SA early redeemed €300 million swaps from the €750 mullion pay-floating interest rate swap portfolio matuning 1n
2017

Outstanding and average income from investments

In 2012, average cash and cash equivalents amounted to €3 4 billion {compared to €4 1 billion in 2011 }, beaning interest at floating rates The
average Interest come rate amounted to 0 91% in 2012 (compared to 1 16% n 2011) They mainly included Activision Blizzard's cash and
cash equivalents, invested in money market funds with initial maturity dates not exceeding 90 days

Sensitivity to changes in interest rates

As of December 31, 2012, given the relative weighting of the group’s fixed-rate and floating-rate positions, an increase of 100 basis points
in short-term interest rates {or a decrease of 100 basis points) would have resulted in a €29 million increase In interest expense {or a
decrease of £29 million}, unchanged compared to 2011

2322 Foreign currency risk management

Excluding Maroc Telecom group and Activision Blizzard, the group’s foreign curency risk management 1S centralized by Vivendi SA's
Financing Department and primanly seeks to hedge budget exposures (80%) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities
performed In currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments {100%), primarily relating to the acquisition of
editorial content {including sports, audiovisual and film nights} and certain capital expenditures (set-top hoxes for example), realized in
currencies other than the eura Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunty of less
than one year Considering the foreign currency hedge put into place, an unfavorable and ursform euro change of 1% agasnst all foreign
currencies in position as of December 31, 2012, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings (below €1 million as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011) In addition, the group may also hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities Nevertheless, due to their non-significant nature, net exposures to subsidianes net
working capital {internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not hedged The relevant nsks are realized at the end
of gach month by translating the sum mto the functional currency of the relevant operating entities

The principal currency hedged by the group is the US dollar In particular, Vivend: converted in euros the $550 million bond 1ssued n Apnil
2012, by setting up @ USD-EUR foreign currency hedge (cross-currency swap) with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 million counter value
maturing in April 2015

in addition, as part of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music for £1,130 million, which was completed on September 28, 2012 (please refer
to Note 2 1}

e Vivend: had partially hedged the acquisition price through forward purchase contracts denominated in (BP for a notional amount
of £600 million, with a 0 8144 EUR/GBP rate From an accounting perspective, these GBP purchases were considered as cash flow
hedges On October 1, 2012, this hedge was unwound for £737 million at the completion in the acquisition

e  Simultaneously Vivend: partially hedged the expected income from the sale of certain EMI Recorded Music assets, In accordance
with commrtments made by Vivend to the Eurcpean Commission, through forward sale contracts denominated n GBP for a
notional amount of £430 millton, with an average rate of 0 7955 EUR/GBP From an accounting perspectwe, these GBP sales were
considered as net investment hedges and will be unwound once the effective sale of Parlophone to Wamer Music group {please
refer to Note 2 1)
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Finally, the ntercompany loan granted by Vivend: ta GVT under market terms for a total amount of €1,001 mellion {drawn for €811 mullion as
of December 31, 2012} 1s not subject to any foreign currency hedging in GVT's Statement of Financ:al Positron Incurred foreign exchange
losses amounted to €76 million 1n 2012 and €24 million in 2011 This intercompany loan 1s mainly aimed at financing the significant increase
in GVT’s capital expenditures program related to the geographic expansion of 1ts telecammunication netwaork

As a reminder, from December 2009 to January 2011, following the agreement to sell the 20% interest in NBC Universal to GE for a total
amount of $5,800 million, Vivend: gradually hedged 1ts mvestment in NBC Universal using currency forward sales contracts denominated in
US dollar, at an average exchange rate of 133 EUR/USD From an accounting perspective, these forward contracts were qualified as net
vestment hedges in NBC Universal

The following tables present the notional amount of foreign currency nsk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts
relate to currencies to be receved, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered

December 31 2012

Nouional amounts Fai value
(i millions of ewros} Total UsD PLN GBP Other Assets  _Liabimes
Sales against the euro 1931) {59} (162} {586) {124) 12 {3)
Purchases against the euro 1,421 1257 37 15 12 1 (20
Other - 105 197 18 - - {3y
490 1303 (222) {579) {12) 13 (26)
Breakdow accounting cat f foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro 150 iB) {58) 18) [18) 1 i
Purchases against the eurg 445 446 {a) - B - 1 (1)
Other - 92 {92} - - - (3
359 532 {150} (8] {15) 2 {15)
Faur Velue Hedge
Sales against the suro {154) 153 {8g) 31 - 1 {2}
Purchases against the euro 455 441 - 15 - {6)
Other - 20 {12) (8) - - -
302 408 (110} 4 - 1 (8)
Net Investment Hedge
Sales against the euro 1575} - - {5751 {b} - 10
Purchases aganst the euro - - - - -
Other - - N . R R
(575) - - 575) - 10
Economic Hedging (¢)
Sales against the euro (115} - {6) - (108 - -
Purchases against the euro 519 370 37 - 112 - {3}
Other - {7} 7 - - - -
L) 363 38 - 3 - {3)
December 31 2011
Notional amounts Far value
(n millans of euros) Tatal Usp PLN GBP Qther Assets  Liabilites
Sales against the euro {338) {53) (132) (80} {93} 5 {5)
Purchases against the euro 823 606 40 7 170 38 -
Other - 10 - (10} - - -
485 563 {12} (83} 77 [3] {5}
Breakdown by accounting cateqory of fereign currency hedqing instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales agatnst the euro (97) - (65} (9 (23} - {2)
Purchases against the euro 70 69 - 1 - 5 -
Other - - o - - - -
(27) 69 (65} {8) {23) 5 12)
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro {54) {6} {47) {1} - 5
Purchases agamst the euro 476 476 - - - 28
Other - 4 {11} (10 - - -
422 491 {58) m - 33 -
Economic Hedging (c)
Sales aganst the eurp (187) {47} - (70} (70) - {3)
Purchases agawnst the euro 77 61 40 8 170 3 -
Other - {11} 11 - - - -
90 3 51 (64 100 3 (3)
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a Notably includes the hedge associated with the $550 million bond 1ssued In April 2012, with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a counter-
value of €420 million at maturity n Apnl 2015

b Manly includes the hedge associated with the forthcoming sale of EMI Recorded Music assets as of December 31, 2012 {please refer

to Note 2 1), with an average rate of 07965 EUR/GBP, for a notional amount of £430 miflion, or a counter value at matunty of
€533 million

c The economic hedging instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not ehigible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39

23.23 Liguidity nsk management

Contractual maturity of the group’s Financial Net Debt future cash flows

The table below presents the carrying value and the future undiscounted cash flows, as defined in the contractual matunity schedules, of
assets and liabihties that constitute Vivendi's Financial Net Debt

December 31 2012

Carrying Contractual matunty of cash outflows / (inflows)

{n multions of euros) value Tosal 2013 2004 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
Nomimal value of borrowngs (a) 17,714 17,714 5080 2057 2,380 1,406 2,073 4,718
Cumuiative effect of amortized cost and reevaiuation due (o
hedge accounting 1) -
interast to be pard (b} . 2586 534 502 402 331 302 515

Botrowings 17,7113 20,300 5614 2,559 2782 1737 2375 5233

Commitments to purchase non controlling intetests 8 8 4 4

Derwvative financial instruments 36 30 18 3 K] 3 3

Borrowings and other financial habihies 17,751 20,338 5.632 2562 2,185 1,740 2,382 5237

Cash management financial assets (301} (301} {30}

Derwative financial instruments 1nan {156} (40) {29 (28 (28) mj {20}

Cash deposits backing borrowings 18 {6) 16)

Cash and cash equivalents {c} {3994} (3 894) {3,894)

Financial Net Debt 13,419 15,981 139 2533 2,151 1,712 X1 5217

Undrawn confirmad bank credit faciliies (d) 6616 & T84 1,918 1,209 2628 n

December 31 2011
Carrying Cantractua) matunty of cash outflows / (inflows)

{in milltons of euros} value Total 2012 2013 014 2015 2016 After 2016
Nomunal value of borrowings (3) 15706 15,706 3299 4017 2037 1 603 1,391 3359
Cumulative affect of amortized cost and reevaluation dua to
hedge accounting {12) -

Interest to be paid (b} - 2230 544 436 360 266 196 428
Borrowings 15,694 17,936 3,843_ 4453 2397 1 869 1587 3,787
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 1 1 1 4 6
Derwvative financial instruments 5 5 5
Borrowsngs and other financial liabilines 5,710 17,952 3,589 4,853 2,391 1,869 1591 3,793
Cash management financial assets | 266} {266) {266)

Oenvative financial instruments {101) (142} {54) {16) (16} {15} {16) {25)

Cash deposits backing borrowings {12) {12 na

Cash and cash equivalents {c) 13304) {3,304} {3,304}

Financial Net Debt 12,027 14,228 FiF] 2437 .38 1,854 1515 3,768

Undrawn confirmed bank credit facilies 1,164 204 110 199 2.261 1.730 br. ]

a Future contractual undiscounted cash flows refated to the naminal value of currency borrowings are estimated based on the applicable
exchange rate as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively

b Interest to be paid on floating rate borrowings 15 estmated based on floating rates as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively

c Cash and cash equivalents include cash held outside the United States by the Activision Blizzard's ncn-American subsidiaries for
£1,936 million (compared to €1,266 millon as of December 31, 2011} If these funds are needed in the future to finance American
transactions, Activision Blizzard would accrue and pay the required US taxes to repatnate these funds However, Activision Blizzard's
intent is to permanently reinvest these funds outside of the United States and their current business plans do not demonstrate a need
to repatriate them to fund thewr activities in the United States
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d In connection with its appeal of the verdict rendered in the Liberty Media Corporation itigation, Vivend) will shortly deliver a letter of
credit 1ssued by Bank of America for the benefit of Liberty Media Carporation, for €975 million {damages and interest, as well as legal
costs) This off-balance sheet financial commitment will have no impact on Vivend:'s net debt (please refer below)

Group financing policy

Vivendi's financing policy consists of incurming long-term debt, mainly in band and banking markets, at a vanable or fixed rate, In euras or in
US dollars, depending on general corporate needs and market conditions

s Non-current financial debts are pnmarily raised by Vivendi SA, which centralizes the group's financing management, except for Activision
Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group In this context, in 2012, Vivendi pursued its policy of disintermediation, having recourse In
prionty to the bond market Vivendi also sought to diversify 1ts invester base by 1ssuing on the Amencan bond market and pursued
its policy of maintaining the "economic” average term of the group’s debt above 4 years [n addition, Vivend: has a Euro Medium
Term Notes program on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which 15 renewed each year, in order to take advantage of every euro
bond market oppertunity Vivendt's bank counterparties must meet certamn critena of financial soundness, reflected in their credit rating
with Standard & Poor's and Moody's Moreover, to comply with the rating agencies’ prudential regulations regarding lquidity
management, Vivend) arranges to the extent possible, the refinancing of all expiring bank credit facilities or bonds one year in
advance As a result, in 2012, Vivend made three bond 1ssuances in euro for a total amount of €2,250 million (January, April and
December 2012}, and one rssuance in US dolars for $2,000 muilion {Apnil 2012)

»  Contractual agreements for credit facihities granted to Vivendi SA do riot include provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its
financial ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and at the end of each half-
year, Vivendi SA 1s notably reguired to comply with a financial covenant {please refer to Note 22 2) The credit fac/lities granted to
group companies other than Vivendi SA are intended to finance erther the general needs of the borrowing subsidiary or specific projects

e In 2012, investments, working capital, debt service {including the redemption of borrowings), and the payment of income taxes and
the dividend distribution, were financed by cash flow from operations, net, asset disposals, and borrowing or share issuances
(Direct 8 and Direct Star) For the foreseeable future and based on the current financial conditions on the financial market, subject
to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change in scope, Vivendi intends to maintain
this financing policy for its mvestments and operations

As of December 31, 2012

+  The group’s bond debt amounted to €10,888 mullion {compared to €9,276 million as of December 31, 2011} In 2012, Vivendi 1ssued
bonds in euros and 1n US dollars for a total amount of €3,758 million and redeemed bonds for a total amount of £2,048 mullion {of
which $700 milion {or €448 million} were early redeemed in Apnl/May 2012) The group's bond debt represented 61% of the
borrowtngs (n the Statement of Financial Position (compared to 59% as of December 31, 2011}

o The total amount of the group's confirmed credit facilities amounted to £9,038 miilion {compared to €12,083 million as of
December 31, 2011} The group’s aggregate amount of credit facilities neither drawn nor backed by commercial paper amounted to
€3,361 million {compared to €6,635 million as of December 31, 2011} The decrease in the amount of credit facilities neither drawn
nor backed by commerciat paper was notably due to the disintermediation policy, the wncrease (n the outstanding amount of
commercial paper, and the financing of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by drawing on credit facilities

e  Vivendi SA’s and SFR’s total confirmed credit facttties amounted to £8,340 million as of December 31, 2012 (including €2 billion in
available swinglines), comparad to €11,242 mullion as of December 31, 2011 All these credit faciities have a matunity greater than
one year These credit facilities were drawn for €1,894 million as of December 31, 2012 Considering the €3,255million
commercial paper 1ssued at that date and backed to bank credit facrlities, these facilittes were available up te @ maximum amount
of €3,191 million

¢ Inconnection with its appeal of the verdict rendered in the Liberty Media Corparation litigation, Vivend: will shortly deliver a letter
of credit issued by Bank of Amenca for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 mullion {damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) The latter was guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivend) has signed a
Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the
letter of credit The Reimbursement Agreement notably contans events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those
contained in Vivendr's credit facilities In certain circumstances, these pravisions could cause Vivendi to have to post cash
collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, f one of the 15 banks defaults in respect of its obligations and was not
able to 1ssue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of America, Vivend: could be caused to substitute such
bank with another bank or, as a last resort, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such bank’s participation in the
letter of credit

*  The short-term borrowings mainly included issued commercial paper The “economic” average term of the group’s debt was
4 4 years (compared t0 4 0 years as of December 31, 2011}
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e Finally, there 1s no restriction on the use of the financial resources which the group’s companies benefit {including Vivend: SA} that
may materially affect, directly or indirectly, the group’s activities

On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor’s removed the credit watch negative that it had placed on Vivendi's debt on July 4, 2012 and
confirmed the rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating, which 1s used as a reference for
the 1ssuance program of commercial paper Vivend) reaffirmed 1ts commitment to maintaining such credit rating

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendr's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, Vivendi SA and SFR had available confirmed credit facilities amounting to €8,340 million, of which €500 million were
drawn Considering the amount of commercial paper 1ssued at that date, and backed on bank credit facilives for €3,991 milion, these
facilities were available for an aggregate amount of £3,849 million Moreover, the sale of Parlophone, announced on February 7, 2013, for
£487 million {please refer to Note 2 1}, should be finalized during the second half of 2013

Group financing organization

Excluding primanly Actvision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash pooling} of all controlled
entities (a) that are not subject to local regutations restricting the transfer of financial assets or (b} that are not subject to other contractual
agreements In particular, the increase to @ 100% ownership interest in SFR on June 16, 2011, has enabled Vivend: SA to centralize all of
SFR's cash surpluses on a daily basis from July 1, 2011 through a cash pooling account

Aiternatively, in particular at Activision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom, cash surpluses are not pooled by Vivendi SA but rather, as the case
may be, distributed as dividends when they are not used to finance investments of the relevant subsidianes, as common stock repurchases
or to redeem borrowings used to finance their investments Regarding Activision Blizzard, up until July 9, 2013, the disinbution of any
dividend by Activision Blizzard requires the affirmative vote of a majonity of the independent directors if Activision Blizzard's Financial Net
Debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds $400 million

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, 1ts cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through its current bank credit facilities will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital
expenditures, service its debt {including the redemption of borrowings), pay its income taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial
investment projects, if any, for the next twelve months, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the
group’s change in scope In addition, Vivendi considers that the bank commitments received on September 28, 2012 to cover the letter of
credit to be soon put in place in connection with its appeal of the Liberty Media Corporation Iigation will be sufficient to suspend
enforcement of the judgment by Liberty Media Corporation until the appeal 1s resolved

233 Credit and investment concentration risk and counterparty risk management

Vivend:'s nsk management policy aims at minimizing the concentration of its credit (bank credit facilities, honds, derivatives) and investment
risks as well as counterparty risk, as regards the setting-up of bank credit facilit:es, dervatives or investments, by entering into transactions
with highly rated commercial banks only Moreover, regarding bond 1ssues, Vivend distributes its transactions among selected financial
investors

In addition, Vivendi's trade receivables do not represent a significant concentration of credit nsk due to its broad customer base, the broad
variety of customers and markets, and the geographic diversity of its business operations

234 Equity market risk management

As of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011, Vivend!'s exposure to equity market risk was non-significant

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, Vivend: holds call options and has granted put options on Iisted or unlisted shares Vivendi 1s thus
exposed to the nisk of fluctuation in therr values As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi's net exposure was not significant, given that the
unrealized losses on the put granted to 1Tl group on a 9% interest in N-Vision (€19 muilion, please refer to Note 2 3) were offset by the
unrealized gain on Deezer warrants (€20 million)
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Note 24 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

241 Adjustments

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) Note 02 2011
Items related to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 4 3929 3an
Change n provision, net 102 {130}
Other non-cash items from EBIT 1 .
Other
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation m the United States 27 945 -
Other income from EBIT 4 (22) {1385}
Other charges from EBIT 4 235 £56
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 9 8
Adjustments 5,199 2,550

242 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2012, investing and financing activities with no cash impact amounted to €536 million [of which €336 mullion due to the share capital
increase and €260 million due to the group’s retained earnings increase) and were mainly related to

- the grant of bonus shares to Vivendi SA shareowners by a €229 rillion withdrawal from additienal paid-in capital (please refer to
Note 18),

- Vivend: SA’s share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which tt paid in consideration for the contribution made by Bolloré
Medsa, ithe free-to-air channels Birect 8 and Duect Star), representing an enterpnise value of €336 million (please refer to Note 2 2),
angd

- The strategic partnership in Poland, finalized on November 30, 2012 This transaction, described in Note 2 3, generated an increase
in consohidated retawned earmwngs from equity of €260 mutlion {€114 milhion related to the gain on the dilution of Cyfra+ and
€131 million related to the recognition of IT! Neowision non-controlling interests at fair vafue)

In 2011, there were no significant mvesting and financing activities with no cash impact

Note 25 Transactions with related parties

25.1 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

At 3 meeting held on June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy's term of office as Chairman of the
Management Board The Supervisory Board also termunated the terms of office of the following members of the Management Board Mr
Abdeslamn Ahizoune, Mr Amos Genish, Mr Lucian Grainge, and Mr Bertrand Meheut It also appointed Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chairman
of the Management Board The Management Board 1s currently composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos and Mr Philippe Capron

In addition, as a remunder, on March 26, 2012, Mr Frank Esser resigned from his offices as member of Vivendy's Management Board and as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of SFR

Compensation of corporate officers

The total gross compensation, including benefits in kind, that the group paid to the members of the Management Board, amounted to
€25 million 1n 2012 (compared to €18 million in 2011) This amount mainly included the fixed compensation component of the members of
the Management Board for the duration of their mandate (€5 million in 2012, compared to €9 million 10 2011}, the variable compensation
component with respect to the previous year (E12 milion paid 0 2012 with respect to 2011, compared to €8 million paid in 2011 with
respect to 2010), as well as Mr Jean-Bernard Levy and Mr Frank Esser's severance payments (€6 million)

Adter having considered the recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Norminating Commuttee and the Chairman of the Human
Resources Commuttee, the Supervisory Board determined on June 28, 2012, that in accordance with the provisions approved by the General
Shareholders” Meeting of Apni 30, 2009, the conditions for Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy to receive severance pay had been satisfied This
severance pay amounts to sixteen months of fixed and vaniable compensation (based on six months” payment plus one additional month's
payment for each year of service within the group after 2002), which totals €39 million Mr Jean-Berard Lévy, in accordance with the
provisions approved by the General Shareholders’ Meating ot Apnil 30, 2009, retains the rights to all of his stock options and performance
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shares, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance conditions attached thereto Moreover, in March 2013, he wili receive the
variable compensation component with respect to 2012 prorated, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 22, 2013

In accordance with his employment contract, Mr Frank Esser’s severance pay amounted to €39 million {of which €2 3 million was paid 1
2012 and the balance i January 2013), corresponding to his contractual severance payments {twenty-four months of fixed compensation +
target bonus) and conventional compensation

The members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2012 are entitled to receive severance payments upon termination,
corresponding to a contractual termination payment As of December 31, 2012, the total estimated amount of these severance payments o
be paid to Management Board members was approximately €0 8 millon At the General Shareholders” Meeting to be held on Apnl 30, 2013,
it wiil be proposed that Mr Philippe Capron be entitled to receve a contractual severance payment of a gross amount of eighteen months’
compensation {fixed compensation + target bonus)

The total charge recorded by the group with respect to share-based compensation plans (stock options, performance shares, and employee
stock purchase) granted to members of the Management Board, in office or no longer in office, amounted to €6 mullon in 2012

The total amount of net pension plan obhgations to members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2012, amounted to
£5 million as of that date (compared to €30 million and €13 million of provisions for members of the Management Board in office as of
December 31, 2011) Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy and Mr Franck Esser lost their pension nghts, which were under the supplemental pension
plan

The fixed compensation paid to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to £700,000 in 2012 {unchanged compared to 2011) and
the total amount of fees paid to the other members of the Supervisory Board amounted to €12 millicn with respect to 2012 {unchanged
compared to 2011)

A detailed description of the compensation and benefits of corporate officers of the group 1S presented in the Annual Report

25.2 Other related parties

As a reminder, during 2011, Vivend: acquired Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR and completed the sale of i1ts 20% interest in NBC Universal
as from January 1, 2011, Vodafone and NBC Universal are no longer considered as related parties

Therefore, excluding corporate officers, Vivend:'s main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive o
joint contral, and companies over which Vivend: exescises a significant nfluence (please refer to Note 28 for a hst of 1ts main subsidianes,
fully consohdated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controliing nterests that exercise significant influence on group
affihates 1 e , the Kingdom of Morocco, which owns 30% of Maroc Telecom group, Lagardére, which owns 20% of Canal+ France, and since
November 30, 2012, TVN, which owns 32% of Canal+ Cyfrowy {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group)

Agreements entered into 1n 2006 with Lagardére that give Canal+ France the right to broadcast their theme channels on its multi-channel
offer for a period of five years have been extended through June 30, 2013
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Note 26  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend''s matenal contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

s contracts entered 1nto, which relate to the group's busiaess operations, such as content commutments (ptease tefer to Note 10 2],
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases
{please refer to Note 12), off-balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as
long-term service contracts and purchase or nvestment commitments,

s commtments related to the group's scope contracted through acgusitions or dwestitures such as share purchase or sale
commitments, contingent assets and labilities subsequent te given or received commetments related to the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders” agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third partres over Vivendr's
assets,

o commitments related to the group's financing bomrowings ssued and undrawn confismed bank credit facihties as well as
management of interest rate, foreign currency and iguidity nsks (please refer to Notes 22 and 23), and

« contingent assets and labilities related to itigations in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either plamntiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 27)

26.1 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

As of December 31 2012 Total as of
Total Payments dus n December 31
{in milhions of evros) Note 2013 2014 2017 After 2017 2011
Borrowings and other financiai habiliies 2323 20338 5632 9469 [Fih 17 952
Content kabilities 102 21203 2103 174 1] 2148
Future minimum payments related to the consolideted statement of financial position stems N 1735 9643 5243 20,100
Contractual rontent commitments 102 4939 20N 2791 7 504
Commercial commitments 2 5m 107 942 552 3569
Operating leases and subleases 612 1735 495 1387 853 2589
ftems not recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position 10,585 3,353 5,120 1,482 11,198
Contractual ablipations and commercisl commitments 33,206 nns 14,763 6,725 31,298
26.1.1  Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2012 Total mumimum future
Total Payments due in payments as of
(in mullions of euros) 2013 M14-2017 After 2017 December 31 2011
Satellite transponders 846 1na 382 345 677
Investment commitments {a) 1,487 1,093 237 157 2522
Cther 786 294 447 50 614
Given commitments 319 1,506 1,061 552 s
Satellite transponders {201} {82) M9 - (144)
Other (b {7} (7 - (101)
Received commitments {208) (29} {119) - {245)
Net total 2911 1,417 942 552 3,568

a Mainly relates to SFR and Maroc Telecom group

e SFR the total amount included €262 millien as of December 31, 2012 (compared to €337 million as of December 31, 2011)
related to public service delegations Businesses related to these delegations of public service consist of setting up and
operating telecommunication facilities in certain areas of France for local or regional authonties, as delegates As of December
31, 2011, investment commitments also included €1,065 million related to the 4G license (very-high-speed Internet - LTE) which
was granted by the Arcep on December 22, 2011, and paid in January 2012 {please refer to Note 13)

e Maroc Telecom SA and its capital expenditure program at the end of 2011, the third capital expenditure agreement entered
into, between Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State in 2009, pursuant to which Maroc Telecom had commutted to carrying
out a capital expenditure program for a total amount of MAD 10 5 tllon {approximately €930 milion) expired On January 16,
2013, Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement pursuant to which Maroc
Telecom has committed to carrying out a capital expenditure program for a total amount of more than MAD 10 illion
{approximately €908 million) between 2013 and 2015, which moreover should create 500 direct jobs This program aims to
madernize and expand the infrastructure to meet the growing needs of mobile traffic and broadband Internet as well as the
deployment of a fiber optic network for very-high speed broadband access
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b Mainly related, as of December 31, 2011, to commitments received from Bouygues Telecom to SFR in connection with the agreement
to share their investments and fiber-optic horizontal networks in vesy high density areas

26.12 Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Mimmum future leases as of December 31 2012 Total - minimum future
Tota! Duen leases as of December
{in milhons of euros) 2013 014 - 2017 After 2017 31 2011
Buildings {a) 2,633 470 1329 834 2409
Other 212 64 103 45 221
Leases 2845 534 1,432 879 2530
Bundings (a} {110} {38) (45) {26) M)
Subleases {110 {39} (45) {26) a1}
Nettotal 2,735 295 1,387 853 2589

a Mainly relates to offices and technical premises

As of December 31, 2012, provisions of €15 million were recorded in the Statement of Financial Position with respect to operating leases
(compared to £17 million as of December 31, 2011} These provisions mainly related to unocccupled buildings

262 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref ICnmaxt ]Chracmnmes {nature and amount)
i iGven commutments - T L A g 2
{a}) |Obligations related to the permussian o use the Consohdated Global Profit {Balance of €3 milhon to be paid -
System
Individual nghts to training for French employees Appraxmately 16 milion hours {approximately 15 milhon hours as of December n, -
2011)
SHR s network coverage commitments related to telecom hcenses Please refer to Note 13 -
{b) |GSM-R commitments Bank guaraniee, jomnt and several guarantees with Synérail for a total amount of €92

milhon {compared to €66 miflion as of December 31 2011)
Obligations in connection with pension plans and post-retirement benefits - [Please refer to Note 20 -

Commitment 1o contribute to the VUPS pension fund Guarantee expired in January 2011 2om
{e) [Other guarantees given Cumutated amount of €190 mallion (€216 milion as of December 31 2011} -
T T T A WO = RN R A A R -
{d) |Agreements on the digital distribution of music nghts Minimum guarantees -
Other guarantees receved Cumulated amount of £191 million (€241 millien as of December 31 2011} -

a By an order dated March 13, 2009, an authonzation to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System under Article 209 quinquies of
the French Tax Code was renewed for the period beginning on January 1, 2003 and ending on December 31, 2011 Under the terms of
the permission to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, Vivend: undertook o continue to perform its previous years'
commitments, 1n particular with regard to job creation

b On February 18, 2010, a group comprised of SFR, Vinci and AXA {30% each} and TDF {10%) entered inte a contract with Réseau Ferré
de France regarding the public-private partnership GSM-R This 15-year contract, valued at approximately €1 billion, covers the
financing, bullding, operation and maintenance of the digital telecommunications network that enables conference mode
communications (voice and data} between train drivers and teams on the ground It will be rolled out gradually unti 2015 over
14,000 km of conventional and high-speed railway lines in France

¢ Vivend grants guarantees in various forms to financial institutions on behalf of its subsidiaries in the course of their operations

d Mainly relates to commitments recewved by UMG from third parties in connection with agreements subject to mimimum guarantees on
the digital distribution of music rights

26.3 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivend has granted or receved commitments to purchase or sell
secunties Vivend: has notably commutted to sell certain EMi Recorded Music assets {please refer to Note 21)

In additron, the hquidity nghts regarding the strategic partnership ameng Canal+ Group. iTI, and TVN are detailed in Note 23 and the
liquidity nght regarding Lagardére’s 20% interest in Canal+ France is detailed in Note 26 5 below

Furthermore, Vivendi and its subsidiaries have granted or receved purchase or sale aptions related to shares in equity affiliates and
unconsolidated investments, which include Numergy, Vevo, Beats, and Spotify
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Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

. |Characteristics {nature and amount) l Expiry
: g : A=, e T D - L |
NBC Universal transaction (May 2004) and subsequent amendments (2005 Breaches of tax representations
2010 0Obligatian to cover the Mast Favored Nation provisions and
Remethial actrons 2014
Creation of Activston Blizzacd (July 2008) Tax sharing and indemmity agreemenis
Divestiture of UMG manufactunng and distribution gperations {May 2005) Vaneus commitments for manufactyring and distibition serices 2015
Takeover of Neuf Cegetel [Apnl 2008) Commitments undertaken in connection with the authenzatien of the take over by the French Minister of 2013
the Economy Industry and Employment
Acquisition of Baltoré Group s channels {Septembear 2012) Cammitments undertaken i connection with the authorizarton of the acquisition Iplease refer ta Note
22) with
the French Cempetition Authonty 2017
the French Broadcasting Authority 2015
Merger of Cyfra+ and n platforms INovember 2012) Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TYN
PLN 1 bidlion in the event of & breach of any representation or warranty or covenants and 2%
PLN 300 millton n the event of a breach of specific representation of waranty
Canal+ Group's pay TV activities in France {January 2007 July 2012) New approval of the acquisition of TRS and CanalSatellite subject tocompliance with injunctions 2017
ordered by the French Compeniton Authority
Tax and social quarantess with 2 €162 mullioncap expiced on January 4 2011 01
Dwestiture of Ganal+ Nordic (Qctober 2003} Distribution guarantees given n favor of Canal Digizal and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former
subsidiary
Divestiture of NC Numéncable (March 2005) Specific guarantees capped at £241 milhon {including tax and social nsks} 20%4
Divestiture of PSG {June 2006} Unlimited specific guarantees 2018
Drestiture of Sithe {December 2000) Specific guarantees capped at $480 million
Sale of real estate assets (June 2002} Autonomous first demand guarantees capped at €150 milion 1n tetal {tax and decennial guarantees) 2017
Early settlement of rental guarantees related 10 the last three bulldings in Cangellation in Cetober 2012 of guarantees of rental payments obligations following the sale of the 2012
Germany {November 2007) companies €277 millon as of December 31 2011)
Divestiture of PTG shares {December 2010} Commuments undertaken in order to end hugation over the share ownership of FTC in Poland
Other contingent habilities Cumulated amount of £10 million (€30 million as of December 31 2011}
Acquisibon of EMI Recorded Music [September 2012} Commnments recerved in onnection with the acquisition {please refer to Note 2 1)
Acquisiion of TeleZ Fance by SFR {July 2007} Commnments o the handhng and distnbution of audo visual content expred n Suly 2012 02
Acquistion of Bolloré Group s channels iSeptember 2012) Guarantees capped at €120 million {please refer to Note 2 2) 207
Acquisition of 40% of N Vision [November 2012} Guarantees made by IT| capped at approximately
€28 million for general guarantees and 2014
£277 million for specific guarantees {including tax matters free and full ownership of shares sold
authonizabions / approvals for the exercise of the actvity)
Merger of Cyfra+ and TVN s n platform (November 2012} Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN
PLN 1 brllign in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants 015
PLN 300 mullion in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty and
PLN 145 mullion related to Naowision 5 unutilized tax losses carned forward
Acquisition of Kinowelt [Apn| 2008) General and specific quarantees regarding movie nights property given by the sellers to EuroMed:en 2011
Babelsberg GmbH expired and
Specific guarantees notably on film nghts were granted by the sellers
Divestiture of NC Numénicable {March 2005) €151 milinon counter-guaranteed by France Telecom 2014
Early settlement of rentel guerantess related 1o the last three buldings in Commitments expired in October 2012 mz
Germarny [November 2007) Pledge over the cash of the divested companies sofd (€40 million as of December 31 2011) and
Counter guarantee prowded by the purchaser in the amount of €200 mihan cancelled in October 2012
Dwestiture of Xfera {2003) Guarantees amount to €71 million
Other contingent assets Cumulated amount of €58 mitlion (€47 rmllion as of December 31 20%1)

The accompany.ng notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and l:abilities described above

a
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As part of the NBC Universal transaction which occurred in May 2004, Vivendi and General Electric (GE} gave certain reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivendi retaned certain liabilities relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivend) and GE undertook te indemnify each other against losses resulting from, among other things, any breach of their respective
representations, warranties and covenants

Neither party will have any indemnification obligations for losses arising as a result of any breach of reprasentations and warranties
(1} for any individual 1tem where the loss 1s less than $10 million and {11} n respect of each indmvidual item where the loss 1s equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of alf losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the liable party will be
required to pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 million, but in no event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed
$2.088 million

In addrtion, Vivend: witl have indemnification obligations for 50% of every US dollar of loss up to $50 milhon and for all losses in
excess of $50 million relating to liabilities anising out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth in certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of IACI's interest in VIUE on June 7, 2005, Vivendi's commitments with regard to envionmental matters were amended
and Vivendi's liability 1s now subject to a de mimimis exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million
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The representations and warranties given as part of the NBC Unwersal transaction other than those regarding authorization,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation must be
brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of hmitations

The sale of Vivend!'s interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

b As part of the takeover of Neuf Cegetel, the approval from the Ministry of Economy, Industry and Employment, dated Apnl 15, 2008,
resulted 1n additional commitments from Vivend: and its subsidianes They address competitor access and new market entrants to
wholesale markets on SFR's fixed and mobile networks, acceptance on the fixed network of an independent television distributor if
such a player appears, as well as the availability, on a non-exclusive basis, of ADSL on eight new channels which are leaders in thew
particular field {Pans Premiére, Teva, Jmmy, Cing Cinéma Famiz, three M6 Music channels and Fun TV} Most of these commitments
have expired, excluding those related to pay-TV, which wili expire in Apnl 213

C On August 30, 2008, the TPS/Canal+ Group merger was authorized, in accordance with the merger control regulations, pursuant to a
decision of the French Minuster of Economy, Finance and Industry, subiect to Vivend) and Canal+ Group complying with certain
undertakings for a maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the availability of channels and
V0D, which could not exceed five years
On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry regarding the implementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS
For more information on the enguiry Into compliance with certain undertakings given n connection with the merger of Canal Satellite
and TPS, please refer to Note 27, below
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend: and Canal + Group’s filed motions requesting the annuiment of
the French Competition Authority's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to £27 million Under the second motion, the transaction was cleared once again, subject to
compfiance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, which have been by, for some since July 23, 2012 and others since
October 23, 2012, mainly focusing on
s Acquisition of movie nghts

- by limiting the duration of output deals to three years, requiring separate agreements for different types of nghts (1* pay-TV
window, 2™ pay-TV window, series, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- bydivesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senies — OCS SNC or by adopting measures limiting its influence on Orange Cinema
Series — 0CS SNC
s [Distnbution of pay-TV channels
- by the distribution of a minimum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channe! holding premium rights, and
by drafting a model distribution deai relating to independent channels included in the CanalSat offer,
. by the obligation to promote, in & transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform senang more than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all its own movie channels distnbuted by Canal+ Group (Cine+ channels) available to third-party distnibutors
{unbundling)
e Video on demand {VOD} and subscription videc on demand (SVOD)
by separating contracts entered nto for the purchase of VOD and SVOD nights on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
them with rights purchased for linear distribution on pay-TV,
- by offering StudioCanal's VOD and SVOD rights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group’s VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These injunctions are mposed for a penod of five years, renewable once At the end of the five-year period, the French Competition
Authonty will review the competition situation n order to determine whether the injunctions should be kept in place If market
conditions have changed sigmificantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be waived or partially or totally
revised An ndependent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authonty on September 25, 2012,
will be responsible for monitering the injunctions implementation

In addrtion, as part of the sale of a 20% interest 1n Canal+ France to Lagardére Active on January 4, 2007, Canal+ Group made tax and
social representations and warranties to Lagardare Active with 2 €162 million cap on the entities held by Canal+ France, excluding
CanalSatellite, Multithématiques and the TPS entities The tax and social guarantees expired on January 4, 2011

Moreover, Vivend: granted a counter-guarantee, in favor of TF1 and M6 to assume commitments and guarantees made by TF1 and M6
In connection with some of the contractual content commitments and other long term obligations of TPS and other obligations
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position of TPS As of December 31, 2012, the remaining amount of these commitments was
not significant and the counter-guarantee expired on January 4, 2013
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d  Inconnection with the divestiture of Canak+ Nordic in October 2003, Canat+ Group has retained distnbution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary, which guarantees are covered by a counter-guarantee given by
the buyers

e  As part of the divestiture of NC Numénicable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 millien
cap {including tax and social nisks) Specific risks relating to cable networks used by NC Numéncable are included in this maximum
amount and are counter-guaranteed by France Telecom up to €151 million

f In connection with the sale of its 43 9% interest in Sithe to Exelon in December 2000, Vivend: granted customary representations and
guarantees Claims, other than those made n relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 million In addition,
claums must exceed $15 million, except f they relate to foraign subsidianies of the divestiture of certain electnical stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these guarantees expired on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments stll exist and any
potential hiabilities related to contamination risks will survive for an indefinite period of time

g Inconnection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Newty, Vivend granted two autonomous fust demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity (Nexim 1 to 6) The guarantees are effective until June
30, 2017

h  After having sold the companies carrying credrt lease commitments in relation to the Berlin buldings Lindencorso, Anthropolis and
Dianapark {the "Companies™), in November 2007, Vivend: continued to guarantee certain lease payment obhigations As a result of the
early exercise by the Companies of their call options on the buildings, Vivend's guarantees were terminated on October 5, 2012, for
an amount of €277 millon as of December 31, 2011 In return, the counter-guarantee provided by the acquurors of the Companies to
Vivend (€200 million} was cancelled, as well as the piedge over the cash of the divested companies to the benefit of Vivend: (€40
million as of December 31, 2011} Vivend: has retained tax guarantees given at the time of the disposal of the Companies

f On Becember 14, 2010, Vivend, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak (Elekinm's main shareholder) and Elektnm’s creditors, wncluding
the Palish State and Elektnm's bondholders, entered into various agreements to put an end to the itigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa (PTC), a mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Yivend:
notably entered into the following commitments

o Vivend granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that capped at €600 million and maturing in August 2013,

s Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm SA (Elektnm) for the tax consequences of the transaction, with a cap at
€20 million This commitment expired 1n July 2011 and the claims have been settled 1n June 2012,

e Vivendi committed to compensate Law Debenture Trust Company (LDTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first €125 million,
46% between €125 milhion and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and

s Vivend committed to compensate Elektnm’s adm:nistrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against it, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

] The Share Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2, 2006 between Tele2 Europe SA and SFR contains representations and
warranties which expired on January 20, 2009 and warranties relating to claims ansmg with respect to tax and social matters, which
expired end of March 2012 On July 18, 2007, by way of implementation of the European Union antitrust regulation, the European
Commussion approved the purchase of the fixed and internet activities of Tele2 France by SFR, subject to commitments on the handling
and distribunon of audio-visuat content for a five-year penod All these commitments expired on July 18, 2012

k  Vivend received guarantees i respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2007 (E71 million), in the event of & favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerning Xfera's tax htigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees nclude a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 million

Several guarantees given in 2012 and during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
periods or statute of limitations of certain guarantees relating, among cther things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, In
consideration of share ownership, or given in connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivend's knowledge, no matenal claims for indemnification against such hiabilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivendi regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and litigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical in such transactions
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26,5 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreements (primanily those relating to Activision Blizzard, Maroc Telecom group, Canal+ France,
as well as “nc+"), Vivend: holds certain nights (such as pre-emptive nghts, priority nghts) which give it control over the capital structure of
consolidated companies partially owned by minority sharehalders Conversely, Vivend has granted similar nights to these other shareholders
in the event that it sells its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests, Vivendi
and its subsidiaries have given or recewved certain nghts (pre-emptive and other nghts} entiting them to maintain therr shareholder’s nghts

Strategic agreements among Vivendi, Canal+ Group, Lagardére, and Lagardére Holding TV

Pursuant to the Canal+ France strategic agreements entered inta on January 4, 2007, Lagardere was granted rights to maintain its economic
interest in Canal+ France, with varying nghts according to the leve! of its participation in Canal+ France Under no circumstances will
Lagardzre have any joint cantrol of Canal+ France The main provisions of these strategic agreements are as follows

e The Chairman and all the members of the Management Board of Canal+ France are appointed by Canal+ Group lLagardere s
represented by two members out of the ten members of the supervisory board

s lagardére has certain veto rights over Canal+ France and, in certain cases, over 1ts major subsidiaries including in the event of a
change in the by-laws, a major permanent change (n the business, its transformation into a company In which the partners would
have unlimited hability, a single investment representing more than a third of consolidated revenues, a tender offer for the
company’s shares, in certain circumstances the entry of a third party as a shareholder, and certain other rights {including a tag-
along nght, an anti-dilution night, and cenain bidding nghts in the event of the sale of Canal+ France) intended to protect Its
economic interest Vivend: has a pre-emptive right in the event of a sale of Lagardére's equity interest

e  Between 2008 and 2014, Lagardare will have a hquidity nght exercisable between March 15 and Aprit 15 of each calendar year,
provided, however, that Lagardare owns at least 10% but no more than 20% of the share capital and voting rights of Canal+
France, {and taking into account the fact that Lagardére did nat exercise its nght to exercise its call option enabling it to own 34%
of the capital of Canal+ France} Pursuant to this hquidity nght, Lagardgre 15 entitied to request a public offering of Canal+ France
shares Similarly, as in 2010 and 2011, on March, 26, 2012, Lagardere exercised its iquidity nght for 2012 On May 30, 2012,
Lagardére confirmed the exercise of its hquidity nght On June 27, 2012, Vivendi notified Lagardere of 1ts Intention not to acquire
its 20% Interest at the proposed price A new Initial Public Offering (IPO) process was launched on July 12, 2012, which has not
been successful to date

e  The financing of Canal+ France has been structured through a mechanism which includes shareholders” loans and the delwvery of
guarantees with respect to Canal+ France’s obligations Pursuant to this mechanism, Lagardére has the option to participate In
such financing and guarantee arrangements pro rata its level of ownership in the share capital of the company

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

For a detailed description of the key liquidity nghts under the strategic partnership regarding pay-TV in Poland, please refer to Note 2 3

In addtion, in compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commerciai Code, it 15 stated that some rights and obligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders’ agreements (Maroc Telecom group, and Canal+ Cyfrowy} may be amended or terminated n the event of &
change in control of Vivend: or a tender offer being made for Vivendi These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality
provisions

26.6 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 33, 2012, the amount of the group’s assets that were ptedged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties was £208 million
{compared to €203 million as of December 31, 2011) This amount primanly includes GVT's pledged assets with respect to judicial
guarantees for various litigations

{in milkons of euras} December 31, 2012 December 31 2011

On intangible assets 8 12
On tangible assets 47 52
On financial assets 146 11
On cash 8 8
Total 209 203

Moreover, Vivend: does not hald any third-party guarantees in respect of any of its receivables outstanding as of December 31, 2012 nor did
it have any as of December 31, 2011
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Note 27 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi 1s subject to various lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”}

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
nisk, provided that Vivends may, at any time, reassess such nisk o events accur dunng such proceedings As of December 31, 2012, provisions
recorded by Vivend: for all claims and Iitigations amounted to €1.357 million, compared to £479 million at December 31, 2011 (please refer
to Note 19}

Ta the company’s knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened praceedings in which it 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the pravious twelve months a significant
impact on the company's and on 1ts group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 15 described as of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivend!'s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Tnal of Vivendr's former officers i Paris

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office {(Parquet de Pans) launched an investigation into the
publication of aliegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Addrtional charges were brought in this invest:gation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivendi joined the proceedings
asacwvl party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11" Chamber of the Paris Trbunal of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Pans), following which the Public Prosecutor asked ihe Court to drop the charges against the defendants

On January 21, 2011, the Court rendered its judgment, in which 1t canfirmed the previous recogmition of Vivend: as a cvil party Messrs
Jean Marie Messier, Gullaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messrs Messier and
Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend officers as
well as some civil parties appealed the decision The tral before the Court of appeals is scheduled to take place from October 28 to
Novernber 26, 2013

On Janvary 7, 2010, Philippe Foiret summaned Vivend and Veolia to appear before a Criminal Court in an attempt to hold them liable for the
offences commutted by therr former managers On January 27, 2012, the Criminal Court dismissed Mr Foiret's application

Securnities Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend, Messts Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court far the
Southem District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of Califormia On September 30, 2002, the New York
court decided to consolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitled in re Vivend Universal S A Securities Litigation

The plantiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certan provisions of the US Secunties
Act of 1933 and US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial commumicatians On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed @ consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares ar American Depositary
Receipts {(ADRs) of Vivend: {formerly Vivend: Unwversal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, coutd be included in the class

Fallowing the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivendi on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssted an order consohdating the individual actions with the secunities ¢lass action for
purposes of discavery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsalidated the Liberty Media action frem the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssved an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the yury returned 1ts verdict 1t found that 57 statements made by Yivend between Ottober 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were materially false or misleading and were made in viglation of Section 10ib) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintffs had
alleged that thase statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “hquidity nsk” which
reached its peak in December 200% However, the jury concluded that nesther Mir Jean-Mare Messier nor Mr Gwliaume Hannezo were
liabte for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivend:'s shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the piaintiffs in the class action
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The jury also concluded that the inflabion of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Panis or New York markets {12 days) dunng the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, In a very clear statement, ruled, n the Mornson v National Australia Bank case, that American
securties law only apphes to ‘the purchase or sale of a secunty listed on an Amenican stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunity in the United States ”

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and issued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Morrison” decision, confirmed Vivend!'s
posttion by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Pans stock exchange and hmited the case to claims of
French, Amencan, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivend!'s post-trial
motions challenging the jury's verdict The Court also dechned to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintifs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Paris stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Mornson decision, also dismissed the claims
of the individual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Pans stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plantiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a natice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice have 150 days from that date to provide information and documentation evidencing the validity of thewr claim
Vivendi will then have the right to challenge the merits of these claims At the end of this process, which should be completed during the
second quarter of 2013, the judge will be able to determine the total amount of damages and enter a final judgment, thereby enabling
Vivend) to commence its appeal

Vivend: believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal at the appropniate times Vivend: intends to challenge, among other 1ssues, the
plaintiffs’ theories of causation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge during the conduct of the trial
Several aspects of the verdict will also be challenged

On the basts of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing n the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 13 1 (Use of Estimates} and 1 3 8 (Provisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of £550 miltion 1n respect of the damages that Vivendi might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivend) re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunities class action litigation sn the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Mommson case Using the same methodology
and the same vatuation experts as 1n 2009, Vivend: re-examned the amount of the reserve and set 1t at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely te shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve, compared to an accrual of
€550 million as of December 31, 2009

Vivend: considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivend: might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estimate As 15
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend:

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messter and Guillaume
Hannezo m the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants viclated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contraciual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the securrties class action for pre-tnal purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009 for purposes of
tnal The yudge granted Liberty Media’s request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the secunties class
action jury with respect to Vivend:'s hability {theory of "collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: hiable to Liberty Medsa for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties” agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of £765 millon Vivend: has filed certain post-tnial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting
that the Court set aside the wry's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tnal

Financtal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend: /134




Tuesday February 26, 2013

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 unt/l the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of retumn on one-year U S Treasury hills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013 On February 15, 2013, Vivend filed with the Court a Notice of
Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it believes it has strong arguments

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and foliowing the entry of the final judgment by the Court, at December 31, 2012,
Vivend: recognized a provision in the amount of €945 mullion

LBBW et al against Vivend

On March 4, 2011, twenty-six institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, Italy, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivend) with the Pans Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Apnil 2002 Then on April 10 and on Aprl
23, 2012, rwo similar complaints were filed against Vivendi the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System of
Idaho and the other by six German and British institutional investors Finally, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivendi on the same basis

California State Teachers Retirement System et al against Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apnl 27, 2012, sixty-seven stitutional foreign nvestors filed a complaint aga:nst Vivend and Jean-Marie Messier before the Panis
Commercial Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend: and its
former leader, between 2000 and 2002 Qn September 6, 2012, twenty-four new plaintiffs joined these proceedings, however, in Novernber
2012, two plaintiffs withdrew from the proceedings

Lagardére against Vivendi, Canal+ Group and Canal + France

On february 12, 2013, Lagardére Holding TV, @ 20% shareholder of Canal + France, filed a complaint against Vivend:, Canal+ Group and
Canal + France with the Pans Commercial Court The Lagardére group 1s seeking nullification of the cash management agreement entered
into between Canal + France and Canal+ Group on the grounds that it constitutes a related party agreement and hence, is seeking
restitution, under penalty, from Canak Group, of the entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France under the agreement, 1 e, the sum of
€16 bilion Vivend: formally denies the allegations of the Lagardére Group as ta the nature of this agreement, which should be considered
ordinary course, and intends to vigorously defend its nights

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further 10 a ctaim fiied by CGIS BIM {a subsidiary of Vivendi} against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due pursuant
te a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal,
which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay damages
Vivend| delivered a guarantee so as 10 pursue settfement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008, CGIS BIM
challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court issued a decision setting aside the
Judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010, the Berlin
Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in Apnil 2009, which decided in CGIS's favor
and confirmed the (nvalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase the building and
pay damages and interest This decision is now final In parallel, FIG filed a second ¢laim for additional damages in the Berlin Regional Court
which was served on CGIS on March 3, 2009 The Court, which had previously suspended this proceeding, must now rule on the validity of
this claim

Free against SFR

On May 21, 2012, Free filed a complaint against SFR with the Panis Commercial Court Free is challenging SFR's model of subsidizing mobile
phone purchases through what Free calls “concealed” consumer loans and claims this constitutes an unfair and deceptive trade practice On
January 15, 2013, the Court dismissed Free's claims and ordered 1t to pay to SFR €300,000 in damages for defamation and €100,000 for
costs Free appeafed this decision

Vivendi's complaint against France Télécom before the European Commission for abuse of a dominant position

On March 2, 2009, Vivend: and Free |ointly filed a complaint against France Télécom before the European Commussion (the “Commission”),
for abuse of a dominant position Vivendi and Free allege that France Télécom imposes excessive tanffs on offers for access to its fixed
network and on telephone subscriptions In July 2009, Bouygues Telecom joined in this complaint In a letter dated February 2, 2010, the
Commission informed the parties of its intention to dismiss the complaint On September 17, 2010, Vivend filed an appeal before the Court
of First Instance of the European Union in Luxemburg
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Complaint against France Télécom and Orange before the French Competrtion Authority

On August 9, 2010, SFR filed a complaint before the French Competition Authonty against France Télécom and Orange for anti-competitive
practices on the professional mobile market This case 1s under investigation

Complaint lodged with the French Competition Authority by Orange Réunion, Orange Mayotte and Outre Mer Telecom against
Société Réunionnaise du Radiotéléphone (SRR)

Orange Réunion and Orange Mayotte filed a complaint against SAR (an SFR subsidiary) for alleged discniminatory practices On September
15, 2009, the French Competition Authority imposed temporary protective measures on SRR, requinng 1t to propose to its subscnbers offers
which do not discriminate based on the network used, except where they reflect the differences in costs amongst the network operaters On
August 18, 2011, the French Competition Authority provided SRR with a report stating that SRR had not complied with the order and, on
January 24, 2012, the French Competition Authority ordered SRR to pay a fine of € million The investigation 1s ongoing

Complaint of Bouygues Telecom against SFR and Orange 1n connection with the call termination and mobile markets

Bouygues Telecom brought a claim before the French Competition Council against SFR and Orange for certain alleged unfair trading
practices n the call termination and mobile markets {“price scissonng”} On May 15, 2009, the French Competition Authonty (the
"Authonty”) resclved to postpone its decision on the 1ssue and remanded the case for further investigation On December 13, 2010, SFR was
heard on these allegations by the instructing magistrate On August 18, 2011, SFR received a notification of gnievances in which the
Authority noted the existence of abusive price discrimination practices On December 13, 2012, the Authority fined SFR €65 708 million SFR
has appealed this decision

SFR against France Télécom

On August 10, 2011, France Télécom filed a claim against SFR before the Parnis Commerciat Court France Télécom asked the Court to compel
SFR to stop the overflow traffic at the point of interconnection of their respective networks

CLCV against SFR and other telecom operators

On January 7, 2013, the French consumer protection association, CLCV {consumption, housing and quality of life) sued several French
telecom operators, including SFR, before the Pans Trbunal of First Instance it 15 seeking the removal of certain clauses that it considers
abusive from subscription contracts

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, the Canal+ Group was prohibited, under fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or those replacement
channels that have substrtuted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In & ruhing dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was again unsuccessful in 1ts claims concerning the content
of the channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the
french Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the context of this dispute, vanious jurisdictions have taken the
opportunity to recall that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal + Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a channel
of simifar attractiveness Non-compliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a clam
against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnibution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre
{Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enforcement having been praviously rejected
by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court] On November 6, 2012, Parabole
Réunion expanded 1ts claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels

In paralle!l with the foregoing proceedings, on October 21, 2008, Parabole Réunion and its shareholders filed a claim against Canal Réunion,
Canal Overseas, CanalSatellite Réunion, Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canak Distribution, seeking the enforcement of the agreement
entered inte on May 30, 2008, pursuant to which the companies would combine their TV channel broadcasting activities in the Indian Ocean
The execution of this agreement was contingent upon the satisfaction of certan conditions precedent As these conditions were not
satisfied, the agreement became null and void On June 15, 2009, the Commercial Court rejected Parabole Réunion's claim Parabole
Réunion appeated this decision and the appeal was denied On May 23, 2011, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court This
appeal was dismissed on May 30, 2012

On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Pans Tribunal
of First instance asking the Tribunat to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill the:r contractual abligations to
Parabole Réunion and thewr commitments to the Ministry of Economy
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Action brought by the French Competition Authonty regarding practices in the Pay TV sector

On January 9, 2009, further to 1ts voluntary investigation and a complaint by France Télécom, the French Competition Authonty sent Vivendi
and Groupe Canal+ a notification of allegations it alleges that Groupe Canal+ has abused its dominant pasition in certamn Pay TV markets
and that Vivend: and Groupe Canat+ colluded with TF1 and M8, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Yivend: and Groupe
Canal+ have each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which 1t dismissed the llegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Groupe Canal+ The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Groupe Canal+’s exclusive distnbution nghts on channels broadcast by the group and by
mdependent channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On
December 17, 2010, France Télécom appealed the decision before the Court of Appeal Vivendr and Groupe Canal+ jomned these appeal
proceedings On July 15, 2011, France Télécom withdrew its application for an annulment of the degision of the Competition Authority

Inquiry into complhiance with certamn undertakings given in connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS

The french Competition Authonty opened an mquiry nte comphance with cerfan undertakings given by Vwvendh and Canal+ Group m
connection with the merger of TPS and CanalSateliite

On September 20, 2011, the French Competition Authanty rendered & decision in which it established that Canal+ Group had not complied
with certain undertakings — some 1t considered essential — on which depended its decision authorizing, in 2006, the acquisihion of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivendi and Canal+ Group As a conseguence, the French Competition Authonty withdrew the merger authonzation,
requinng Vivench and Canal+ Group to re-notify the transaction to the French Competition Authority within one month Furthermore, the
French Competition Authority ardered Canal+ Group to pay @ £30 million fine

On October 24, 2011, the transaction was re-notified to the French Competition Authority On November 4, 2011, Vivendi and Canal+ Group
filed an appeal before the French Council of State against the French Competition Authonty’s decision dated September 20, 2011 As part of
this procedure, Canal+ Group had filed two Prionty Constitutional Questions (2PCs} concerning this decision, which were referred to the
French Constitutional Council by the French Counc:| of State on July 17, 2012 On October 12, 2012, the French Constitutional Council
declared that the legal and statutory provisions in guestion were constitutienal

On July 23, 2012, the French Competition Authority issued its decision on this new notification It authonzes the acquisition of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivend: and Canal+ Group, subject ta comphance with a certain number of injunctions These injunctions are prmarnly
focused on the acquisition of film nights fram American studios and French producers, the participation of Canal+ Group in Orange Cinema
Series, the distribution of premium channels and non-lingar services {video on demand and subscription video on demand)

On Avgust 30, 2012, Vivendi and Canal+ Group filed an appeal before the French Council of State to obtain the cancellation of the July 23,
2012 decision In addition, Vivend: and Canale Group have filed two motions, one seekng & suspension of the September 20, 2011 decision
and the other seeking a suspension of the July 23, 2012 decision

The French Council of State rejected these requests for suspension an September 17, 2012 and October 22, 2012, respectively A hearing on
the ments of the cancellation of the French Competition Authonity’s decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 was held on
December 14, 2012 On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State essentially confirmed the two decistons of the French Competition
Authonty, however, 1t reduced the fine of £30 million to £27 million because two of the alleged breaches were unfounded

Complaints against music industry majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss fifed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court, on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for reheanng which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process 1s underway

FBT & Eminem against UMG

On May 21, 2007, FBT (the label owned by Eminem) filed suit against UMG claiming breach of contract in connection with the production of
an album and requesting that the court order additianal payment of royalties for on-line sales of music downloads and ringtones On March
6, 2009, the Los Angeles Court dismissed FBT's claims and FET appealed The Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision On
March 21. 2011, the U S Supreme Caurt, without ruling on the ments of the case, refused to hear an appeal from UMG, which 1s within its
judicial discretion In a decrsion dated June 27, 2012, the Court allowed FBT and Eminem to broaden the scope of therr complaint and
challenge the calculation of royalties on music downloads outside the United States On October 19, 2012, the parties entered nto a
settlement agreement that ended this htigation
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Complaints against UMG regarding royalties for digital downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on-line sales of music downloads and master nngtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Studio Infimty Ward, subsidiary of Activision Blizzard

After concluding an internal human resources inquiry into breaches of contract and insubordination by two senior employees at Infinity
Ward, Activision Blizzard terminated the employment of Jason West and Vince Zampella on March 1, 2010 On March 3, 2010, West and
Zampella filed a complaint against Activision Blizzard in the Los Angeles Supenior Court for breach of contract and wrongful termination On
April 9, 2010, Activision Blizzard filed a cross complaint aganst West and Zampella, asserting claims for breach of contract and fiductary
duty In addition, 38 current and former employees of Infimity Ward filed a complaint against Actvision Blizzard in the Los Angeles Superor
Court on April 27, 2010 for breach of contract and viofation of the Labor Code of the State of Califorma On July 8, 2010, an amended
complaint was filed which added a further seven plantiffs They claim that the company failed to pay bonuses and other compensation
allegedly owed to them

On December 21, 2010, Activision Blizzard filed a consolidated cross complaint to add Electronic Arts as a party, the discovery having shown
the complicity of Efectronic Arts in the case The Los Angeles Court, following Actwision Blizzard’s request, agreed to transfer the case to
the Complex Dwision On May 31, 2012, the parties entered into a settlement agreement that ended this dispute

Telefonica against Vivend in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP, Telefonica's Brazilian subsidiary, filed a claim against Vivend: before the Ciwil Court of Sao Paulo {3° Vara Civel do
Foro Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S3o Paulo) The company 1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquinng
control of GVT and damages In the amount of 15 million Brazihan reals {approximately 55 million euros) corresponding to the expenses
incurred by TELESP in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September, 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to junsdiction,
challenging the junsdiction of the courts of So Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Curitiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apnl 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeals On the ments, Vivend refuted all of Teleforuca’s claims In
particular, Vivend! believes that Telefonica cannot claim to have suffered any "loss of chance” cansidering that its President confirmed n a
public statement that 1t did not want to outbid Vivendi Vivend! has also filed a counterclaim seeking to be compensated for damages
suffered as a result of the “smear campaign” carried out against Vivend: by Telefonica since late 2009

Dynamo against Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivendi before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
{Ssio Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majority of 1ts stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 {the date on which Vivend: tock control of GVT), the prawision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed {the "poison pill provision”) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivendi
Vivends, noting that this porson pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi
or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo's allegations

Hedging-Griffo against Vivend)

On September 4, 2012, Hedging-Gniffo filed a complaint agamnst Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {S&o Paulo Stock
Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendi completed the acquisition
of GVT in 2009 Hedging-Griffo demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold thair GVT shares on the
market and the price paid by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares Vivendi helieves that the decision taken by the
Hedging-Griffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market hattle that opposed Vivend: against Telephonica was their
own decision made In the context of their management of these funds and can 1n no way be attributable to Vivend:

Actions related to the ICMS tax

GVT 15 party in several Brazihan States to varous proceedings concerming the application of the "ICMS” tax ICMS {Impostors Sober
Circulagdos de Mercadorias e Prestagdos de Servigos) 1s a tax on operations refating to the crculation of goods and the supply of transport,
communication and electneity services

On August 5, 2011, Confaz, the national council in charge of coordinating the tax policies of the Brazilian States, published a draft proposal
allowing GVT, as well as all other companies that dispute the application of ICMS on Internet and Broadband services, to enter into
negotiations with the objective of settling the past disputes and clanfying the rules for the future As of today, GVT has reached agreement
with all of the states in which 1t operates with the exception of Rio de Janeira
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In addition, GVT 18 a party to iitigation in vanous Brazihan States concerning the application of the ICMS tax cn voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the twenty proceedings inittated by GVT, eighteen have
resulted in decistons favorable to GVT and twelve are no longer subject to appeal

Action related to the FUST and FUNTTEL taxes in Brazil

The Brazilan tax authonties argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST” {Fundo da Universalizagdos dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagds), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazihan terntory, including 1n
areas that are not economically wiable, and "FUNTTEL" {Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnol6gioco das Telecomunicages), a federal tax to
finance technological investments m Brazihan telecommunications services, should be based on the company’s gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or intesconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum baing subject to double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonty from the
federal judge

Proceedings hrought against telecommunications operators in Brazil regarding the application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were inhiated against all the telecommunications operators n Brazif, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” (Programa de integragdos Social} and “COFINS™ {Contribuigao para Financiamento da Seguridade
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
its defense have a stronger basis than those of the histonic operators insofar as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows
It to set 1ts own tanffs
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Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity

As of December 31, 2012, approxmately 690 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method {compared to
approximately 590 entities as of December 31, 2011)

Vivendi1 SA.

Activision Blizzard, Inc {a}
Actision Publishang Inc
Blizzard Entertainment, Ing
ATVICV
Cobperatie Activision Blizzard International U A
AB Partners C V
Actvision Biizzard Benelux BY
Actwision Blizzard Deutschland GmbH
Activision Bhizzard France SA S
Actwision Blizzard Pty Limited
Bhzzard Entertainment Korea Limiteg
Blizzard Entertainment S AS
Actrision Blizard UK Limited
Unwersel Music Group, Inc
PolyGram Holding Inc
UMG Recordings Inc
Vevo
$IG 104
Centenary Holding BV
Universal International Music BV
Universal Entertatnment GmbH
Unrversal Musie LLC
Unmversal Music France S AS
Universal Music Holdings Limited
EM) Group Warldwide Helding Ltd
SFR Sacieta Frangaise dv Rediotéléphone SA.
Société Réunionnaisa du Radiotéléphona S C §
Sociéié Financiére de Oistribution § A.
Ssur5SA
La Poste Telecom
Numergy
Maroc Telecom S.A.
Maunte! S A
Onatel SA
Gabon Telecom S A
Sotelma $ A
Globa! Village Telecom (Holding} S.A.
Global Village Telecom Ltda
POP internet Ltda
Innoweb Ltda
Groupe Canal+ SA.
Canal+ France S A
Société d Edition de Canal Plus (b}
Muluthématiques S AS
TPSStarSNC c)
Canak Overseas SA S
Canal+ Distributon § A S

08
StudicCanal § A
TVN (d}
Canah+ Cyfrowy S A [d]
VSTV (g}
Other
Seg Tickets
Digrtick
Viverdi Mobute Entertainment
Wengo
Elektrim Telekomunikacja

C Consolidated, E Equity

December 31 2012 December 31 2011
Courtry Actounting Votng Dwnership Accounting Voting Ownershup
Note Method Intgrest Interest Method Interest Interest
France Parent company Parent company
18 Unitad States c 5.5% 615% c 0% 50%
United States c 100% 615% c 100% £0%
United States C 100% 515% C 100% 50%
Netherlands C 100% B15% c 100% 60%
Netherlands c 100% E15% [ 100% 50%
Netherlands C 100% 61 5% C 100% 50%
Netherlands C 100% 615% C 100% 0%
Germany [ 100% 515% C 100% 60%
France [» 100% 515% c 100% 60%
Australia C 100% 615% C 100% 50%
Korea C 100% 615% c 100% 50%
France [ 100% 615% C 100% 50%
United Kingdom [ 100% §15% C 100% 60%
United States ¢ 100% 100.0% [ 100% 100%
United States c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Umted States C 100% 100% o 100% 100%
United States E o0% 50% E 50% 50%
France ¢ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Netherlands [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Netherlands [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Germany C 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
United Kingdom C 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
21 United Kingdom c 100% 100%
Franca c 100% T00% c 100% 100%
France [ 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Frante E 49% 49% £ 49% 49%
24 France E 7% 47% -
Morocco c 53% 5% c 53% 53%
Mauntania C 51% 2% C 51% 22%
Burkina Faso C 5% 27% C 5% 7%
Gabon c 5% 27% [ 51% 27%
Mals C 51% 27% C 51% 27%
Branil c 100% 100% M 100% 100%
Brazil C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Brazt] C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Brazil C 100% 190% C 100% 100%
France [ 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 90% B0% C 80% 80%
Frante [ 49% 39% C 43% 39%
France C 100% 80% [ 100% &0%
France - - C 100% 80%
France C 100% 80% c 100% 80%
France c 100% 0% [» 100% 80%
22 France c 100% 100% -
France C 100% 100% c 100% 160%
13 Poland E 40% 1%
23 Poland c 51% 51% C 5% 75%
Vietnam C 49% 49% C 49% 49%
United Kingdom c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 92% 92%
France [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 95% C 100% 100%
Paland C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

a Vivend: consolidates Activision Blizzard and 1ts subsidianies because 1t holds the night to appoint a majority of members to Activision
Blizzard’s Board of Directors and thus has the power to govern Activision Blizzard's financial and operational policies n order to obtain
benefits from its operations Until July 2013, the approval of certain matters by the Activision Blizzard Board of Directors requires the
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affirmative vote of a majority of the votes present or otherwise able to be cast by the board and at least a majonty of the independent
directors of the board However, until July 2013, the distr:bution of any dividend by Activision Blizard requires the affirmative vote of
a majonty of the independent directors if Activision Blizzard's pro forma net debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds
$400 milhon  Moreover, due to Actwvision Blizzard's stock repurchase program, the exercise of stock options, restricted stocks, and
other dilutive instruments by Activision Blizzard's employees, Vivendi’s ownership interest 1n Activision Blizard may fluctuate from
time to ume

b In 2011, Canal+ SA was renamed Société d'Edition de Canal Plus This company 15 consolidated because (i) Vivend: has majonty
control over the board of directors, {i1) no other shareholder or shareholder group Is 1n a position to exercise substantive participating
nghts that would allow them to veto or block decisions taken by Vivendi and (in) Vivendy assumes the majonty of risks and benefits
pursuant to an agreement with this company via Canal+ Distribution SA S Indeed, Canal+ Distnbution, wholly-owned by Vivend,,
guarantees this company’s results in return for exclusive commercial nghts to its subscriber base

¢ On October 1, 2012, the company TPS Star S N C was merged with the company Multithématiques S A S by means of a transfer of
assets

d  OnNovember 30, 2012, as part of the strategrc partnership involving Polish pay-TV, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision,
which indirectly holds 52% of TVN Simultaneously, Canal+ Group's ownerstip of Canal+ Cyfrowy S A {Cyfra+ platform) was diluted
by the contnbution of the company [Tl Neovision (“n” platform} Therefore, as of December 31, 2012, Canal+ Group held a 51%
Interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy, which owns the company 1TI Neovision at 100%

e VSTV {(Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s 49% held by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a VTV subsidary (the
Vietnamese public televsion company) This company has been consolidated by Vivend given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over 1t due to a general delsgation that was granted by the majority shareholder and to the company’s bylaws

Note 29  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivendi SA to its statutory auditors and members of their firms in 2012 and 2011 were as follows

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres Total
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
{in mithons of euros} 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Statutory audit certification consolidated and
individual financial statements audit
Issuer o7 07 7% 14% 09 0% 12% 1% 16 16
Fully consohdated subsidranes 11 35 42% 68% 51 50 59% 54% 92 85
QOther work and services directly related to the
statutory audrt
issuer DB 01 5% 2% m 06 1% 8% 07 07
Fully consolidated subsidianies 27 06 28% 12% 04 10 5% 13% 31 16
Subtotal 81 49 83% 96% 65 75 87% %% 146 124
Other services prowded by the network to fully
consolrdated subsidianes
Legal, tax and social matters 12 01 12% 2% 09 01 2% 1% 2t g2
Other 04 01 5% 2% 01 02 1% 3% 05 03
Subtotal 16 02 17% 4% 10 03 13% 4% 26 05
Total 97 51 100% 100% 75 78 100% 100% 172 12.9
E_— — — ]

The 2012 fees included the non-recurring assignments undertaken by statutory auditors in relation with the transactions underway
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Note 30 Subsequent events

The main events that occurred between December 31, 2012 and February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved the financial statements for the fiscal year 2012 are as follows
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January 9,2013 U'S court ruling in the lawsuit between Vivend) and Liberty Media Corporation {please refer to Note 27),

January 16, 2013 Maroc Telecom and the Moraccan State entered into fourth capita! expenditure agreement {please refer to
Note 26),

February 7, 2013 Vivendi and Universal Music Group entered into a definitive agreement to sell Parlophone Label Group, a umit of
EMI Recorded Music, to Warner Music Group for £487 million (approximately €600 million) to be paid n cash,

February 12, 2013 Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivend), Canal+ Group and
Canal+ France with the Pans Commercial Court Lagardre Group s seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the
entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France (please refer to Note 27, and

February 15, 2013 Vivend! and Universal Music Group signed a definitive agreement for the sale of Sanctuary Records to BMG for
£40 milhon to be paid in cash
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Note 31  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivend S A has provided guarantees to the foltowing UMG subsidiaries, incorporated in England and Wales, under the reqistered number

indicated, in order for them to claim exemption from audit under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006

Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 3478918
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 718329
UNIVERSAL MUSIT (UK} HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383831
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 859087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC GROUP INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 1778189
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS {UK) LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 3506757
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 2037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGB LIMITED 2200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 3771282
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 5092413
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 1862328
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698804
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410085
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC 2 LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
HELTER SKELTER AGENCY LIMITED 3522889
SANCTUARY (W AR JLIMITED 5221402
SANCTUARY (UB40) LIMITED 5158521
SANCTUARY ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 1890289
SANCTUARY MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
SANCTUARY MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 2898402
SANCTUARY STUDIOS LIMITED 3050388
THE SANCTUARY GROUP LIMITED 284340
Y2 MUSIC GROUP UMITED 32056125
UMGHATW) LIMITED 5103127
EMI Music France Holdco Lid 6405604
E M| Overseas Holdings Ltd 403200
EMI Group Electronics Ltd 461611
EMI Group Holdings (UK) 3158108
EMI Group International Heldings Ltd 1407770
EMI Group Worldwide 3158106
EMI Ltd 5337
EMI Music UK Holdeo Ltd 6388809
Virgin Music Group 2259348
Virgin Records Overseas Ltd 335444
EMI Music Mtaly Holdco Ltd 5420934
EMI Recorded Music Holdings (italy) Ltd 6420969
EMI (IP) Ltd 3984464
EMI Catalogue tnvestments Holland Ltd 3038313
EMI Group America finance Ltd 2415597
EMI Group Danish Investments Ltd 2421891
EMI Group Finance Denmark Ltd 22007
EMI Investments Holland Ltd 3038307
EMI Recarded Musi¢ Holdings (UK) Ltd 6407212
EMIG 4 1td 3038275
VAL 1 Ltd 3967882
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